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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE?”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other companies
listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded
on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than
securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given
that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on
GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from
or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of China
Regenerative Medicine International Limited (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes
particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”)
for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company.
The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to
the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in
this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not
misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission
of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Ray Yip (Chairman of the Board)
(appointed as Chairman of the Board with effect from
3 December 2018)
Wang Xuejun (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed as executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
with effect from 3 September 2018)
Chen Chunguo (resigned with effect from 6 July 2018)

Non-executive Directors

Cui Zhanfeng (resigned with effect from 1 June 2018)
Xiong Chengyu (resigned with effect from 1 June 2018)
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Chan Bing Woon
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Fang Jun

Pang Chung Fai Benny (resigned with effect from 1 June 2018)
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Cheng Chai Fu (resigned with effect from 6 January 2019)
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Fang Jun

Chan Bing Woon
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Wong Yiu Kit Ernest
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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(appointed as committee chairman with effect from 1 June 2018)
Ray Yip
Chan Bing Woon
Wong Yiu Kit Ernest
Pang Chung Fai Benny (resigned with effect from 1 June 2018)
Xiong Chengyu (resigned with effect from 1 June 2018)
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Chen Chunguo (resigned with effect from 6 July 2018)
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFEwE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of China
Regenerative Medicine International Limited (the “Company”), |
am pleased to present the annual results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2018 to all the shareholders.

The new management has conscientiously implemented the
resolutions of the Board, as well as actively developed the core values
idea of business priority, under the philosophy of market force. The
Group strived to overcome numerous difficulties to achieve business
targets under the market-directed, customers-centred and service-
oriented approaches. Despite insufficient resources, the Group
focused on building sales teams and strengthening marketing efforts.
In the increasingly competitive and changing market, we successfully
managed to overcome various unfavourable factors and courageously
advanced forward with innovation in an unyielding spirit. We
successfully developed the cost-efficient sales-centred philosophy
that places the best interests of our shareholders, maintains a stable
employee base, and serves the community at heart.

During 2018, the Group made several major adjustments to assure
the improvement of the business. These measures were:

1. Strengthening the senior management team with strong talents
and long standing experience in biotechnology

2. Expanding the current tissue engineering product lines for
limited medical applications to greater market potential such as
anti-aging and cosmetic applications

3.  Re-organizing the stem cell product line with a clear strategy to
capture the stem cell storage market and developing products
that have wider applications

| am confident that these major management and strategic
adjustments will start to generate results in 2019.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFEwE

FUTURE PROSPECT

Driven by a new culture and a new team under the new mechanism,
the Group will continue to move forward and embrace new market
impacts by placing tissue engineering at core, particularly by focusing
on our artificial cornea product “Acornea”. While continuing the
domestic market expansion, the Group will strive to promote the
“Acornea” product across the global market, including the regions on
the “Belt and Road” Initiative, and explore collaboration with medical
institutions and charity organizations in various countries to build a
bright future for the world.

As for the dermatology sector, the Group will commit itself to
technological transformation by establishing collaboration with other
cosmetics brands. Foraying into the medical beauty and cosmetics
field, the Group will embrace a greater market to further enhance its
profitability. Despite an increasingly fierce market competition, we
continue to have strong confidence in our sales teams that will create
a bright future for the Company.

Looking into the stomatology sector, we will strive for operation
stability, business success, and stable growth by possessing core
technologies and retaining backbone employees. Furthermore, we
will put more efforts to maintain most valued customers, explore new
channels, and minimize costs for greater profitability.

In the stem cell area, the Group has already developed and
maintained a solid foundation by establishing high-standard facilities
in both Hong Kong and Mainland China in the hope of driving our
business growth, building a healthy community, and safeguarding the
employee happiness in the future.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

I, acting on behalf of the Board, avail this opportunity to express my
sincere appreciation for the long-term support from our shareholders,
investors, customers, suppliers, and business partners to the Group,
as well as the prolonged and committed hard work and contribution
by our employees.

By the order of the Board

Ray Yip
Chairman
11 April 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R wm L oA

During the year ended 31 December 2018 (“Fiscal Year 2018”), on
the principle of “Creating Regeneration for the Future” and under the
strategic guidance of “Synergetic Development of Dual Cores and
Two Wings”, the Group focused on building an innovative industry
model for “Internet + Regenerative Medicine” and established a
platform for the bio-medical and healthcare industries in China,
which integrated “Production, Study, Research and Medicine” on
the basis of biological resource storage, with genetic testing and
disease screening as its foundation, tissue engineering products as
its instrument, healthcare and medical beauty as its initiative, big
data and artificial intelligence as its carrier and scientific research
centers as its guarantee. The Group further deepened and refined
various management systems, continued its effective promotion of
the five main lines of management and control, namely operation
management, marketing management, financial management, human
resources management and technical management, to continuously
improve the management standards of the enterprise, and at the
same time, achieved good results on the expansion of various
industrial chains such as activated cell products, tissue engineering
corneal products, tissue engineering oral materials as well as
investment and merger and acquisition (“M&A”) businesses.

OPERATIONS REVIEW

. Deepened the implementation of the Group's
management systems

The Group strengthened its operation and management of its
subsidiaries. It also established the “Synergetic Development
of Dual Cores and Two Wings” business strategy, set
“Management Improvement” as its objective and established
a business strategy of focusing on the market and striving
for effectiveness, so as to continuously improve the Group’s
operating results.

By constantly consolidating the foundation of the Group’s
management, the rights and responsibilities of the three-tier
organizational system, i.e. the Group, the business divisions and
the subsidiaries, have been clearly defined, bringing smoother
communication and improved management.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B E R T

OPERATIONS REVIEW (CONT’D)

1.

Rationalized the industrial layout, optimized the
product structure and formed the Group’s
advantages

In Fiscal Year 2018, the Group further advanced its industrial
layout in accordance with the management standards and
status of each industry segment of the Group, added the newly
acquired industries to the Group’s industrial segments and
optimized its organizational structure.

1.

Reorganization of the Group’s existing members
and products and redefinition of its product lines

The Group formulated and gradually implemented its
development plans for the next five years according to
its overall operation and development strategy. On the
basis of the Company’s existing industrial foundation
and technological advantages, combining with the
national industrial policies, the Group put forward the
overall development strategy of “Dual Cores and Two
Wings”. In particular, “Dual Cores” means to focus on
the two business segments of stem cell and tissue
engineering, and “Two Wings” means to vigorously
develop healthcare and medical beauty businesses as
two strategic growth points of the Company in the future.
Driven by the products and technologies of the dual
cores, the Company will develop rapidly in two wings.
Under the guidance of such plans, the Company has
formed its existing business lines of “activated cells”,
“tissue engineering corneas” and “tissue engineering oral
materials”, which will help the Company to focus more
on its existing advantages and concentrate on achieving
business breakthroughs in the future.

Comprehensive launch of cell segment with the
synergy of each base

Cell segment has currently begun to take shape after
the Group’s full start from fiscal year 2017. In Fiscal Year
2018, the Group set up a cell storage and preparation
center in Beijing as its foothold across the country.
Leveraged on the core position of the Beijing Center, the
Group provided unified production process, quality control
standards, production materials and personnel reserve for
Shaanxi Base, Tianjin Base, Shenzhen Base, Hong Kong
Base and Jiangsu Base, in order to further implement the
core management function of Beijing Center in Mainland
China.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B E R T

OPERATIONS REVIEW (CONT’D)

1.

Rationalized the industrial layout, optimized the
product structure and formed the Group’s
advantages (Cont’d)

2

Comprehensive launch of cell segment with the
synergy of each base (Cont’d)

Meanwhile, the layout of domestic regional markets
has been primarily completed, which provides certain
preconditions and necessary guarantees for the business
growth in fiscal year 2019. Through service function
improvement and service flow optimization of the Hong
Kong International Regenerative Center and BioCell
Technology Limited, we have formed a synergy for the
cell businesses in mainland China and Hong Kong.

Conducting the activated cell sector business based
on Shaanxi Base

Based on ActivSkin, the first tissue-engineered skin
approved by China Food and Drug Administration
and the only tissue-engineered skin containing living
cells in the PRC, as well as Shaanxi Aierfu, the only
approved GMP production workshop in the PRC for
technical transformation and production research and
development, the Group expanded the application
scenarios of ActivSkin, utilized it as a carrier for high-tech
surgical dressings and medical beauty products, so as to
increase the sales channels and significantly enhance the
sales volume of ActivSkin.

At the same time, the Group took advantage of the
technology strength in Beijing Center to build a biological
resource storage center and a cell center for Shaanxi
Base, so as to expand the business types of Shaanxi
Base, and create new growth points for the Company’s
operation and sales.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B E R T

OPERATIONS REVIEW (CONT’D)

1.

.

%

Rationalized the industrial layout, optimized the
product structure and formed the Group’s
advantages (Cont’d)

3.  Conducting the activated cell sector business based
on Shaanxi Base (Cont’d)

With the combination of Obagi Medical Products, a
U.S cosmeceutical brand, Ascara, a Swiss brand and
AMYbio, a biomedical active cosmetic, the Group
formed a product line of medical testing, medical beauty
treatments and daily maintenance for the whole life cycle,
which provided strong guarantee for the Company’s
performance improvement.

Optimized and expanded the domestic industrial
layout

In order to realize the effective integration and rational
distribution of existing industries and future businesses of the
Group, through repeated inspections in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”), the Group formed an industries park for
the related tissue engineering, cell and cosmetic segments and
the product lines proposed to be acquired through investment
and M&A to achieve the Group’s new industrial strategic layout
in the PRC through setting up an important strategic foothold in
Shanghai.

Continuously optimized the Group's existing
products through great investment in research and
development

1.  Carrying out the storage business in respect of
fibroblasts and dental pulp stem cells

After years of research and development and repeated
verifications, the Group has formed a set of industry-
leading production processes for fibroblast and dental
pulp stem cell storage, which was put into operation
in Shaanxi Base in Fiscal Year 2018 with the storage
of various samples. The storage business in respect
of fibroblasts and dental pulp stem cells has brought
simultaneous harvests for both of the Group’s technical
level in research and economic benefits in operation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B E R T

OPERATIONS REVIEW (CONT’D)

V. Continuously optimized the Group's existing
products through great investment in research and
development (Cont’d)

2

Third-generation corneas of AiNear entering the
approval process

Acornea, a tissue engineering cornea self-developed
by Shenzhen AiNear Cornea Engineering Company
Limited, is the world’s first bio-engineering cornea that
has completed clinical trials and has been successfully
launched to market, establishing China’s leading
position in regenerative medicine research of corneal
disease in the world. At present, the third generation of
tissue engineering corneas has also been successfully
developed. Its commercial launch will greatly expand the
application of artificial corneas, improve the success rate,
and also greatly reduce the difficulty, of tissue engineering
corneal transplantation.

Application of cell detection and preparation kits as
well as stem cell drugs

After constant research and exploration as well as
unremitting efforts, the Group has completed its research
and development on several types of cell detection and
preparation kits in Fiscal Year 2018. Currently, it has
submitted approval information to relevant competent
authorities, which has entered the approval process.

Meanwhile, the research and application information
on the drugs in respect of umbilical cord mesenchymal
stem cells, self-developed by the Group for the treatment
of acute-on-chronic liver failure, has been completed
and submitted to FDA through a third party agency.
Once approved, it will be an epoch-making initiative and
product in the history of stem cells in China, and also
the first drug to treat acute-on-chronic liver failure with
umbilical cord mesenchymal stem cells.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B E R T

OPERATIONS REVIEW (CONT’D)

V.

Internet + Healthcare Stations

In Fiscal Year 2018, the Group engaged several experts in the
Internet industry with considerable rewards to focus on the
integration of the Internet, big data and healthcare industries.
As a result, various systems were launched successively,
which laid a solid technical and data foundation for health data
collection, analysis and implementation of Internet applications
in the future. At the same time, some preliminary results have
been achieved in line with the Group’s innovative business
model of “Healthcare Stations on the One Belt and One Road”
proposed in Fiscal Year 2018. Therefore, it is believed that the
integrated online to offline (O20) Internet + healthcare industry
platform will be gradually formed in the future.

At present, products and operations for each business line of
the Group are as follows:

1.  Activated cell product line

The business under the Group’s activated cell product
line will be operated in our Beijing Center, Shaanxi Base,
Tianjin Base, Jiangsu Base and Hong Kong Base, and
cover the products as below:

(1) Tissue Engineered Skin with Living Human Cells —
ActivSkin

ActivSkin, being the first tissue-engineered skin
approved by China Food and Drug Administration,
is the only tissue-engineered skin containing living
cells in the PRC. It is mainly used for healing deep
2nd degree and 3rd degree burn and scald wounds.
It can relieve pain, shorten healing time and reduce
scars in treating burns and scalds.

(2)  Neonatal biological resource storage
Perinatal hematopoietic stem cell storage;
Umbilical cord mesenchymal stem cell storage;

Early childhood hematopoietic stem cell storage;

Placental subtotipotent stem cell storage;
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B E R T

OPERATIONS REVIEW (CONT’D) e (8)
V. Internet + Healthcare Stations (Cont’d) V. GEH+ EEE (1)
1. Activated cell product line (Cont’d) 1. EILHBERR (&)
(3} Dental pulp stem cell storage (3 IFEHnAREST
(4)  Fibroblast stem cell storage @) B ARRET
(5)  Medical beauty related products (6) REZHBEER
Skin bank project; KERITIEE
Facial living cell implant preparation; H 05 4R E Sl A
Skincare cosmetics brand — Ascara; ASCARA ] - 7 32 & 11 % ah an
i
Obagi cosmeceutical products; Obagi B E i
Biomedical active cosmetic-AMYbio; B ETE ML R
(6)  Healthcare related products (6) REEFRMBBEE®R
Autoimmune cell storage; BigeEAmET
Autoimmune cell return; BRSO &
Mesenchymal stem cell preparations; fH 758 4 = KA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B E R T

OPERATIONS REVIEW (CONT’D)

V. Internet + Healthcare Stations (Cont’d)

1.  Activated cell product line (Cont’d)

(7)  Genetic testing related projects

The companies involved in the above businesses
include:

(1)

Tianjin Weikai

The Group’s subsidiary Tianjin Weikai focuses
on the R&D and applications of cell culture
equipment and cell products, as well as
providing cell-related outsourcing technical
services. The self-developed 3DFlo cell
culture instrument ensured the high quality
cell reproduction and established an in vitro
model to simulate in-vivo physical condition
by utilizing automated continuous perfusion
cell culture technology. Meanwhile, Tianjin
Weikai has established a close cooperation
relationship with Institute of Chemical Physics,
Chinese Academy of Sciences and other
scientific research institutes at home and
abroad.

AK Suzhou

The Group’s subsidiary AK (Suzhou) provides
high standards of service and equipment for
cell clinical research, testing and applications
leveraging on the Oxford R&D team’s unique
cell processing technology and reagent
formula. Its core technologies include human
cell separation, purification, cultivation,
amplification, storage and transportation, as
well as the development and production of
automated closed cell bioreactors.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B E R T

OPERATIONS REVIEW (CONT’D)

V.

Internet + Healthcare Stations (Cont’d)

1.

Activated cell product line (Cont’d)

(7)

Genetic testing related projects (Cont’d)

(3)

Changzhou branch company, Jiangsu
Province

Changzhou branch company of the Group
has been identified as the technology
transformation unit of Engineering Technology
Research Center for Tumor Immunotherapy
of Jiangsu Province, mainly responsible
for industrial transformation and clinical
applications of the R&D results achieved by
the center. The scope of business mainly
covers cellular therapy, cell storage, genetic
testing, biological agents manufacturing.

Hong Kong International Regenerative Centre

The Hong Kong International Regenerative
Centre (“HKIRC”), being the first large-scale
comprehensive health care base for precision
medicine in Hong Kong, was established by
the Group at the Miramar Center in Tsim Sha
Tsui, Hong Kong. In possession of precise
medical technology, combining with precise
physical examination and genetic testing, the
centre aims to provide precise healthcare to
meet the physical and mental needs from
customers, including precise cellular therapy
and precise medical beauty.

BioCell Technology Limited

Located at Phase 3 of Hong Kong Science
Park in Shatin, our China Stem Cell Clinical
Applications Centre has started construction.
Stem cell clinical application facilities meet
the clean room standards from EMA, FDA,
CFDA, TGA and GMP PIC/S, as Asia’s first
international cell and gene preparation center.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B E R T

OPERATIONS REVIEW (CONT’D)

V.

Internet + Healthcare Stations (Cont’d)

2. Tissue engineering corneal product line

(1)

Acellular Corneal Stroma — Acornea

Acornea is the world’s first bio-engineering cornea
that has completed clinical trials and has been
successfully launched to market, establishing
China’s leading position in regenerative medicine
research of corneal disease in the world. The total
effective rate of clinical trials of Acornea reached
94.44% with the healing effect similar to that of
donated cornea. In 2016, Acornea was reported
by BBC as one of the five major scientific and
technological revolutions from China, which had
great contributions to the world. Its academic status
allowed China to seize the initiative in the field of
biomedical competition in the world.

3. Tissue engineering oral material product line

(1)

@)

Calcined Bovine Bone — Gegreen

Gegreen is a protein-detracted bone substitute
material for inducing natural bone regeneration,
which is the first independently developed material
for oral bone grafts in the PRC. It is made by
extracting material from epiphysis cancellous bone
of bovine femur, and then goes through the process
of virus inactivation, degreasing, protein detracting
and low-temperature calcination. It is extensively
used for jawbone defect restoration, particularly in
dental implantation and treatment of periodontal
defects.

Acellular Anal Fistula Repair Stroma — Asiunin

Asiunin is applied to simple anal fistula disease
without going through fistulotomy operation which
is traditionally used to cure anal fistula in western
medicine. Fistulotomy operation has a chance to
harm the sphincter muscle and causes relapses.
It is believed that the relapse rate when using
Asiunin for simple anal fistula is comparatively lower,
bringing in revolutionary changes to anal fistula
treatment. It can completely reshape the perianal
tissue and protect the anal sphincter mechanism.
Through minimally invasive operation, it can speed
up the healing rate and shorten the hospitalization
period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R wm L oA

OPERATIONS REVIEW (CONT’D) e (8)
V. Internet + Healthcare Stations (CONT’D) V. GEH+ EEE (1)
3.  Tissue engineering oral material product line 3. HABITEOENHERR(E)
(Cont’d)
(3)  Oral Cavity Repair Membrane with Excellent (3)  HHEEEED R OBEISEE—

Regeneration Capacity — Megreen

Megreen, a new product developed by Shaanxi
Reshine Biotech Co. Ltd., a subsidiary of the Group,
after the completion of application and registration
procedures, is currently in the process of pending
approval with great possibility of being approved.
Megreen is made from the bovine pericardium
tissue with collagen as the main component
through decellularization, virus inactivation and
other treatments, which retains a natural three
dimensional structure. Megreen can be widely used
in the repair of oral cavity tissue with its advantages
of natural double-layer membrane structure,
superior mechanical performance and longer
degradation time.

(4)  Cell Sheet-Autologous Chondrocyte Implantation — )
CS-ACI

CS-ACI is a cartilage repair technology based
on the world’s leading cell sheet preparative
technology. It is used for tissue repair and functional
reconstruction of damaged articular cartilage. As
the first 4th generation of autologous chondrocyte
treatment technology developed by China, CSACI
is used to produce transparent cartilage as a
substitute for exogenous material to avoid cell loss.
In addition, since suture is not necessary and it
takes shorter time in the operation, it has a broad
clinical prospect. In Fiscal Year 2018, the Group
has cooperated with Dalian Medical University and
achieved gratifying results.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R wm L oA

OPERATIONS REVIEW (CONT’D)
V. Internet + Healthcare Stations (CONT D)

4. Overseas Business Division of the Group

The Group has completed the establishment and began
operation of its offices in the United States and the United
Kingdom, and the Japanese office is being set-up. In
Fiscal Year 2018, with active expansion of overseas
offices, it has established contacts with a number of
companies and channels. The overseas sales of its
tissue engineering products have already entered the
implementation phase.

FUTURE PROSPECT

In fiscal year 2019, with the continuous improvement of national
stem cell and healthcare industry policies, a new era of life science
and technology development is coming soon. In respect of the
future development plan of the Company, according to the current
resources and the needs in future development, the Company has
proposed overall strategy of Dual Cores and Two Wings, which
provides an important guarantee for the active implementation of
such strategic plan. In order to realize the dual-core and two-wing
strategy in the business development layout, the stem cell storage
business will provide performance support for the development
of the Company in a medium term, while the healthcare anti-
aging business, based on the development foundation and market
channels of the team for more than three years, can quickly provide
performance support for the Company in a short term. With respect
to the implementation of two-wing strategy, on the basis of many
products and base resources of the Company, with the support of
national pilot zones in Boao, Hainan and Beidaihe, the Company
has the potential to maintain continuous and rapid development
through active operation, and thus to become a leader in healthcare
and medical beauty industries. From a strategic perspective, stem
cell drug research and development and cell preparation research
are important guarantees for the Company’s future development in
the medium and long term, and also significant service contents of
the healthcare and medical beauty strategies, which have positive
strategic value for the development of the Company. It is foreseeable
that the Company will achieve rapid development in the fields of
regenerative medicine, tissue engineering, stem cell storage and
stem cell drugs as well as anti-aging healthcare management so as
to become an industrial leader and standard setter, as well as an
epitome of life technology and healthcare management businesses
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R wm L oA

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Result

In 2017, the Group made a change to the date of annual report,
meaning the year-end date is changed from 30 April to 31 December.
This report covers the twelve months from 1 January to 31 December
2018 while the previous annual report covered the eight months from
1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017.

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$73.0 million
for the year ended 31 December 2018, representing a decrease
of 85.5% from last period (2017: HK$503.7 million). Gross profit
decreased by 81.7% to approximately HK$27.0 million from last
period (2017: HK$147.3 million), whereas gross profit margin
increased from 29.2% of last period to 37.0% of this year. The
Group recorded a loss for the year ended 31 December 2018 of
approximately HK$1,283.9 million (2017: HK$166.2 million).

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$12.5 million
from sales of dermatology, cosmetic products and others for the
year ended 31 December 2018, representing a decrease of 82.4%
from last period (2017: HK$71.2 million). Such decrease was due
to the fact that the Group has focused to manage the credit risk of
cosmetics products and others.

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$5.3 million from
sales of ophthalmology products for the year ended 31 December
2018, representing a decrease of 90.4% from last period (2017:
HK$55.6 million). This was due to the change in the distribution
strategy of the products during the year, which affected the
production and sales in various markets, and resulting in a decrease
in revenue for the year as compared with last period.

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$19.4 million
from sales of stomatology products and others for the year ended 31
December 2018, representing a decrease of 69.5% from last period
(2017: HK$63.6 million) which was mainly attributable to adjustments
in sales and distribution strategy during the year.

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$6.9 million
from sales of cell and healthcare products and services for the year
ended 31 December 2018, representing a increase of 271.0% from
last period (2017: HK$1.9 million). This was mainly attributable to the
subsidiaries named HK International Regenerative Centre Limited and
BioCell Technology Limited having commenced operation since mid-
2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R wm L oA

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONT’D)
Result (Cont’d)

Sales of medical equipment for the year ended 31 December 2018
was approximately HK$28.9 million, representing a decrease of
90.7% as compared to last period (2017: HK$311.5 million) as the
Group reduces less profitable medical equipment trading business.

During the year under review, the Group incurred a loss attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately HK$1,193.5 million,
as compared to a loss of approximately HK$158.5 million for last
period. Loss for the Group increased from last period, which is
mainly attributable to the corresponding (i) decrease in gross profit
of approximately HK$120.3 million as a result of decrease in sales
of our owned products; (i) expected credit loss on trade receivables
of approximately HK$139.0 million was due to the adoption of new
accounting standard and model for the recoverability assessment,
(iiiy impairment loss of goodwill, property, plant and equipments and
intangible assets of approximately HK$646.7 million was due to the
poor financial performance of the business units and the change of
the Group’s operating, marketing and sales strategies; and (iv) the
fair value loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
approximately HK$113.8 million. During the year ended 31 December
2018, the per share loss attributable to the owners of the Company
was HKB.787 cent (for the year ended 31 December 2017: HK0.901
cents).

The Group’s total operating expenses for the year ended 31
December 2018 amounted to approximately HK$458.7 million,
representing an increase of 39.7% as compared to last 8 months
period (2017: HK$328.3 million), which mainly consisted of, employee
benefit expenses of approximately HK$110.6 million (2017: HK$101.4
million), amortisation and depreciation expenses of approximately
HK$69.7 million (2017: HK$41.0 million), research and development
costs of approximately HK$32.4 million (2017: HK$26.7 million),
advertising and marketing expenses of approximately HK$99.2 million
(2017: HK$63.1 million) and exchange loss of approximately HK$21.1
million (2017: exchange gain of HK$1.6 million).

Net Assets

Net assets of the Group amounted to approximately HK$567.3 million
as at 31 December 2018, as compared to approximately HK$1,813.3
million as at 31 December 2017, representing a decrease of 68.7%,
which was mainly attributable to the loss incurred for the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R wm L oA

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONT’D)
Liquidity and Financial Resources

Cash and Cash Equivalents

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of approximately HK$20.1 million (31 December 2017: HK$244.4
million). The decrease in cash and cash equivalent of approximately
HK$224.3 million was mainly due to the following: (i) the Group has
made repayment of shareholder’s loan of approximately HK$214.2
million; (i) repayment of bank loans and payment of bank borrowings
interests of HK$365.2 million; and (iii) deposit for acquisition of
subsidiaries of HK$45.5 million whereas it was offset by the proceed
of HK$400.5 million from the release of pledged bank deposits.

Working Capital and Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had current assets of
approximately HK$866.6 million (31 December 2017: HK$1,176.4
million), while its current liabilities stood at approximately HK$623.1
million (31 December 2017: HK$761.7 million), representing a net
current asset position with a working capital ratio (current assets to
current liabilities) of 1.39 (31 December 2017: 1.54).

As at 31 December 2018, the gearing ratio of the Group, calculated
as total bank borrowings to total equity, was 0.7 (31 December 2017:
0.4).

Capital Structure

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there was no material
change to the Group’s capital structure. As at 31 December 2018, the
total number of issued shares of the Company was 17,585,790,000
(81 December 2017: 17,585,790,000). The Group generally financed
its operations and investing activities primarily with the proceeds from
fund raising activities and through working capital from shareholder’s
loan.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. The Directors
consider the risk of foreign exchange exposure of the Group is
manageable. The management will continue to monitor the foreign
exchange exposure of the Group and is prepared to take prudent
measures such as hedging when appropriate actions are required.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R wm L oA

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group has no material
acquisitions/disposals of subsidiaries and associate during the year.

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS
Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements

Collectively, on 1 August 2016, the exclusive business cooperation
agreement, the exclusive option agreement, the equity pledge
agreement, the power of attorney and the consent letter of spouse,
entered into among (i) /T &k B8 )2 4 ¥ & 5 B 'R A 7] (Jiangsu Yi Ze
Biotechnology Company Limited®) (“Jiangsu Yi Ze”), a company
established in the PRC, a wholly owned subsidiary of SCI
Therapeutics Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong under
limited liabilities, being owned as to (a) 80% by CRMI Medical Bio-
Tech Limited, formerly known as Enlighten On Enterprise Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability,
an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and (b) 20% by
Mr. Shi Yufang respectively as at the date of this report), (i) ;T &k 5
2RI AR A A (Jiangsu Ding Xuan Biotechnology Company
Limited”) (“Jiangsu Ding Xuan”), a limited liability company established
in the PRC to engage in the business of providing services and
equipment for human cell and stem cell related clinical applications
in the PRC, including but not limited to the R&D on human stem cell
technologies and equipment for human stem cell processing and for
trading of its related equipment), the then (jii) registered shareholders
of Jiangsu Ding Xuan and their spouses (if any).

Particulars and main business of the operating entity

At the date of this report, Jiangsu Ding Xuan is currently owned
by Ms. Xu Jie as to 50% and Mr. Dai Lifeng as to 50% (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders”).
Jiangsu Ding Xuan is controlled by the Group through Jiangsu Yi Ze
by way of Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements pursuant to
which Jiangsu Yi Ze controls Jiangsu Ding Xuan.

Jiangsu Ding Xuan is established to engage in the business of
providing services and equipment for human cell and stem cell related
clinical applications in the PRC, including but not limited to the R&D
on human stem cell technologies and equipment for human stem cell
processing and for trading of its related equipment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B E R T

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D) BHNZH (E)
Major terms of the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual ST BB IZ S AL HEZ FEERL
Arrangements
(a) Irrevocable power of attorney (a8 THHREREZTE
Parties: HEShE
Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders L E SRR
Terms: FH -
An indefinite term upon execution and shall continue to be REZBREERFHIBEEER EEL
valid until the contracts under Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual BRZEOTE (BIEESMERBZ) ([T
Arrangements including their respective supplemental BHARZTERDETZANHEEZAEK
agreements (“Jiangsu Ding Xuan Main Obligations”) have been LESIRRRR -

terminated or discharged in full.

Main Subject: FHEEIE -

Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders shall, among other things, T#REREK (AR T fm %
irrevocably authorise Jiangsu Yi Ze and its respective TI#HEZERESEACETERREREEH
successors to act on their behalf on all matters in relation to HRNIH#SZ REZFMEEE  BEL
their equity interests in Jiangsu Ding Xuan, including attending BRERE FERRRGZAZLHR
shareholders’ meeting, signing minutes of shareholders’ meeting REAZR REBEIHSZCABEER
and shareholders’ resolutions, exercising their full shareholder’s R BER ROERB BT E R R A
rights under the articles of association of Jiangsu Ding Xuan (BRETBEABRR2EERE) ZHIEH
and applicable PRC laws and regulations, including but not BHRIEEREA EF EERafhE
limited to shareholders’ voting right, appointment of the legal BAE MABBNEKEEERESTD
representative, director, supervisor and senior management HBR WENEEIHSZRERF L&
of Jiangsu Ding Xuan, filing documents with the relevant SR BENER IHLRZNEREEE
governmental authorities or regulatory bodies, acquisition and HEORTE A R GIE IR E S B RE -
disposition of the equity interest of Jiangsu Ding Xuan held by EITEEBEZAEPHATECENT
Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders or making decision on the TLERS XA L HE -

liquidation of Jiangsu Ding Xuan and the formulation of the
profit sharing plans of Jiangsu Ding Xuan, provided that the
exercise of the power(s) of attorney shall not cause breach to
the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B E R T

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Major terms of the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements (Cont’d)

(b)

(c)

Exclusive business cooperation agreement
Parties:

(i) Jiangsu YiZe
(i) Jiangsu Ding Xuan

Terms:

The exclusive business cooperation agreement commences
from 1 August 2016 and is effective perpetually, unless
otherwise terminated in accordance with its terms.

Main Subject:

Jiangsu Ding Xuan should appoint Jiangsu Yi Ze as exclusive
service provider for its business operations, including but
not limited to, technical R&D, technical support, technical
consultation, technical training and other management and
corporate consultation services.

Exclusive option agreement
Parties:

(i) Jiangsu YiZe
(i) Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders
(i) Jiangsu Ding Xuan

Terms:

The exclusive option agreement commences from 1 August
2016 and is effective until all the shares of Jiangsu Ding Xuan
have been transferred from the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders
to Jiangsu Yi Ze and/or any person(s) designated by Jiangsu Vi
Ze.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B E R T

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Major terms of the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements (Cont’d)

(c)

Exclusive option agreement (Cont’d)
Main Subject:

Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders and Jiangsu Ding Xuan
irrevocably agreed, to the extent permitted under the laws of
the PRC, to transfer to Jiangsu Yi Ze and/or any person(s)
designated by Jiangsu Yi Ze at any time and from time to time,
all or part of their equity interests in Jiangsu Ding Xuan, or all or
part of the assets of Jiangsu Ding Xuan.

Jiangsu Yi Ze may exercise its rights under the paragraph above
at any time and in any manner at its sole discretion as permitted
under the laws of the PRC. The exercise price of each of the
rights under the paragraph above shall be the lowest price
permitted under the laws of the PRC, subject to any other price
as required by the PRC government authorities. Upon Jiangsu
Ding Xuan and/or Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders receive(s)
the said consideration, they unconditionally transfer the said
consideration to Jiangsu Yi Ze or any person(s) designated by
Jiangsu Vi Ze.

Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders and Jiangsu Ding Xuan jointly
and/or severally undertake that, among other things, without
having obtained the prior written consent from Jiangsu Yi Ze,
they will not (i) amend the articles of association of Jiangsu
Ding Xuan; (i) increase or decrease the registered capital of
Jiangsu Ding Xuan; (iii) dispose of, transfer, mortgage, create
any security interest or third party rights in its equity interests
in Jiangsu Ding Xuan; (iv) appoint any director(s) or executive
director(s) of Jiangsu Ding Xuan; and (v) pay dividends in any
manners. Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders further undertake
that, without having obtained the written consent from Jiangsu
Yi Ze, they and their respective related persons will not engage
in any business which is in competition with the businesses of
Jiangsu Ding Xuan.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B E R T

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Major terms of the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements (Cont’d)

(d)

(e)

Equity pledge agreement
Parties:

(i) Jiangsu YiZe
(i) Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders
(i) Jiangsu Ding Xuan

Terms:

Effective from the registration of the pledged equity interests
under the equity pledge agreement at the relevant PRC
administration for industry and commerce until all the
obligations of Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders and Jiangsu
Ding Xuan (including but not limited to Jiangsu Ding Xuan Main
Obligations) are satisfied or discharged in full. The registration of
the pledged equity interests under the equity pledge agreement
at the relevant PRC administration for industry and commerce
has been completed.

Main Subject:

Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders pledged all equity interests
in Jiangsu Ding Xuan legally held by Jiangsu Ding Xuan
Shareholders (including present or future registered capital and
their rights and benefits, whether through increase of capital
and/or transfer of equity interest) to Jiangsu Yi Ze.

Consent letters of spouse

Parties:

The spouses of Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders

Terms:

An indefinite term upon execution and shall continue to be valid

until the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Main Obligations are satisfied or
discharged in full.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R wm L oA

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Major terms of the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements (Cont’d)

(e) Consent letters of spouse (Cont’d)
Main Subject:

The spouses of Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders unconditionally
agreed to the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements.

The spouses of Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders undertake
and declare that the equity respectively owned by Jiangsu Ding
Xuan Shareholders in Jiangsu Ding Xuan contemplated on
Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements shall be Jiangsu
Ding Xuan Shareholders’ personal property respectively; and
further, the said spouses undertake that they shall not take any
act that causes or will cause any conflict and/or impediment to
the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements.

Reason for using the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements and the significance to the Group

As advised by the legal adviser of the Company, the principal
business of Jiangsu Ding Xuan involves technology for human stem
cell research & development and applications which is regarded as
prohibited business for foreign entity under the PRC Law. As such,
the Group cannot acquire the equity interest in Jiangsu Ding Xuan
at that time. Having regard to such foreign investment restrictions,
the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements were designed to
provide Jiangsu Yi Ze and, thus the Group, with effective control over
the financial and operational policies of Jiangsu Ding Xuan and (to the
extent permitted by PRC laws and regulations) the right to acquire the
equity interest in Jiangsu Ding Xuan.
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Major terms of the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements (Cont’d)

Revenue and assets subject to the Jiangsu Ding Xuan
Contractual Arrangements

BRZH (&)

TEFREBEN LI FBIR ()

THREZENLHZ Wt REE

The revenue, net loss and total assets subject to the Jiangsu Ding LERZA DO LTH 2 W - FEBREEEST
Xuan Contractual Arrangements are set out as follows: O
Period from
1 May
Year ended 2017 to
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
BE-ZE—t4F
BZE TA—HZ=
—E-N\F —E—+tF
+=—A=+—H +=ZA=+—8H
LFE #Y B
(HK$’000) (HK$°000)
(F#&x) (F#&7L)
Revenue Yoz - -
Net loss FEE 2,003 3,910
Total assets MEE 4,386 9,034

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the revenue and net loss
subject to Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements amounted
to nil and approximately 0.16% of the revenue and net loss of the
Group respectively. As at 31 December 2018, the total assets
subject to Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements amounted to
approximately 0.31% of the total assets of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the revenue and net loss
subject to Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements amounted
to nil and approximately 2.35% of the revenue and net loss of the
Group respectively. As at 31 December 2017, the total assets
subject to Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements amounted to
approximately 0.26% of the total assets of the Group.

Material changes

Save as disclosed in this report, there has not been any material
changes in Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements and/or the
circumstances under which they were adopted.
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Unwinding of Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements

Up to the date of this report, there has not been any unwinding of any
Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements, nor has there been any
failure to unwind any Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements
when the restrictions that led to the adoption of the Jiangsu Ding
Xuan Contractual Arrangements are removed.

Risks associated with the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to
mitigate the risks

The Group does not have any direct equity ownership in Jiangsu
Ding Xuan and has relied on the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements, as the case may be, to control, operate, and be
entitled to the economic benefits and risks arising from the respective
businesses of Jiangsu Ding Xuan in the PRC. However, there are
risks involved with the operations of Jiangsu Yi Ze under the Jiangsu
Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements, as the case may be.

(i)  There is no assurance that the Jiangsu Ding Xuan
Contractual Arrangements could comply with future
changes in the regulatory requirements in the PRC and
the PRC government may determine that the Jiangsu
Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements do not comply with
applicable regulations

Current PRC laws and regulations prohibit foreign ownership
of companies engage in the businesses concerning technology
for research & development and applications of human stem
cells, gene diagnose and therapy. The businesses of Jiangsu
Ding Xuan are regarded as design and manufacturing of
preclinical cell and stem cell related equipment which involves
in technology for human stem cell research & development
and applications, in addition to providing contract research
services. The Company is a company incorporated under the
laws of the Cayman Islands. Jiangsu Yi Ze may not engage
in the businesses concerning technology for human stem cell
research & development and applications in the PRC under
current PRC laws. As a result, the Group will have to conduct
the business of Jiangsu Ding Xuan in the PRC through the
Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B E R T

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Risks associated with the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to
mitigate the risks (Cont’d)

()

There is no assurance that the Jiangsu Ding Xuan
Contractual Arrangements could comply with future
changes in the regulatory requirements in the PRC and
the PRC government may determine that the Jiangsu
Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements do not comply with
applicable regulations (Cont’d)

Despite the fact that there is no indication that the Jiangsu Ding
Xuan Contractual Arrangements will be interfered or objected
by any PRC regulatory authorities, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, there is a possibility that the Ministry of Commerce
and other competent authorities may have different opinions
on the interpretation of the relevant regulations and would not
agree that the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements
comply with the current PRC laws, regulations or rules or those
that may be adopted in future, and the authorities may deny
the validity, effectiveness and enforceability of the Jiangsu Ding
Xuan Contractual Arrangements.

If the authorities may deny the validity, effectiveness and
enforceability of any of the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements, it could have a material adverse impact on
the Group’s businesses, financial condition and results of
operations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B E R T

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Risks associated with the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to
mitigate the risks (Cont’d)

(ii)

The Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements
may not be as effective in providing control over and
entitlement to the economic interests in the Project
Company (namely “Jiangsu Ding Xuan as the case may
be”) as direct ownership

The Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements may not
be as effective in providing the Group with control over and
entitlement to the economic interests in the Project Company
as direct ownership. If Jiangsu Yi Ze had direct ownership of
Jiangsu Ding Xuan, Jiangsu Yi Ze would be able to directly
exercise its rights as a shareholder to effect changes in the
board of directors of Jiangsu Ding Xuan. However, under the
Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements, Jiangsu Yi Ze
can only look to and rely on Jiangsu Ding Xuan and the Jiangsu
Ding Xuan Shareholders to perform their contractual obligations
under the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements such
that Jiangsu Yi Ze can exercise effective control over Jiangsu
Ding Xuan. The Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders may not act
in the best interests of Jiangsu Ding Xuan or may not perform
its/their obligations under the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements, and in that case, Jiangsu Yi Ze may replace the
Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders by its other nominees pursuant
to the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements. However,
if any dispute relating to the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements remains unresolved, Jiangsu Yi Ze will have to
enforce its rights under the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements and seek to interpret the terms of the Jiangsu
Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements in accordance with the
PRC laws and will be subject to uncertainties in the PRC legal
system.

Since the legal environment in the PRC is different from that
in Hong Kong and other jurisdictions, the uncertainties in the
PRC legal system could limit the ability of the Group to enforce
the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements. There is no
assurance that such arbitration result will be in favour of the
Group and/or that there will not be any difficulties in enforcing
any arbitral awards granted, including specific performance or
injunctive relief and claiming damages by the Group. As the
Group may not be able to obtain sufficient remedies in a timely
manner, its ability to exert effective control over Jiangsu Ding
Xuan and the conduct of the businesses concerning technology
for human stem cell research & development and applications
could be materially and adversely affected, and may disrupt the
business of the Group and have a material adverse impact on
Group’s business, prospects and results of operation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Risks associated with the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to
mitigate the risks (Cont’d)

(iij)  Potential conflicts of interest among Jiangsu Yi Ze,
Jiangsu Ding Xuan, the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders
may exist

Jiangsu Yi Ze shall rely on the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements to exercise control over and to draw the
economic benefits from Jiangsu Ding Xuan. Jiangsu Yi Ze may
not be able to provide sufficient incentives to the Jiangsu Ding
Xuan Shareholders for the purpose of encouraging them to
act in the best interests of Jiangsu Yi Ze, other than stipulating
the relevant obligations in the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements. The Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders may
breach the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements in
the event of conflicts of interest or deterioration of its/their
relationship with Jiangsu Yi Ze, the results of which may have a
material adverse impact on Jiangsu Yi Ze’s business, prospects
and results of operation.

It is not assured that if conflicts arise, the Jiangsu Ding Xuan
Shareholders will act in the best interests of Jiangsu Yi Ze or
that the conflicts will be resolved in favour of Jiangsu Yi Ze. If
any of the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders fails to perform its
obligations under the respective Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements, Jiangsu Yi Ze may have to rely on legal remedies
under the PRC laws through legal proceedings, which may be
expensive, time-consuming and disruptive to Jiangsu Yi Ze’s
operations and will be subject to uncertainties as stated above.

BRZH (&)

BETHREZSZH B ZEER AL
AIFRE 2 FE G R 2 2 1 bt (A

(i)

ILFIEE - TR RZR LA RIZKR 2
7] §E 17 75 B 7E 7l 55 18 5%

TEBEZ R FRII&GREZE O &
RERITREEG RN 8 R BB & - kR
RITIERZAHNLHETITRABEELI
T ERERE A] A2 BE B SR T AR B X AR R LA
TERREZ 2 S EN 1T 3 M 7T & 7 XA
RIZH B MR - TSR AT b
BENa@REGIEBTHRBZZHEER
LR RRITHRBZANLY - HAERATRE
HIHMEZEL MSREEXEEL
BERTHMEE -

BMIAREEELEERE I ITHRIEZRER
VOTE#HBUZ 2 REN ST EHERAG Y
TERBRER N 2 5 ABOR o W 20T &
ZBRRRERITERENIHBZAENER
BT ZEE IHBZEARASBER
FAMRRER BOAR T AR MR W8
RESE REMTEHIGFEEZECLE B
Al REME R E XAt 2 TR E -

2018 F3f FEBLEEEFBEERAT




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B E R T

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Risks associated with the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to
mitigate the risks (Cont’d)

(iv) The Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements may

v)

be subject to scrutiny of the PRC tax authorities and
additional tax may be imposed

Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements may be subject
to scrutiny of the PRC tax authorities and additional tax may be
imposed on the Jiangsu Yi Ze, as the case may be. Jiangsu Yi
Ze, as the case may be, may face adverse tax consequences
if the PRC tax authorities determine that the Jiangsu Ding Xuan
Contractual Arrangements were not entered into based on
arm’s length negotiations. If the PRC tax authorities determine
that the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements were
not entered into on an arm’s length basis, they may adjust the
income and expenses of Jiangsu Yi Ze, as the case may be, for
the PRC tax purposes, which could result in higher tax liabilities
on Jiangsu Yi Ze, as the case may be.

The operation results of Jiangsu Yi Ze, as the case may be,
may be materially and adversely affected if the tax liabilities of
Jiangsu Yi Ze, Jiangsu Ding Xuan increase significantly or if they
are required to pay interest on late payments.

Ability to acquire the entire equity interests in or assets
of the Project Company

Jiangsu Yi Ze’s ability to acquire the entire equity interests
in or assets of Jiangsu Ding Xuan may be subject to various
limitations and substantial costs. In case Jiangsu Yi Ze
exercises its options to acquire all or part of the equity interests
and/or assets of Jiangsu Ding Xuan under the relevant exclusive
option agreement, the acquisition of the entire equity interests
in or the assets of Jiangsu Ding Xuan may only be conducted
to the extent as permitted by the applicable PRC laws and will
be subject to necessary approvals and relevant procedures
under applicable PRC laws. In addition, the abovementioned
acquisitions may be subject to a minimum price limitation (such
as an appraised value for the entire equity interests in or all
assets of Jiangsu Ding Xuan) or other limitations as imposed
by applicable PRC laws. Further, a substantial amount of other
costs (if any), expenses and time may be involved in transferring
the ownership of Jiangsu Ding Xuan, which may have a material
adverse impact on Jiangsu Yi Ze’s businesses, prospects and
results of operation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)
AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements

In April and August 2015, the Group completed the respective
acquisitions of Tianjin Weikai and AK Suzhou through contractual
arrangements. Save as disclosed in this report, there have been no
changes to such Contractual Arrangements since the respective
completion dates.

Collectively, the exclusive business cooperation agreement, the
exclusive option agreement, the equity pledge agreement, the power
of attorney and the consent letter of spouse entered into among
(i) AK Subsidiary (BN B EMEMEARBEREET AR
(Suzhou Bo Kai Biomedical Consultation Service Ltd.*)), a company
established in the PRC, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Frame
Sharp Limited (a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands,
being owned as to (a) 70% by CRMI Medical Bio-Tech Limited (“CRMI
Medical”), formerly known as Enlighten On Enterprise Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability,
an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and (b) 30%
by Remed Tiger Limited (“Remed Tiger”), a company incorporated in
the Republic of Seychelles, being owned as to 100% by Mr. Zhang
Xumao) respectively as at the date of this report), (i) AK Suzhou (22
S (BRI £ ¥ T A IR A 7] (AK (Suzhou) Biomedical Ltd.), a limited
liability company established in the PRC to engage in the business of
providing services and equipment for human cell and stem cell related
clinical applications in the PRC, including but not limited to the R&D
on human stem cell technologies and equipment for human stem
cell processing and for trading of its related equipment), the then (i)
registered shareholders of AK Suzhou and their spouses (if any).

Particulars and main business of the operating entity

At the date of this report, AK Suzhou is currently owned as to 30% by
Ms. Cui Keyan and as to 70% by Mr. Dai Yumin (the former executive
Director of the Company, which had resigned from his directorship of
the Company with effect from 30 April 2016) (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the “Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders”). AK Suzhou is
controlled by the Group through AK Subsidiary by way of AK Suzhou
Contractual Arrangements pursuant to which AK Subsidiary controls
AK Suzhou.

AK Suzhou is established to engage in the business of providing
services and equipment for human cell and stem cell related clinical
applications in the PRC, including but not limited to the R&D on
human stem cell technologies and equipment for human stem cell
processing and for trading of its related equipment.

#for identification only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)
AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)

Major terms of the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements

BRRH (&)
B (M) &R 2 ()
B (M) B L2 EEHFH

Irrevocable power of attorney
Parties:

Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders
Terms:

An indefinite term upon execution and shall continue to be valid
until the contracts under AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements
including their respective supplemental agreements (“AK
Suzhou Main Obligations”) have been terminated or discharged
in full.

Main Subject:

Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders shall, among other things,
irrevocably authorise AK Subsidiary and its respective
successors to act on their behalf on all matters in relation
to their equity interests in AK Suzhou, including attending
shareholders’ meeting, signing minutes of shareholders’
meeting and shareholders’ resolutions, exercising their full
shareholder’s rights under the articles of association of AK
Suzhou and applicable PRC laws and regulations, including
but not limited to shareholders’ voting right, appointment
of the legal representative, director, supervisor and senior
management of AK Suzhou, filing documents with the relevant
governmental authorities or regulatory bodies, acquisition and
disposition of the equity interest of AK Suzhou held by Suzhou
Biomedical Shareholders or making decision on the liquidation
of AK Suzhou and the formulation of the profit sharing plans
of AK Suzhou, provided that the exercise of the power(s) of
attorney shall not cause breach to the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)
AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)

Major terms of the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements
(Cont’d)

b)

c)

Exclusive business cooperation agreement
Parties:

(i) AK Subsidiary
(i)  AK Suzhou

Terms:

10 years commencing from 7 August 2015. The exclusive
business cooperation agreement will be automatically extended
for another 10 years if AK Subsidiary has no intention to
terminate upon its expiry. The said automatic 10- year extension
will continue until AK Subsidiary gives confirmation regarding
the termination of the term.

Main Subject:

AK Suzhou should appoint AK Subsidiary as exclusive service
provider for its business operations, including but not limited
to, technical R&D, technical support, technical consultation,
technical training and other management and corporate
consultation services.

Exclusive option agreements
Parties:

(i) AK Subsidiary
(i)  Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders
(i)  AK Suzhou

Terms:

10 years commencing from the date of the respective exclusive
option agreements. The exclusive option agreement will be
automatically extended for another 10 years if AK Subsidiary
has no intention to terminate upon its expiry. The said automatic
10-year extension will continue until AK Subsidiary gives
confirmation regarding the termination of the term.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B E R T

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)

Major terms of the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements
(Cont’d)

c)

Exclusive option agreements (Cont’d)
Main Subject:

Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders and AK Suzhou irrevocably
agreed, to the extent permitted under the laws of the PRC, to
transfer to AK Subsidiary or any person(s) designated by AK
Subsidiary at any time and from time to time, all or part of their
equity interests in AK Suzhou, or all or part of the assets of AK
Suzhou.

AK Subsidiary may exercise its rights under the paragraph
above at any time and in any manner at its sole discretion as
permitted under the laws of the PRC. The exercise price of each
of the rights under the paragraph above shall be the lowest
price permitted under the laws of the PRC, subject to any other
price as required by the PRC government authorities. Upon
AK Suzhou and/or Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders receive(s)
the said consideration, they unconditionally transfer the said
consideration to AK Subsidiary or any person(s) designated by
AK Subsidiary.

Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders and AK Suzhou jointly and/
or severally undertake that, among other things, without having
obtained the prior written consent from AK Subsidiary, they
will not (i) amend the articles of association of AK Suzhou; (i)
increase or decrease the registered capital of AK Suzhou; (iii)
dispose of, transfer, mortgage, create any security interest or
third party rights in its equity interests in AK Suzhou; (iv) appoint
any director(s) or executive director(s) of AK Suzhou; and (v) pay
dividends in any manners. Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders
further undertake that, without having obtained the written
consent from AK Subsidiary, they and their respective related
persons will not engage in any business which is in competition
with the businesses of AK Suzhou.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B E R T

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D) BHNZH (E)

AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d) E (BFM) G ZHE ()

Major terms of the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements B (M) SR ZHZEEFKF ()

(Cont’d)

d)  Equity pledge agreements d REEFGE
Parties: HEShE
()  AK Subsidiary 0 ERIMEAA
(i)  Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders iy BRNEW R R
(i) AK Suzhou (i) Bl (ERIMN)
Terms: FH
Effective from the registration of the pledged equity interests B A BB TR T B R = Re A i A
under the equity pledge agreement at the relevant PRC WEB T DA RBERES  EE&HM
administration for industry and commerce until all the EYRATAR R R B (M) 2 MEEE (2
obligations of Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders and AK Suzhou FRETRMEE (BN EE#)HELTS
(including but not limited to AK Suzhou Main Obligations) are Wk e s W& k- BERRNERTREITHE
satisfied or discharged in full. The registration of the pledged TRHEBATEREERHZET 2B EKR
equity interests under the equity pledge agreement at the N HE -
relevant PRC administration for industry and commerce has
been completed.
Main Subject: FHESEIE -
Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders pledged all equity interests R N AE W 1900 A% B ) B LB B A B iR ER
in AK Suzhou legally held by Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders MAEDFEMRREEFEE 2 2R (BFM)
(including present or future registered capital and their rights A4 (B IEIR A SR SR AL IR AR I T I
and benefits, whether through increase of capital and/or e BB BIGMEA R, HEER
transfer of equity interest) to AK Subsidiary. 2R e

e)  Consent letter of spouse e EBEEH
Parties: HEShE ¢

- @

The spouses of Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders ER N A WD AT AR R 2 BR A8 ®
Terms: FH -
An indefinite term upon execution and shall continue to be valid REZEBERFHAUKFESN EER ‘
until the AK Suzhou Main Obligations are satisfied or discharged gl (BN EEEIC LT RHm T AR -

in full.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)
AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)

Major terms of the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements
(Cont’d)

e)  Consent letter of spouse (Cont’d)
Main Subject:

The spouses of Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders
unconditionally agreed to the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements.

The spouses of Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders undertake
and declare that the equity respectively owned by Suzhou
Biomedical Shareholders in AK Suzhou contemplated on AK
Suzhou Contractual Arrangements shall be Suzhou Biomedical
Shareholders’ personal property respectively; and further, the
said spouses undertake that they shall not take any act that
causes or will cause any conflict and/or impediment to the AK
Suzhou Contractual Arrangements.

Reason for using the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements
and the significance to the Group

As advised by the legal adviser of the Company, the principal
business of AK Suzhou involves technology for human stem cell
research & development and applications which is regarded as
prohibited business for foreign entity under the PRC Law. As such,
the Group cannot acquire the equity interest in AK Suzhou at that
time. Having regard to such foreign investment restrictions, the
AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements were designed to provide
AK Subsidiary and, thus the Group, with effective control over the
financial and operational policies of AK Suzhou and (to the extent
permitted by PRC laws and regulations) the right to acquire the equity
interest in AK Suzhou.
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)
AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)

Revenue and assets subject to the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements

BRZ YA
B (M) e L (.
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The revenue, net loss and total assets subject to the AK Suzhou B8 (FM) & QO LHE 2 Wz - FEENMNEEES
Contractual Arrangements are set out as follows: FGAR ¢
Period from
1 May
Year ended 2017 to
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
BE-ZE—t4F
BZE TA—HZ=
—E-N\F —E—+tF
+=—A=+—H +=—A=+—H
LFE f9 B9
(HK$7000) (HK$’000)
(F#&x) (F#&7L)
Revenue g &% 3,244 736
Net loss FEE 53,256 4,968
Total assets MEE 28,590 76,964

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the revenue and net loss
subject to AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements amounted to
approximately 4.45% and 4.15% of the revenue and net loss of the
Group respectively. As at 31 December 2018, the total assets subject
to AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements amounted to approximately
2.01% of the total assets of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the revenue and net loss
subject to AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements amounted to
approximately 0.15% and 2.99% of the revenue and net loss of the
Group respectively. As at 31 December 2017, the total assets subject
to AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements amounted to approximately
2.18% of the total assets of the Group.

Material changes
Save as disclosed in this report, there has not been any material

changes in AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and/or the
circumstances under which they were adopted.
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)
AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)

Unwinding of AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements

Up to the date of this report, there has not been any unwinding of
any AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements, nor has there been any
failure to unwind any AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements when
the restrictions that led to the adoption of the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements are removed.

Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements

Collectively, the exclusive business cooperation agreement, the
exclusive option agreement, the equity pledge agreement, the power
of attorney and the consent letter of spouse, entered into among
(i) Tianjin Subsidiary (Tianjin Weisheng Biotechnology Consulting
Limited, a company incorporated in the PRC with Royal Noble
Development Limited as its sole shareholder (a company incorporated
in Hong Kong with Passion Stream Limited as its sole shareholder, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, being owned as to
70% and 30% by the CRMI Medical and Remed Tiger respectively)),
(i) Tianjin Weikai (&2 G 8|4 % T2 AR 2 7] (Tianjin Weikai Bioeng
Ltd.”), a company incorporated in the PRC to engage in the business
of designs and manufacturing of pre-clinical cell and stem cell
related equipment, especially in 3D cell culture bio-reactors and their
related consumables, as well as providing CRO services i.e. contract
research services which mainly include drug screening, drug efficacy,
toxicity assays in the drug development services to local institutions
and hospitals), the then (iii) registered shareholders of Tianjin Weikai
and their spouses (if any).

Particulars and main business of the operating entity

At the date of this report, Tianjin Weikai is currently owned as to 30%
by Mr. Cui Zhanyong and as to 70% by Mr. Dai Yumin (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Tianjin Weikai Shareholders”). Tianjin
Weikai is controlled by the Group through Tianjin Subsidiary by way
of Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements pursuant to which Tianjin
Subsidiary controls Tianjin Weikai.

Tianjin Weikai engages in the business of design and manufacturing
of pre-clinical cell and stem cell related equipment, especially in 3D
cell culture bio-reactors and their related consumables as well as
providing CRO services.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R wm L oA

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)
Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)

Major terms of the Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements
a)  Irrevocable Power(s) of Attorney

Parties:

Tianjin Weikai Shareholders

Terms:

An indefinite term upon execution and shall continue to be
valid until the contracts under Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements including their respective supplemental
agreements (“Tianjin Weikai Main Obligations”) are satisfied or
discharged in full.

Main Subject:

Tianjin Weikai Shareholders shall, among other things,
irrevocably authorise any representative and its respective
successors appointed by Tianjin Subsidiary to act on their behalf
all matters in relation to its equity interests in Tianjin Weikai,
including attending shareholders’ meeting, signing minutes of
shareholders’ meeting and shareholders’ resolutions, exercising
their full shareholder’s rights under the articles of association
of Tianjin Weikai and applicable PRC laws and regulations,
including but not limited to shareholders’ voting right,
appointment of the legal representative, director, supervisor
and senior management of Tianjin Weikai, filing documents
with the relevant governmental authorities or regulatory bodies,
acquisition and disposition of the shareholdings of Tianjin Weikai
held by Tianjin Weikai Shareholders or making decision on the
liquidation of Tianjin Weikai and the formulation of the profit
sharing plans of Tianjin Weikai, provided that the exercise of the
power(s) of attorney shall not cause to breach the Tianjin Weikai
Contractual Arrangements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B E R T

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)

Major terms of the Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements
(Cont’d)

b)

c)

Exclusive business cooperation agreement
Parties:

(i) Tianjin Subsidiary
(i) Tianjin Weikai

Terms:

10 years commencing from 17 April 2015. The exclusive
business cooperation agreement will be automatically extended
for another 10 years if Tianjin Subsidiary has no intention to
terminate upon its expiry. The said automatic 10- year extension
will continue until Tianjin Subsidiary gives confirmation regarding
the termination of the term.

Main Subject:

Tianjin Weikai should appoint Tianjin Subsidiary as service
provider for its business operations, including but not limited
to, technical R&D, technical support, technical consultation,
technical training and other management and corporate
consultation services.

Exclusive option agreements
Parties:

(i) Tianjin Subsidiary
(i) Tianjin Weikai Shareholders
(i) Tianjin Weikai

Terms:

10 years commencing from the date of the respective exclusive
option agreements. The exclusive option agreement will be
automatically extended for another 10 years if Tianjin Subsidiary
has no intention to terminate upon its expiry. The said automatic
10-year extension will continue until Tianjin Subsidiary gives
confirmation regarding the termination of the term.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B E R T

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)

Major terms of the Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements
(Cont’d)

c)

Exclusive option agreements (Cont’d)
Main Subject:

Tianjin Weikai Shareholders and Tianjin Weikai shall irrevocably
agree, to the extent permitted under the laws of the PRC, to
transfer to Tianjin Subsidiary or any person(s) designated by
Tianjin Subsidiary at any time and from time to time, all or part
of its equity interests in Tianjin Weikai, or all or part of the assets
of Tianjin Weikai.

Tianjin Subsidiary may exercise its rights under the paragraph
above at any time and in any manner at its sole discretion as
permitted under the laws of the PRC. The exercise price of each
of the rights under the paragraph above shall be the lowest
price permitted under the laws of the PRC, subject to any other
price as required by the PRC government authorities. Upon
Tianjin Weikai and/or Tianjin Weikai Shareholders receive(s)
the said consideration, they unconditionally transfer the said
consideration to Tianjin Subsidiary or any person(s) designated
by Tianjin Subsidiary.

Tianjin Weikai Shareholders and Tianjin Weikai jointly and/or
severally undertake that, among other things, without having
obtained the written consent from Tianjin Subsidiary, they will
not (i) amend the articles of association of Tianjin Weikai; (i)
increase or decrease the registered capital of Tianjin Weikai;
(i) dispose of, transfer, mortgage, create any security interest
or third party rights in its equity interests in Tianjin Weikai; (iv)
appoint any director(s) or executive director(s) of Tianjin Weikai;
(v) pay dividends in any manners. Tianjin Weikai Shareholders
further undertake that, without having obtained the written
consent from Tianjin Subsidiary, they and their respective
related persons will not engage in any business which is in
competition with the businesses of Tianjin Weikai.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B E R T

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)

Major terms of the Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements
(Cont’d)

a

Equity pledge agreement
Parties:

(i) Tianjin Subsidiary
(i) Tianjin Weikai Shareholders
(iii) Tianjin Weikai

Terms:

Effective from the registration of the pledged equity interests
under the equity pledge agreement at the relevant PRC
administration for industry and commerce until all the
obligations of Tianjin Weikai Shareholders and Tianjin Weikai
(including but not limited to Tianjin Weikai Main Obligations) are
satisfied or discharged in full. The registration of the pledged
equity interests under the equity pledge agreement at the
relevant PRC administration for industry and commerce has
been completed.

Main Subject:

Tianjin Weikai Shareholders pledged all equity interests in Tianjin
Weikai held by Tianjin Weikai Shareholders (including present or
future registered capital and their rights and benefits, whether
through increase of capital and/or transfer of equity interest) to
Tianjin Subsidiary.

Consent letter of spouse

Parties:

The spouses of Tianjin Weikai Shareholders

Terms:

An indefinite term upon execution and shall continue to be

valid until the Tianjin Weikai Main Obligations are satisfied or
discharged in full.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R wm L oA

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)
Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)

Major terms of the Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements
(Cont’d)

e)  Consent letter of spouse (Cont’d)
Main Subject:

The spouses of Tianjin Weikai Shareholders shall unconditionally
agree to the Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements.

The spouses of Tianjin Weikai Shareholders undertake and
declare that the equity respectively owned by Tianjin Weikai
Shareholders in Tianjin Weikai contemplated on the Tianjin
Weikai Contractual Arrangements shall be Tianjin Weikai
Shareholders’ personal property respectively; and further, the
said spouses undertake that they shall not take any act that
causes or will cause any conflict and/or impediment to the
Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements.

Reason for using the Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements
and the significance to the Group

As advised by the legal adviser of the Company, the principal
business of AK Suzhou which involves technology for human
stem cell research & development and applications is regarded as
prohibited business for foreign entity under the PRC Law. As such,
the Group cannot acquire the equity interest in Tianjin Weikai at
that time. Having regard to such foreign investment restrictions, the
Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements were designed to provide
Tianjin Subsidiary and, thus the Group, with effective control over the
financial and operational policies of Tianjin Weikai and (to the extent
permitted by PRC laws and regulations) the right to acquire the equity
interest in Tianjin Weikai.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R wm L oA

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D) BHNZH (E)
Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d) KBE G ST (B)
Revenue and assets subject to the Tianjin Weikai Contractual FXEEHNEHNTHHERZ N REE
Arrangements
The revenue, net loss and total assets subject to the Tianjin Weikai ~ FK)Z2ES AN L2 Wz  FEE N EEEH
Contractual Arrangements are set out as follows: o
Period from
1 May
Year ended 2017 to
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
BE-ZE—t4F
BZE AH—HZE
—E-N\F —ET—tF
+=A=+—8 +=ZA=+—8H
ItEE #Y B
(HK$°000) (HK$000)
(F&x) (F#&m)
Revenue Yzt 1,643 742
Net loss FEE 107,385 7,317
Total assets BREE 10,665 101,990
For the year ended 31 December 2018, the revenue and net loss HE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE - ixim
subject to Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements amounted to & £ ZHE 2 Y 25 KB B8 9 Bl 2N & E Y 25
approximately 2.25% and 8.36% of the revenue and net loss of JHE18 7 492.25% [ 8.36% © A — & — )\ 4 ‘T’_

the Group respectively. As at 31 December 2018, the total assets
subject to Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements amounted to
approximately 0.75% of the total assets of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the revenue and net loss
subject to Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements amounted to
approximately 0.15% and 4.40% of the revenue and net loss of
the Group respectively. As at 31 December 2017, the total assets
subject to Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements amounted to
approximately 2.89% of the total assets of the Group.

A=+—8 " X269l
BB EEL0.75% °

BB ZBEELARS

HE-_ZT—+F+_-_A=Z+—HILFE " %%ﬁ
IENTY 2 WE R FBED AL AE B S
FEE 2 470.15% & 4.40% o A =T — t¢+:
A=+—H REHIEHVLHZBREELLSE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R wm L oA

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)
Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)

Material changes

Save as disclosed in this report, there has not been any material
changes in Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements and/or the
circumstances under which they were adopted.

Unwinding of Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements

Up to the date of this report, there has not been any unwinding of
any Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements, nor has there been
any failure to unwind any Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements
when the restrictions that led to the adoption of the Tianjin Weikai
Contractual Arrangements are removed.

Risks associated with the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to
mitigate the risks

The Group does not have any direct equity ownership in AK Suzhou
and/or Tianjin Weikai and has relied on the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and/or Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements,
as the case may be, to control, operate, and be entitled to the
economic benefits and risks arising from the respective businesses
of AK Suzhou and/or Tianjin Weikai in the PRC. However, there are
risks involved with the operations of AK Subsidiary and/or Tianjin
Subsidiary under the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and/or
Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements, as the case may be.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B E R T

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Risks associated with the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to
mitigate the risks (Cont’d)

)

There is no assurance that the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements could comply with future changes

in the regulatory requirements in the PRC and the

PRC government may determine that the AK Suzhou
Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements do not comply with applicable regulations

Current PRC laws and regulations prohibit foreign ownership of
companies engage in the businesses concerning technology for
research & development and applications of human stem cells,
gene diagnose and therapy. The businesses of AK Suzhou and
Tianjin Weikai are regarded as design and manufacturing of
pre-clinical cell and stem cell related equipment which involves
in technology for human stem cell research & development and
applications, in addition to providing contract research services.
The Company is a company incorporated under the laws of the
Cayman Islands. AK Subsidiary and Tianjin Subsidiary may not
engage in the businesses concerning technology for human
stem cell research & development and applications in the PRC
under current PRC laws. As a result, the Group will have to
conduct the business of AK Suzhou and Tianjin Weikai in the
PRC through the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and
Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements respectively.

Despite the fact that there is no indication that the AK Suzhou
Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements will be interfered or objected by any PRC
regulatory authorities, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
there is a possibility that the Ministry of Commerce and other
competent authorities may have different opinions on the
interpretation of the relevant regulations and would not agree
that the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin
Weikai Contractual Arrangements comply with the current
PRC laws, regulations or rules or those that may be adopted in
future, and the authorities may deny the validity, effectiveness
and enforceability of the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements
and Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements.

If the authorities may deny the validity, effectiveness
and enforceability of any of the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements,
it could have a material adverse impact on the Group’s
businesses, financial condition and results of operations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B E R T

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Risks associated with the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to
mitigate the risks (Cont’d)

(ii)

The AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin
Weikai Contractual Arrangements may not be as effective
in providing control over and entitlement to the economic
interests in the Project Company (“either AK Suzhou or
Tianjin Weikai or both as the case may be”) as direct
ownership

The AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai
Contractual Arrangements may not be as effective in providing
the Group with control over and entitlement to the economic
interests in the Project Company as direct ownership. If AK
Subsidiary had direct ownership of AK Suzhou, AK Subsidiary
would be able to directly exercise its rights as a shareholder
to effect changes in the board of directors of AK Suzhou.
However, under the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements,
AK Subsidiary can only look to and rely on AK Suzhou and the
Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders to perform their contractual
obligations under the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements
such that AK Subsidiary can exercise effective control over AK
Suzhou. The Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders may not act in
the best interests of AK Suzhou or may not perform its/their
obligations under the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements,
and in that case, AK Subsidiary may replace the Suzhou
Biomedical Shareholders by its other nominees pursuant to
the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements. However, if any
dispute relating to the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements
remains unresolved, AK Subsidiary will have to enforce its rights
under the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and seek to
interpret the terms of the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements
in accordance with the PRC laws and will be subject to
uncertainties in the PRC legal system.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B E R T

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Risks associated with the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to
mitigate the risks (Cont’d)

(ii)

The AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin
Weikai Contractual Arrangements may not be as effective
in providing control over and entitlement to the economic
interests in the Project Company (“either AK Suzhou or
Tianjin Weikai or both as the case may be”) as direct
ownership (Cont’d)

It will be the same situation for the Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements. If Tianjin Subsidiary had direct ownership of
Tianjin Weikai, Tianjin Subsidiary would be able to directly
exercise its rights as a shareholder to effect changes in the
board of directors of Tianjin Weikai. However, under the Tianjin
Weikai Contractual Arrangements, Tianjin Subsidiary can
only look to and rely on Tianjin Weikai and the Tianjin Weikai
Shareholders to perform their contractual obligations under
the Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements such that Tianjin
Subsidiary can exercise effective control over Tianjin Weikai. The
Tianjin Weikai Shareholders may not act in the best interests
of Tianjin Weikai or may not perform its/their obligations under
the Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements, and in that case,
Tianjin Subsidiary may replace the Tianjin Weikai Shareholders
by its other nominees pursuant to the Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements. However, if any dispute relating to the Tianjin
Weikai Contractual Arrangements remains unresolved, Tianjin
Subsidiary will have to enforce its rights under the Tianjin Weikai
Contractual Arrangements and seek to interpret the terms of
the Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements in accordance with
the PRC laws and will be subject to uncertainties in the PRC
legal system.

The AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai
Contractual Arrangements are governed by the PRC laws.
When a dispute arises under any of the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements,
the relevant parties thereto shall settle the dispute through
negotiation in an amicable manner. In case the dispute is not
resolved, the parties to the dispute may have to rely on legal
remedies under the PRC laws. The AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements
provided that dispute will be submitted to the China International
Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission for arbitration to
be conducted in Beijing. The decision of such arbitration is final
and binding on the parties to the dispute.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B E R T

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Risks associated with the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to
mitigate the risks (Cont’d)

(ii)

(iii)

The AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin
Weikai Contractual Arrangements may not be as effective
in providing control over and entitlement to the economic
interests in the Project Company (“either AK Suzhou or
Tianjin Weikai or both as the case may be”) as direct
ownership (Cont’d)

Since the legal environment in the PRC is different from that
in Hong Kong and other jurisdictions, the uncertainties in the
PRC legal system could limit the ability of the Group to enforce
the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai
Contractual Arrangements. There is no assurance that such
arbitration result will be in favour of the Group and/or that
there will not be any difficulties in enforcing any arbitral awards
granted, including specific performance or injunctive relief and
claiming damages by the Group. As the Group may not be
able to obtain sufficient remedies in a timely manner, its ability
to exert effective control over AK Suzhou and/or Tianjin Weikai
and the conduct of the businesses concerning technology for
human stem cell research & development and applications
could be materially and adversely affected, and may disrupt the
business of the Group and have a material adverse impact on
Group’s business, prospects and results of operation.

Potential conflicts of interest among the respective
shareholders and the Project Company may exist

(@)  Potential conflicts of interest among AK Subsidiary, AK
Suzhou, the Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders may exist

AK Subsidiary shall rely on the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements to exercise control over and to draw the
economic benefits from AK Suzhou. AK Subsidiary may
not be able to provide sufficient incentives to the Suzhou
Biomedical Shareholders for the purpose of encouraging
them to act in the best interests of AK Subsidiary, other
than stipulating the relevant obligations in the AK Suzhou
Contractual Arrangements. The Suzhou Biomedical
Shareholders may breach the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements in the event of conflicts of interest or
deterioration of its/their relationship with AK Subsidiary,
the results of which may have a material adverse impact
on AK Subsidiary’s business, prospects and results of
operation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B E R T

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Risks associated with the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to
mitigate the risks (Cont’d)

(iii)  Potential conflicts of interest among the respective
shareholders and the Project Company may exist (Cont’d)

@

)

Potential conflicts of interest among AK Subsidiary, AK
Suzhou, the Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders may exist
(Cont’d)

It is not assured that if conflicts arise, the Suzhou
Biomedical Shareholders will act in the best interests
of AK Subsidiary or that the conflicts will be resolved in
favour of AK Subsidiary. If any of the Suzhou Biomedical
Shareholders fails to perform its obligations under the
respective AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements, AK
Subsidiary may have to rely on legal remedies under
the PRC laws through legal proceedings, which may
be expensive, time-consuming and disruptive to AK
Subsidiary’s operations and will be subject to uncertainties
as stated above.

Potential confiicts of interest among Tianjin Subsidliary,
Tianjin Weikai, the Tianjin Weikai Shareholders may exist

Tianjin Subsidiary shall rely on the Tianjin Weikai
Contractual Arrangements to exercise control over and
to draw the economic benefits from Tianjin Weikai. Tianjin
Subsidiary may not be able to provide sufficient incentives
to the Tianjin Weikai Shareholders for the purpose of
encouraging them to act in the best interests of Tianjin
Subsidiary, other than stipulating the relevant obligations
in the Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements. The
Tianjin Weikai Shareholders may breach the Tianjin
Weikai Contractual Arrangements in the event of conflicts
of interest or deterioration of its/their relationship with
Tianjin Subsidiary, the results of which may have a
material adverse impact on Tianjin Subsidiary’s business,
prospects and results of operation.

It is not assured that if conflicts arise, the Tianjin Weikai
Shareholders will act in the best interests of Tianjin
Subsidiary or that the conflicts will be resolved in favour of
Tianjin Subsidiary. If any of the Tianjin Weikai Shareholders
fails to perform its obligations under the respective Tianjin
Weikai Contractual Arrangements, Tianjin Subsidiary
may have to rely on legal remedies under the PRC laws
through legal proceedings, which may be expensive,
time-consuming and disruptive to Tianjin Subsidiary’s
operations and will be subject to uncertainties as stated
above.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B E R T
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Risks associated with the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual

Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to Bz it (&)
mitigate the risks (Cont’d)
(iv) The AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin (iv) B (FM)BHZHRXEEFNEHNZH

Weikai Contractual Arrangements may be subject to
scrutiny of the PRC tax authorities and additional tax may
be imposed

The AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai
Contractual Arrangements may be subject to scrutiny of the
PRC tax authorities and additional tax may be imposed on the
Tianjin Subsidiary and/or AK Subsidiary, as the case may be.
Tianjin Subsidiary and/or AK Subsidiary, as the case may be,
may face adverse tax consequences if the PRC tax authorities
determine that the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and
Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements were not entered into
based on arm’s length negotiations. If the PRC tax authorities
determine that the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and
Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements were not entered
into on an arm’s length basis, they may adjust the income and
expenses of Tianjin Subsidiary and/or AK Subsidiary, as the
case may be, for the PRC tax purposes, which could result in
higher tax liabilities on Tianjin Subsidiary and/or AK Subsidiary,
as the case may be.

The operation results of the Tianjin Subsidiary and/or AK
Subsidiary, as the case may be, may be materially and
adversely affected if the tax liabilities of AK Subsidiary, Tianjin
Subsidiary, Tianjin Weikai or AK Suzhou increase significantly or
if they are required to pay interest on late payments.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B E R T

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Risks associated with the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to
mitigate the risks (Cont’d)

(v) Ability to acquire the entire equity interests in or assets
of the Project Company

@

AK Subsidiary’s ability to acquire the entire equity interests
in or assets of AK Suzhou may be subject to various
limitations and substantial costs

In case AK Subsidiary exercises its options to acquire all
or part of the equity interests and/or assets of AK Suzhou
under the relevant exclusive option agreement, the
acquisition of the entire equity interests in or the assets
of AK Suzhou may only be conducted to the extent as
permitted by the applicable PRC laws and will be subject
to necessary approvals and relevant procedures under
applicable PRC laws. In addition, the abovementioned
acquisitions may be subject to a minimum price limitation
(such as an appraised value for the entire equity interests
in or all assets of AK Suzhou) or other limitations as
imposed by applicable PRC laws. Further, a substantial
amount of other costs (if any), expenses and time
may be involved in transferring the ownership of AK
Suzhou, which may have a material adverse impact on
AK Subsidiary’s businesses, prospects and results of
operation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B E R T
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Risks associated with the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to
mitigate the risks (Cont’d)

(v) WEEERAAZHKREXETEZEED ()

(v) Ability to acquire the entire equity interests in or assets

of the Project Company (Cont’d)

(b)  Tianjin Subsidiary’s ability to acquire the entire equity (b) KEME L G EXEE .z 2EK
interests in or assets of Tianjin Weikai may be subject to L& E 2 A5 0] BEE 7 2 E R #I R
various limitations and substantial costs AEHLFK

In case Tianjin Subsidiary exercises its options to acquire
all or part of the equity interests and/or assets of Tianjin
Weikai under the exclusive option agreement, the
acquisition of the entire equity interests in or the assets
of Tianjin Weikai may only be conducted to the extent as
permitted by the applicable PRC laws and will be subject
to necessary approvals and relevant procedures under
applicable PRC laws. In addition, the abovementioned
acquisitions may be subject to a minimum price limitation
(such as an appraised value for the entire equity interests
in or all assets of Tianjin Weikai) or other limitations as
imposed by applicable PRC laws. Further, a substantial
amount of other costs (if any), expenses and time may
be involved in transferring the ownership of Tianjin
Weikai, which may have a material adverse impact on
Tianjin Subsidiary’s businesses, prospects and results of
operation.
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In light of the above risks associated with the AK E‘JLL,\ﬁ (#&M) & '7??3%&%5?
Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin Weikal I EHNLHEE BB P RE
Contractual Arrangements, the Group has adopted IE%,%IN ROEF %UE&WﬁB Es

a set of procedures, systems and internal control
measures to ensure the sound and effective operation
of the Group and the implementation of the AK Suzhou
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Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual ANHBETEBEBIENANRARE
Arrangements. Such procedures, systems and internal HREEggE LmRBBRTKEA

control measures include (i) regular discussions of matters
relating to compliance and regulatory enquiries from
governmental authorities, if any, by the board of directors
of the Company at board meetings; and (ii) retaining legal
adviser and/or other professional to assist the Group
to deal with specific issues arising from the AK Suzhou
Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements, if so required.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R wm L oA

OTHER COMMITMENTS

The Company signed two sponsorship agreements with the University
of Oxford for the researches on cell therapy and tissue engineering.
The Company agreed to provide GBP9.0 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$93.0 million) to the University of Oxford by
instalments over the period covered by the agreements. As at 31
December 2018, the Company has paid GBP5.05 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$55.9 million) to the University of Oxford.

CHARGES IN ASSETS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018, bank loans of HK$389.3 million (2017:
HK$771.8 million) were secured by the Group’s pledged bank
deposits with carrying amounts of HK$417.6 million (2017: HK$818.1
million). As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities (2017: Nil).

DETAILS OF FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENT OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any concrete
plans for material investment or capital assets as at 31 December
2018.

However, the Group will continue to seek investment opportunities in
line with the strategic development of the Group both at home and
abroad to promote the sustainable and steady development of the
Group.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 334 (2017: 449) employees
located in Hong Kong and Mainland China. As an equal opportunity
employer, the Group’s remuneration and bonus policies are
determined with reference to the performance and experience of
individual employees. The total amount of employee remuneration
(including that of the Directors and retirement benefits scheme
contributions) of the Group for the year was approximately HK$110.6
million (period from 1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017: HK$101.4
million). In addition, the Group may offer options to employees as a
recognition of and reward for their efforts and contributions to the
Group.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES
FEFLEHTRARGN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Ray Yip (“Dr. Yip”), aged 68, is an executive Director and the
chairman of the Board of the Company. He is also the chief medicine
officer, the global chief strategy officer, the chief development
strategy officer, the chairman of strategy committee, a member of
strategy committee, and a member of the remuneration committee
of the Company. Dr. Yip joined the Group in February 2017 as a
nonexecutive Director. He had been re-designated as an executive
Director in September 2017. He is an international public health leader
who has made a significant contribution to global health in the areas
of nutrition, maternal and child health, HIV/AIDS and tobacco control.
Dr. Yip has been working on emergency response to war and famine,
long term program and policy development effort in the PRC in recent
years. Dr. Yip was the founding director of the Chinese office of U.S.
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (the “CDC”) in 2013, and
the China program director of the Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation
(the “Foundation”) in 2017. Dr. Yip is known as a specialist for health
and medical issues in the PRC.

Dr. Yip’s major contributions to the global health include: refining the
international criteria for screening for malnutrition and anemia and
increasing the awareness of diarrhea as a major contributor to acute
malnutrition. His work in the PRC has resulted in the mainstreaming of
hepatitis B vaccine for routine immunization, the adoption of hospital
based delivery as a strategy which significantly reduced maternal
mortality, transformation of the national AIDS response to one
targeting those high-risk groups by accepting the role of civil society
and assisting in engineering the policy support for tobacco control at
the top level.

Dr. Yip established the Foundation’s mission in China by assisting the
government in addressing the key public health issues such as HIV
and tobacco. He also transformed the Foundation’s strategy in giving
it a new focus “China-for-Africa” which includes identifying successful
Chinese experience and technology to assist in the development of
Africa. Since 2017, Dr. Yip has served as a special advisor focusing
on health and clean energy for bgC3, a think-tank headed by Bill
Gates.

Dr. Yip served at the faculty of the University of California-San
Francisco between 1990 and 1994 and was an adjunct professor
at the Friedman School and Nutrition Science and Policy of Tufts
University between 2006 and 2010. Currently, Dr. Yip is an adjunct
professor at the Research Centre for Public Health of Tsinghua
University.

Dr. Yip graduated from the Medical School and the School of Public
Health of the University of Minnesota, and he was then certified as a
pediatric hematologist-oncologist.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES
FEFLEHTRARGN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONT’D)

Mr. Wang Xuejun (“Mr. Wang”), aged 51, is an executive Director
and the chief executive officer of the Company. He is also the chief
executive officer of the Stem Cell Division of the Company, and serves
as a director of some subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Wang joined
the Group in September 2018. He graduated from Nankai University
and obtained a master’s degree of business administration and
medicine. He was an executive deputy general manager of Vcanbio
Cell & Gene Engineering Corp., Ltd. (stock code on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange: SH600645), general manager of marketing center
of Union Stemcell & Gene Engineering Co., Ltd.* (17 F # 48 fg &
T AR AF]) and head of its subsidiary, and a director and general
manager of certain subsidiaries of Heze Biotech Co., Ltd.* (FI)Z £ )
FHE B[R 2 7]). He was also a director and general manager of Heze
Biotech Co., Ltd.* (A2 A EHE AR A 7]), and a doctor at Tianjin
Rehabilitation Center.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Bing Woon, sBs, Jp, (“Mr. Chan”), aged 73, is an
independent non-executive Director. He is also a member of the
audit committee, the nomination committee and the remuneration
committee of the Company. Mr. Chan joined the Group in March
2014. Mr. Chan is a consultant of Yung, Yu, Yuen & Co., Solicitors
and Notaries. He has more than 40 years’ experience in the legal
profession. Mr. Chan has been involved in numerous public duties
including being Founding Chairman and Honorary Advisor of the Joint
Mediation Helpline Office. He is also a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors, a council member of the Hong Kong
Society of Notaries, a general accredited mediator of Hong Kong
International Arbitration Centre and the Law of Society of Hong Kong.
Mr. Chan was a member of the Hospital Authority, and the chairman
of the Hospital Governing Committee of Castle Peak Hospital and
Siu Lam Hospital and a past chairman of the Hong Kong Mediation
Council. He is currently an independent non-executive director of
Kwoon Chung Bus Holdings Limited (the shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 306).

* for identification purposes only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES
FEFLEHTRARGN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONT'D)

Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest (“Mr. Wong”), aged 51, is an
independent non-executive Director. He is also the chairman of
the audit committee of the Company, and a member of each of
the nomination committee and the remuneration committee of the
Company. Mr. Wong joined the Group in February 2017. He has over
25 years of experience in venture capital, corporate finance, business
development and general management. Mr. Wong has served as the
president and group chief financial officer of KVB Kunlun Holdings
Limited (“KVB”), and as the executive director, chief financial officer
and the company secretary of KVB’s group company, KVB Kunlun
Financial Group Limited (the shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange, HKEXx stock code: 6877). Mr. Wong has also served as an
independent non-executive director of Renheng Enterprise Holdings
Limited (HKEx stock code: 3628), HongDa Financial Holding Limited
(HKEx stock code: 1822), Progressive Path Group Holdings Limited
(HKEx stock code: 1581) and Common Splendor International Health
Industry Limited (HKEx stock code: 286).

Mr. Wong also served as an independent non-executive director
of Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
(HKEx stock code: 1355) from November 2016 to September 2018.
He also served several positions at Adamas Finance Asia Limited (LSE
stock code: ADAM), including its executive director from May 2008
to February 2014, its chief financial officer from May 2008 to October
2011 and its non-executive director since February 2014,

Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor’s degree in business administration
from The University of Hong Kong, a master’s degree of science in
investment management from The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology and a master’s degree of science in electronic
engineering from The Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Wong was a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He was also a chartered financial analyst of the Institute
of Chartered Financial Analysts and a fellow member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He is also acting as
the deputy chairman of the HKU Convocation, the court member of
The University of Hong Kong, the past president of the Hong Kong
University Graduates Association and a committee member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants Hong Kong.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES
FEFLEHTRARGN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONT'D)

Dr. Fang Jun (“Dr. Fang”), aged 56, is an independent non-
executive Director. He is also the chairman of each of the nomination
committee and the remuneration committee of the Company and
a member of the audit committee. Dr. Fang joined the Group in
December 2017. He served as an executive member and the
executive vice-chairman of the Cross-straits Medicine Exchange
Association® (/& I3k 7 5 B8 B &1 A X R 1 &), an executive member
and the vice-chairman of China Sexology Association* (71 Bl 14 £l &),
the publisher and the executive chief editor of the China Sexology
Journal# (¢ EI MR £)) and the deputy head of the Sexology
Research Center of Peking University Health Science Center* (1t &
KERB2 B 5T E2FF 9T AR Ly, Dr. Fang also assumed various positions
such as the executive member and the secretary general of Wu
Jieping Medical Foundation (R & FEE2E & ). Dr. Fang graduated
from Peking University Health Science Center with a master’s degree
in Social Medicine and Health Service Management and a doctorate
degree in Epidemiology and Health Statistics.

Dr. Fang also served as an independent non-executive director of

HongDa Financial Holding Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (1822.HK) from July 2014 to May 2018.

* for identification purposes only
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Pursuant to Rule 18.44(2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the Board is
pleased to present hereby the corporate governance report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2018 (the “Reporting
Period”), i.e. from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices. The Group believes that high standard of
corporate governance provides a framework and solid foundation for
achieving, attracting and retaining the high standard and quality of the
Group’s management, promoting high standards of sound internal
control, accountability and transparency to all shareholders of the
Company (“Shareholders”) and also meeting the expectations of the
Group’s various stakeholders.

The Company has complied with all the code provisions as set out in
the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report
contained in the Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules (the “CG
Code”) throughout the Reporting Period, with the exception of code
provision A.6.7 of the CG Code.

Under code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent
non-executive Directors and other non-executive Directors, as equal
board members, should attend general meetings and develop a
balanced understanding of the views of Shareholders. One of the
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest,
did not attend the Company’s annual general meeting held on 11
May 2018 (the “AGM”) due to his engagements in other business
commitments. Other Board members, including members of
each of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee, attended the AGM and made themselves
available to answer questions to ensure effective communication with
the Shareholders.

CODES AND POLICIES
Securities Dealing Code

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions as set out in the GEM Listing Rules as the
required standard for securities transactions by the Directors. Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, each of the Directors, has
confirmed that they have fully complied with the required standards of
dealings regarding securities transaction by the Directors as set out
on the GEM Listing Rules throughout the Reporting Period.
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CODES AND POLICIES (CONT’D)
Code of Ethics

The Company adopts a Code of Ethics that applies to the
Company'’s principal executive officer and senior financial officers
in the conduct and practice of financial management and lays
down the key principles that they shall follow and advocate, which
include honest and ethical conduct; full, fair, accurate, timely and
understandable disclosure; compliance with the GEM Listing Rules
and accounting standards and regulations; prompt internal reporting;
and accountability for adherence to the code. The Code of Ethics is
also intended to promote the ethical standards of all the employees,
officers and Directors in the workplace, and advocate high standards
of professional conduct and work performance.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible to the Shareholders for leadership and
control of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Company and its businesses by directing and
supervising the Company’s affairs.

Board Composition

Details of the membership of the Board together with their roles and
functions are posted on the Stock Exchange and the Company’s
website and such information shall be updated as soon as practicable
whenever there are changes.

The composition of the Board reflects a balance of skills and
experience desirable for an effective leadership of the Company.

As at 31 December 2018, the Board had five Directors, including two
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)
Board Composition (Cont’d)
Given below are names of the Directors as at the date of this report:

Executive Directors

Dr. Ray Yip (Chairman of the Board and
member of the Remuneration
Committee)

Mr. Wang Xuejun (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Bing Woon (member of each of the Audlit
Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the
Remuneration Committee)

(chairman of the Audit Committee,
member of each of the
Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee)

(chairman of each of the
Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee and
member of the Audit Committee)

Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Emest

Dr. Fang Jun

Biographical details of each director are set out in the section
“Biographical Details of Directors and Chief Executives” on pages 59
to 62 of this annual report.

There is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship amongst the Directors.

Functions of the Board

The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies with particular
attention paid to the growth and financial performance of the Group.

The principle functions of the Board are to:
° establish the strategic direction and development of the Group;

° determine the broad policies, strategies and objectives of the
Group;

° approve annual budgets, major funding proposals, investment
and divestment proposals;
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)
Functions of the Board (Cont’d)

° oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy and integrity
of internal controls, risk management, financial reporting and
compliance;

° approve the nominations of Directors by Nomination Committee
and appointment of external auditors;

° ensure accurate, adequate and timely reporting to, and
communication with Shareholders;

° monitor and manage potential conflicts of interest of
management, Board members and Shareholders, including
misuse of corporate assets and abuse in related party
transactions; and assume responsibility for corporate
governance.

The Board delegates day-to-day management, administration
and operations of the Group to the executive Directors and
senior management, while reserving certain key matters for its
approval. The management is responsible for the implementation
of the Company'’s strategies and policies, while the progress and
development are periodically reviewed by Directors. During the
Reporting Period, the management provided all members of the
Board with monthly management updates (“Monthly Management
Updates”) in accordance with the code provision C.1.2 of the CG
Code. The Monthly Management Updates contained latest financials
with summaries of key events of the Group, giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company’s performance, position
and prospects.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity in
the boardroom and has adopted the board diversity policy (“Board
Diversity Policy”). The Board Diversity Policy sets out the approach to
achieve diversity on the Board.

The Board has set measurable objectives to implement the
Board Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee has primary
responsibility for identifying and giving recommendation suitably
qualified candidates to become members of the Board. Selection
of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The ultimate Board decision will be based on merit
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)
Board Diversity Policy (Cont’d)

The Board has also regularly reviewed the contribution of each
Director as to whether the Director is spending sufficient time to
perform his/her responsibilities to the Board.

The Board considers that the current composition of the Board,
with core competencies in areas such as accounting and finance,
business and management, medical science, legal profession,
marketing management, media development and M&A, is appropriate
for the businesses of the Company. The Board will review its
composition from time to time taking into consideration of the specific
needs for the overall Company and its subsidiaries’ businesses.

Continuing Professional Development

The Company Secretary is responsible for updating the Board on
governance and regulatory matters.

Training will be provided to newly appointed director to his/her
individual needs. This includes introduction to the Group business
activities, their responsibilities and duties, and other regulatory
requirements.

The Company will arrange and/or introduce training courses and/
or reading materials for Directors to develop and explore their
knowledge and skills.

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills, ensuring that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. During the
Reporting Period, all Directors participated in continuous professional
development and had provided the Company with records (if any) on
their participation. The individual training record of each Director for
the Reporting Period is set out below:

Directors and Types of continuous professional development
programmes

Ray Yip

Wang Xuejun

Chan Bing Woon
Wong Yiu Kit Ermnest
Fang Jun
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)
Continuing Professional Development (Cont’d)

Directors and Types of continuous professional development
programmes (Cont’d)

A. attending seminars/meetings/forums/conferences/courses/workshops
organized by professional bodies or regulatories

B. reading journals/newsletters/seminar materials/publications/magazines

C. reading memoranda issued or materials provided by the Company

All information and materials aforesaid relate, but not limited to the
latest development of the GEM Listing Rules, other applicable legal
and regulatory matters as well as directors’ duties and responsibilities.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering the
liabilities of the Directors that may arise out of the corporate activities,
which is in compliance with the CG Code. The insurance coverage is
reviewed on an annual basis.

Appointment, Election and Re-election

Appointment of new Directors is a matter for consideration by the
Nomination Committee. It reviews the profiles of the candidates
and makes recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
nomination and retirement of the Directors.

According to the Company’s articles of association, one-third of the
Directors are required to retire from office at each annual general
meeting, provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once in every three years. The Directors who will
retire at the annual general meeting of the Company shall be those
appointed by the Board during the year and those who have been the
longest in office since their last election or re-election.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)
Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The following sets out the responsibilities for the Directors in relation
to the quarterly, interim and annual financial statements:

Annual Report and Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which gives a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and in presenting the quarterly,
interim and annual financial statements, and announcements
to Shareholders, the Directors aim to present a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s position and prospects.

Accounting Policy

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial statements,
the Group uses appropriate accounting policies that are consistently
applied, and that all applicable accounting standards are followed.

Accounting Records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps
accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the
financial position of the Group and which enable the preparation of
financial statements in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards as promulgated by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

Safeguarding Assets

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary
steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent or detect
fraud and other irregularities.

Going Concern

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Board and General Meetings

The Board schedules four meetings a year at approximately quarterly
intervals and organises additional meetings as and when required.
The Directors can attend meetings in persons or through other means
of electronic communication in accordance with the Company’s
articles of association. Notice of at least fourteen days is given of a
regular Board meeting to give all Directors an opportunity to attend.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)
Board and General Meetings (Cont’d)

For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice time
is generally given. During the Reporting Period, the Board held nine
meetings, of which four were regular meetings. The following table
shows the attendance of individual Directors at the meetings held
during the Reporting Period:
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HttEEghZBeem RENGERBEL
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Attendance/ Attendance/
Number of Number of
General Meetings Board Meetings
Name of Directors BSR4 entitled to attend entitled to attend
(From 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018) (Z2-NF-A-RHZE HE/ BRLE HE/BRELE
“E-\F+ZA=+—AHH) BREAEHE ETE8EYA
Executive Directors YTES
Ray Yip EZ il 7/9
Wang Xuejun IZE 0/0 2/2
(appointed with effect from 3 September 2018) (BZE-N\FNA-HREZT)
Chen Chunguo BEEH il 6/6
(resigned with effect from 6 July 2018) (BZE-NFt A BREEE)
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Cui Zhanfeng EhHE il 4/4
(resigned with effect from 1 June 2018) (BZZ-N\FAA—HEET)
Xiong Chengyu BRET 1/1 2/4
(resigned with effect from 1 June 2018) (B N\EXA—BEET)
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Chan Bing Woon BRI il 8/9
Wong Yiu Kit Emest A 0/1 9/9
Fang Jun ak:3 il 9/9
Pang Chung Fai Benny EHIE 11 3/4

(resigned with effect from 1 June 2018)

(B2 \FRA-BEEE)

Board papers are circulated at least three days (or other agreed
period) before the regular Board meetings and/or other Board/
Committees meetings to enable the Directors to make informed
decisions on matters to be raised at the Board meetings. In addition,
the Company has maintained a procedure for the Directors to seek
independent professional advice, in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense in discharging their duties to the Company.

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
prepares minutes and/or written resolutions and keeps records of
matters discussed and decisions resolved at all Board meetings.
The Company Secretary also keeps the minutes, which are open
for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Director.
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CHAIRMAN AND CEO

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Codeg, the role of the Chairman
and the CEO should be separated and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the
Chairman and the CEO should be clearly established and set out in
writing.

During the year, the roles of the Chairman and the CEO were
segregated and performed by different individuals.

On 1 June 2018, Professor Cui Zhanfeng has ceased to serve as the
Chairman. On 3 December 2018, Dr. Ray Yip was appointed to serve
as the Chairman.

On 6 July 2018, Mr. Chen Chunguo has ceased to serve as the CEO.
On 3 September 2018, Mr. Wang Xuejun was appointed to serve as
the CEO.

The segregation of duties ensures a clear distinction of responsibilities
between the Chairman and the CEO which allows a balance of power
between the Board and the management of the Group, and ensures
their independence and accountability. There is no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationship between the Chairman
and the CEO.

Either Professor Cui Zhanfeng or Dr. Ray Yip, as the Chairman during
the Reporting Period, has taken overall responsibility for providing
leadership for the Board. They ensure that:

° the Board functions effectively, and that all key and appropriate
issues are properly briefed and discussed by the Board in a
timely manner;

° the responsibilities for drawing up the agenda for each Board
meeting and, where appropriate, taking into account any
matters proposed by each Director for inclusion in the agenda;

° good corporate governance practices and procedures are
established and encourages all Directors to make full and active
participation to the affairs of the Group; and

° the Board acts in the best interests of the Group.

Either Mr. Chen Chunguo or Mr. Wang Xuejun as the CEO during the
Reporting Period, was responsible for the day-to-day management
of the business of the Group, attends to formulation and successful
implementation of policies, and assumes full accountability to the
Board for all operations of the Group.

Mr. Wang possesses extensive experience in business development
and corporate management. He has given valuable experience and
contribution to the Group. Working with the management team of
each core business division, he ensures the smooth operations and
development of the Group. He maintains a continuing dialogue with
the Chairman and all Directors to keep them fully informed of all major
business development and issues.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Under code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term and are subject to re-election.
All non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) are appointed for a term of two years and they are required
to retire by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of
the Company in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the Reporting Period, in compliance with Rules 5.05A, 5.05(1)
and (2) of the GEM Listing Rules, there were three independent non-
executive Directors representing more than one-third of the board
so that there is a strong element of independence in the Board to
exercise independent judgment and of sufficient caliber and number
for their views to carry weight. Amongst them, at least one of the
independent non-executive Directors have professional qualifications,
or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The independent non-executive Directors have the same duties of
care and skill and fiduciary duties as the executive Directors. Their
functions include, but not limited to:

° participating in Board meetings to bring in independent
judgment to bear on issues of corporate strategy, corporate
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and
standard of conducts;

° taking the lead when potential conflicts of interests arise;

° serving on the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee, if invited; and

o scrutinising the Group’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of
performance.

The Company has received an annual written confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive Directors of their independence
to the Company pursuant to the requirements of the Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

According to code provision D.3 of the CG code, the Board is
responsible for performing the corporate governance duties of the
Company in accordance with the written terms of reference adopted
by the Board on 15 March 2012. The Board shall have the following
duties and responsibilities for performing the corporate governance
duties of the Company:

° to develop and review the Company'’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

o to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

° to review the Company’s compliance with the code provisions
and disclosure in the corporate governance report in the annual
report of the Company.

During the Reporting Period, the Board has performed the above
corporate governance functions through discussion in the Board
meeting and by reviewing the Company’s policies and practices from
time to time in accordance with the legal and regulatory requirements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is charged with the duty to put in place a proper corporate
governance structure of the Company. It is primarily responsible for
setting directions, formulating strategies, monitoring performance and
managing risks of the Group. Under the Board, there are currently
3 subcommittees, namely the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee. All these committees
perform their distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms
of reference and assist the Board in supervising certain functions of
the senior management.
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BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

According to Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has
to establish an audit committee comprising of at least three members
who must be non-executive directors only, and the majority thereof
must be independent non-executive directors, at least one of whom
must have appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise. The Audit Committee has
been established since 4 July 2001 with written terms of reference
which was revised on 16 March 2016 in compliance with the code
provision C.3.3 and C.3.7 of the CG Code.

During the Reporting Period, the total members of the Audit
Committee are three and all are independent non-executive Directors.

Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest has served as chairman of the Audit
Committee. The quorum shall be any two members.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee has been posted on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The principal
functions of the Audit Committee include:

° to consider and recommend the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditors;

° to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of
external auditors, any questions of resignation or dismissal of
external auditors;

° to review and monitor external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

° to discuss with external auditors the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

° to develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditors to supply non-audit services and to make
recommendations on any measures for improvements to be
taken;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D) EEEE
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Audit Committee (Cont’d)

to review the quarterly, interim and annual financial statements
and the quarterly, interim and annual reports before submission
to the Board, focusing particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(i)  major judgmental areas;

(i) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(iv)  the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(vy  compliance with accounting principles and standards;
and

(vi) compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

to review the Group’s financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems and ensure that the management has
performed its duty to have an effective internal control system;

to consider major investigations findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its
own initiative and management’s response;

to review the external auditors’ management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditors to management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control
and management’s response and to ensure that the Board will
provide a timely response to the issues raised; and

to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)
Audit Committee (Cont’d)

The Audit Committee has explicit authority to investigate into any
matter under the scope of its duties and the authority to obtain
independent professional advice. It is given full access to and
assistance from the management and reasonable resources to
discharge its duties properly.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee has met once with
the external auditor without the presence of the management.

The Group’s results for the three months ended 31 March 2018, six
months ended 30 June 2018, nine months ended 30 September
2018 and audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2018 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

During the Reporting Period, five meetings of the Audit Committee
were held to review and supervise the financial reporting process
and internal control of the Group. The following table shows the
attendance of the members of Audit Committee at the meetings of
the Audit Committee held during the Reporting Period:

EEZEE(A)
FRESE (F)

ERZEGERBEEN  ATHEBREHERN 2T
MEE TEERENBYEXER -ZEEN
FEHEBEEERESHY  WEAENSGEER
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Attendance/
Number of Meetings

Name of Audit Committee Members ERZEEREHSR entitled to attend
(From 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018) —N\F—A—HB8% HE B
—\F+-A=+—HEHM) HESEHE

Non-executive Directors EHITES

Cui Zhanfeng B 3/3
(resigned with effect from 1 June 2018) (BEZE—N\FRA—ABHT)

Xiong Chengyu AR F 3/3
(resigned with effect from 1 June 2018) (BZZE—NFEXH BT

Independent Non-executive Directors BIUFHTES

Wong Yiu Kit Ernest E=RA 5/5

Chan Bing Woon g ospeal 5/5

Fang Jun T & 5/5

Pang Chung Fai Benny TR 3/3
(resigned with effect from 1 June 2018) (BZZE—NFRH BT

Full minutes of the Audit Committee are kept by the Company
Secretary. Minutes are drafted and finalised in sufficient details and
are circulated to all members of the Audit Committee, as the case
may be, for their comments and records within reasonable time after
the conclusion of the meetings.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)
Nomination Committee

According to code provision A.5.1 of the CG Code, the Company
has to set up a nomination committee with a majority of the
members thereof being independent non-executive directors. The
Nomination Committee has been established since 22 July 2005 with
written terms of reference which was revised on 16 March 2016 in
compliance with code provision A.5.2 of the CG code.

During the Reporting Period, the total members of the Nomination
Committee are three and all are independent non-executive Directors.

Dr. Fang Jun has served as chairman of the Nomination Committee.
The Nomination Committee is scheduled to meet at least once a year.
The quorum shall be any two members.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee has been
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
The principal functions of the Nomination Committee include:

° to make recommendations to the Board on all new
appointments or re-appointments of Directors, the
establishment of a succession plan for Directors, in particular
the Chairman and the CEO and the composition of the Board;

° to identify and nominate qualified individuals, subject to the
approval of the Board, to be additional Directors or to fill
vacancy in the Board as and when they arise;

° to assess the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the
contribution by each Director to the Board;

° to review the Board structure, size, composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) and diversity as well
as the independent element of the Board on an annual basis
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

° to develop the criteria for selection of Directors; and

° to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)

Nomination Committee (Cont’d)

The chairman of the Nomination Committee will report to the Board
on its proceedings and recommendations after each meeting.

During the Reporting Period, five meetings of the Nomination
Committee were held to review and recommend the structure, size,
composition and diversity of the Board. Altogether the members of
the Board bring a wide range of knowledge and experience to the
Board, which contributes to the effective direction of the Company.

i%;g n‘a
EEZEE (B)

i

The following table shows the attendance of the members of 2154t
Nomination Committee at the meetings of the Nomination Committee

held during the Reporting Period:

Name of Nomination Committee Members

REZEENENR
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Attendance/
Number of Meetings
entitled to attend

(From 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018) (ZZE—\&—HA—H=ZE HE B
—ET-N\F+-A=+—HEHM) HESREE

Executive Director HTES

Chen Chunguo B%%l 4/4
(resigned with effect from 6 July 2018) (B=—Z—N\FE+ANHEEHT)

Non-executive Director FHITES

Cui Zhanfeng by - 3/3
(resigned with effect from 1 June 2018) (BEZE—N\FA—HEBHT)

Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES

Chan Bing Woon ol 4/5

Wong Yiu Kit Ernest =R 5/5

Fang Jun T % 5/5

Pang Chung Fai Benny T HE 2/3

(resigned with effect from 1 June 2018)

(B N\FXA—HEBE)
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)
Remuneration Committee

According to Rule 5.34 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company
has to set up a remuneration committee with a majority of the
members thereof being independent non-executive directors. The
Remuneration Committee has been established since 22 July 2005
with written terms of reference which was revised on 16 March 2016
in compliance with code provision B.1.2 of the CG code.

During the Reporting Period, the total members of the Remuneration
Committee are four and majority are independent non-executive
Directors.

Dr. Fang Jun has served as chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. The Remuneration Committee is scheduled to meet at
least once a year. The quorum shall be any two members.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee has been
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
The principal functions of the Remuneration Committee include:

° to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the board’s corporate goals and
objectives.

° to recommend a fair and transparent framework of executive
remuneration for the Board and senior management of the
Company, including share option scheme, based on the
skill, knowledge, involvement in the Company’s affairs and
by reference to the Company’s performance and profitability,
as well as remuneration benchmark in the industry and the
prevailing market conditions;

° to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management, including benefits-in-kind, pension rights, and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

° to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
the non-executive Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)

Remuneration Committee (Cont’d)

No Directors can determine their own remuneration package. The
chairman of the Remuneration Committee will report to the Board
on its proceedings and recommendations after each meeting. In
developing remuneration policies and making recommendation as
to the remuneration of the Directors and senior management, the
Remuneration Committee takes into account of the corporate goals
and objectives of the Group as well as the performance of those
individual Directors and senior management.

The remuneration package of Directors and senior management
includes the following:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Basic salary

The basic salary (inclusive of statutory employer contributions to
Provident Fund) of each executive Director/senior management
is recommended by the Remuneration Committee, taking into
account the performance of the individual, the inflation price
index and information from independent sources on the rates
of salary for similar jobs in a selected group of comparable
organisations.

Fees

Fees paid/payable to the executive Directors are determined by
the Board after considering the individual’s relative performance
against the comparable organisations. The fees paid/payable to
the non-executive Directors take into account factors such as
effort and time spent, and responsibilities of these Directors.

Bonus scheme

The Group operates a bonus scheme for all employees,
including the executive Directors and senior management. The
criteria for the scheme is the level of profit achieved from certain
aspects of the Group’s business activities against targets,
together with an assessment of corporate and individual’s
performance during the Reporting Period. Bonuses payable to
the executive Directors/senior management are reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board to ensure
alignment of their interests with those of Shareholders.

Benefits in kind

Other customary benefits (such as private medical cover) are
made available as appropriate.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)
Remuneration Committee (Cont’d)

(e) Share option scheme

The Group operates a share option scheme for participants,
including Directors, senior management, employees, suppliers
and customers. The terms of the scheme are set out in note
36 to the financial statements. The movement of share options
under the share option scheme adopted by the Company on
14 September 2011 during the Reporting Period is set out on
pages 113 to 121 of this annual report.

Directors’ emoluments comprise payments to the Directors by the
Company in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company. The amounts paid to each Director for the year ended 31
December 2018 are set out in note 9 to the financial statements.

During the Reporting Period, five meetings of the Remuneration
Committee were held to review the remuneration package of the
Board and the senior management. The following table shows the
attendance of the members of Remuneration Committee at the
meetings of the Remuneration Committee held during the Reporting
Period:

EEXEE (8)
FWZEEE (B
(e) ERETE

AEBEA2HEE BEEE SREEA
B -EE HERREPRILERETE -
ETEI 2 R E B S R R I 5E36 - AN AF]
RZE——F A TN B TR 2 08 IR
ST 817 3R 45 2R A 2 B PR 2 B A AR F 7R
F113EEF 1218 -

EEMe BB ARAMEEXNAREEART
EB e BE_ZE-/\FT-_A=1t—HIt
FERASEEXNZEBERPERRMEO -

RBERE FHZEEERTRARES N
R EFENEREEBZFHMES - TRED
FZEeKERSHRLEFHNEZE @SS
ZIEm

Attendance/
Number of Meetings
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Executive Director HTES
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Chan Bing Woon Egospeal 4/5
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Fang Jun T & 5/5
Pang Chung Fai Benny T 1/2
(resigned with effect from 1 June 2018) (BZZE—NFXH BT
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COMPANY SECRETARY AND COMPLIANCE
OFFICER

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for ensuring that
Board procedures are followed and that the Board is fully briefed on
all legislative, regulatory and corporate governance development and
accounts for such when making decisions. The compliance officer
is directly responsible for advising on and assisting the Board in
implementing procedures to ensure the Company complies with the
GEM Listing Rules and other relevant Laws and regulations applicable
to the Company.

According to Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules, in each financial
year an issuer’'s company secretary must take no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training. During the Reporting Period, the
Company Secretary has complied with the rule by taking more than
15 hours of relevant training courses and seminars.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2018, auditor’s remuneration of
HK$1,780,000 (2017: HK$1,022,000) was charged to the Group.
Among such fee, HK$1,100,000 (2017: HK$950,000) was charged
for the audit service provided by BDO Limited, the existing auditor of
the Company who was appointed on 13 December 2010. There was
no non-audit service provided by BDO Limited during the Reporting
Period.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound and
effective internal control system of the Group. The Group’s internal
control system includes policies and procedures and limits of authority
governing the authority level and business processes. It is designed
to help achieve business objectives, to safeguard assets against
unauthorized use or disposition, to maintain proper accounting
records for the provision of reliable financial information and to ensure
compliance with relevant legislations and regulations. The system is
intended to manage rather than to eliminate or eradicate risks.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONT’D)

Risk Management Process

The Group has performed risk management procedures including
risk identifications, risk assessments, risk prioritization as well as
risk owner appointment. Management’s inputs on risk exposures
were obtained through risk identification questionnaires. Identified
risks have been further assessed and evaluated by the Management
across the business lines. The risks have been evaluated in terms
of their impacts and the likelihood of their occurrences. As part of
the evaluation process, the risks have been prioritized based on the
evaluation results. Follow up action on key identified risks are being
taken by the management.

Risk Governance Structure

The Group has established an enterprise risk management structure
in line with the “Three Lines of Defense” model that defines the three
layers of roles and responsibilities of oversight, risk monitoring and
review as well as risk and control ownership.

The Group’s operating units are the first line of defense. They
are responsible for the day-to-day risk management and control
procedures. The second line of defense is led by the Group’s
Management who are responsible for the design, implementation
and monitoring over the Group’s risk exposure. The third line of
defense comprises the Audit Committee and the Group’ internal
auditor department. The third line of defense is responsible for the
independent assessment of the effectiveness of our risk management
and internal control systems. The external auditor of the Group
further complements the third line of defense by independently
auditing material internal controls over the Group’s financial reporting
processes and reports on material control weaknesses to the Audit
Committee on a regular basis.

Internal Control

The Group has an Internal Audit Department, which reports directly to
the Audit Committee, to provide the Audit Committee and the Board
with useful information and recommendations on the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system. During the
Report Period under review, internal audit reports are submitted to
the Audit Committee and the Board for review with recommmendations
adopted to further enhance the effectiveness of the internal controls
which complied with the international and professional standards.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONT’D)

Procedures and Internal Controls for Handling and
Dissemination of Insider Information

The Group complies with requirements of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQO”) and the GEM Listing Rules. The Group discloses
inside information to the public as soon as reasonably practicable
unless the information falls within any of the safe harbours as
provided in the SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed to the
public, the Group ensures the information is kept strictly confidential.
If the Group believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality
cannot be maintained or that confidentiality may have been breached,
the Group would immediately disclose the information to the public.
The Group is committed to ensure that information contained in
announcements are not false or misleading as to a material fact, or
false or misleading through the omission of a material fact in view of
presenting information in a clear and balanced way, which requires
equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.

Additional procedures for handling and dissemination of inside
information including but not limited to the following:

(@ access of information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis;

(b)  pre-clearance on dealing in the securities of the Company by
designated members of the Group; and

(c) notification of regular black-out period and securities dealing
restriction to relevant Directors and employees.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHT

The Company values communication with Shareholders and
investors. The Company uses two-way communication channels to
account to Shareholders and investors for the performance of the
Company. Enquiries and suggestions from Shareholders or investors
are welcomed, and enquiries from Shareholders or investors may
be put to the Board through the following channels to the Company
Secretary:

1. By mail to the Company’s head office at Rooms 3006-10, 30/F.,
China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong;

2. By telephone at (852) 3966 8388;
3. By faxat (852) 2802 0026; or
4. By email at info@crmi.hk

The Company uses a number of formal communication channels to
account to Shareholders and investors for the performance of the
Company. These include () the publication of quarterly, interim and
annual reports; (i) the annual general meeting or extraordinary general
meeting providing a forum for Shareholders to raise comments and
exchanging views with the Board; (i) updated and key information
of the Group available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company; (iv) the Company’s website offering communication
channel between the Company and its Shareholders and investors;
and (v) the Company’s share registrars in Hong Kong serving the
Shareholders in respect of all share registration matters.

The Company aims to provide its Shareholders and investors with
high standards of disclosure and financial transparency. The Board
is committed to providing clear and detailed information of the
Group and on a timely and regular basis to Shareholders through
the publication and/or dispatching of quarterly, interim and annual
reports, circular, notices, and other announcements.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHT (CONT’D)

The Company strives to take into consideration its Shareholders’
views and inputs, and address Shareholders’ concerns. Shareholders
are encouraged to attend the annual general meeting (for which at
least 20 clear business days’ notice will be given). The Chairman as
well as chairmen of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee, or in their absence, the Directors
are available to answer Shareholders’ questions on the Group’s
businesses at the meeting. To comply with code provision E.1.2 of
the CG Code, the chairman of the board should attend the annual
general meeting. He should also invite the chairmen of the audit,
remuneration, nomination and any other committees (as appropriate)
to attend. The management will ensure the external auditor to attend
the annual general meeting to answer questions about the conduct
of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the
accounting policies and auditor independence. All Shareholders have
statutory rights to call for extraordinary general meetings and put
forward agenda items for consideration by Shareholders.

According to the Company'’s articles of association, general meetings
shall be convened on the written requisition of any two or more
Shareholders deposited at the principal office of the Company in
Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such
a principal office, the registered office specifying the objects of
the meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided that such
requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company. General
meetings may also be convened on the written requisition of any one
member of the Company which is a recognised clearing house (or its
nominee(s)) deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal
office, the registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and
signed by the requisitionist, provided that such requisitionist held as
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of

® the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting
. at general meetings of the Company. The poll will be conducted by
‘ the share registrar of the Company and the results of the poll are

published on the Stock Exchange’s and the Company’s websites.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHT (CONT’D)

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person (the “Candidate”) for
election as a Director at a general meeting, he/she shall deposit a
written notice (the “Notice”) at the Company’s head office in Hong
Kong at Rooms 3006-10, 30/F., China Resources Building, 26
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The Notice (i) must include the
personal information of the Candidate as required by Rule 17.50(2)
of the GEM Listing Rules and his/her contact details; and (ii) must
be signed by the Shareholder concerned including the information/
documents to verify the identity of the Shareholder and signed by the
Candidate indicating his/her willingness to be elected and consent
of publication of his/her personal data. The period for lodgement of
the Notice shall commence no earlier than the day after the dispatch
of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and
end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such meeting. In order to
ensure the Shareholders have sufficient time to receive and consider
the proposal of election of the Candidate as a Director without
adjourning the general meeting, Shareholders are urged to submit
and lodge the Notice as soon as practicable, say at least 15 business
days prior to the date of the general meeting appointed for such
election.

The Board has established a shareholders communication policy
on 15 March 2012 and will review it on a regular basis to ensure
its effectiveness to comply with the code provision E.1.4 of the CG
code.

In order to promote effective communication, the Company also
maintains a website (www.crmi.hk) which includes the latest
information relating to the Group and its businesses.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Reporting Period, there had been no significant changes in
the constitutional documents of the Company.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

China Regenerative Medicine International Limited (“CRMI”) (Stock
Code: 8158) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter “the Group”) are pleased
to present the Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the
“ESG Report”) for the year ended 31 December 2018 (the “Reporting
Period”) and express commitment of the Group to sustainability.
This is the third ESG Report of the Group which discloses the
management, policies, performance, targets and feedbacks of the
business in providing services of the Group in People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) and Hong Kong in relation to sustainable
development. The Group would like to take this opportunity to
present ESG performance to all investors and stakeholders, and put
forward the commitments and contributions on social responsibility.

Report Compilation Basis

This ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (“ESG Reporting Guide”)
enclosed in Appendix 20 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“HKEx ESG Reporting Guide”) to fulfil all general disclosure
requirements.

For details of the Group’s financial performance and corporate
governance issues, please refer to the previous sections of the annual
report of which this ESG Report forms part.

Source of Data

The data and case studies reported in this ESG Report were
prepared based on internal statistics, internal policy documents and
other internal records. The Group hereby confirms that no false or
misleading statements were made in this ESG Report.

This ESG Report contains forward-looking statements that are
based on several assumptions and expectations at the time of its

® publication. Those assumptions and expectations are deemed to be
. reliable after internal reviewing process. The statements consist of
‘ known and unknown risks and uncertainties, which implies that actual

results may differ from the expectations, forecasts and conclusions
made herein. No guarantee is expressed as to the accuracy of
the statements and the Group expressly disclaims any liability for
and assume no responsibility to correct or update those forward-
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OUR VALUE

To become a global
leading force in medical
innovation
RENBEGRIE
A - 5IREIK
BREH

To develop cutting-
edge medical products
and technologies with a

focus on innovation in
regeneration medicine
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A value-creating business — this is what the Group aims to be. The K& —
Group achieves this goal by leveraging the biological science research ~ B 1Z
competence to create a positive impact to the world. The research
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To become China’s one
of the pioneers in tissue
engineering and
bio-medical industry
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Strive to enhance health
and improve quality

of life
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To lead a new era into
the construction of

human’s organs and
tissues from tissue

engineering development
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contributes the society by catalyzing bio-pharmaceutical research and
development. The services make biological sciences research more
efficient by shortening the time required for biotechnology research
procedures. Since the Group is brave in taking innovative steps, it
has contributed to breakthroughs in medical and biological science
research over the years — thus living out our value.

HBEYBEMBENER  RESFELER - R
ﬁ%%ﬁTﬁﬁﬁﬁi%&ﬁﬁﬁﬁT%m%%

CRSEVMEBMERX - ZFEWR - BHEER
ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ AEBRDNERZEEREREDH
BMRRE - ROTBEEREE-
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OUR VALUE (CONT’D) KMWEE (&)
The Group’s Corporate Social Responsibility Model AEFHEFEHEEFRS

The ESG Report provides detailed explanation with regard to the IRiE - 2 REAMEFMANE T AEE 54
Group’s corporate social responsibility model, shown in below, EH@FTEN BEZFEHEER RERE-
on different aspects, including stakeholder communication, EE®@H - @EFERLTE - A FEE - HETE KL
environmental protection, employee welfare, health and safety, fair ##F A FEHESH@E -

operation, social contribution and maintaining sustainability.

Stakeholder Communication

KOEBRE

Fair Operation
Environmental Protection
RIERE
Social Contribution

HEERt

Employee Welfare CRM 1
ESER hEELES

Maintain Sustainability
ERFTFERE

Health and Safety

BERZE

®
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OUR VALUE (CONT’D)

The Group's Corporate Social Responsibility Model
(Cont’d)

The Group continually strengthens communication and relationship
with investors. Designated senior management personnel keep
close communication with shareholders and investors through
email, teleconference, one-to-one meetings, participation in broker
forums and non-trading roadshow or other forms, so as to ensure
shareholders and investors can get latest information of the Group in
a fair and timely manner, helping them make investment decisions.
The Group will give a detailed and timely response to inquiries from
investors. The Group has made a materiality evaluation to identify
material matters in the Group’s businesses which have significant
influence on economy, environment and society, and are most
important for stakeholders. In accordance with evaluation results,
the Group hopes to make the commitments and undertake the
responsibilities to all stakeholders.

STAKEHOLDERS' ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY

The Group understands that the long-term success is due to the
commitment to the sustainability of businesses and the diligent and
innovative employees who deliver quality services to the clients and
business partners and make worthwhile contributions to several
stakeholders of the Group.

The Group has consolidated and identified different groups of
stakeholders that are related to its main business. These stakeholders
include customers, employees, government, media and shareholders/
investors.

The Group regards stakeholder’s opinions as a key to the long-term
success and sustainable development. The Group will increase the
involvement of stakeholders via constructive conversation in order to
achieve long-term prosperity.

BMMERE (&)
FEFY T FEEFE (B

AEBRFENRBEREENBBNER - BE
SREBAERATE FESH —H—8MH -
HERREARE RIERF RS A BBER MR
BERBTUER NERERREREEEHA
¥ RS AEE R E A BB RS ED
BRERE -AEEGHREENERELFER
ERONOE AEEEETEZEFEABAIR
MAKBEBREE BREKMETEHAFERXN
FENFERHBNENTBRAEEMNEH -
RIFFHER - AEEFEUAA N EEITE
HAGE AR AERE -

FHENSHERERMN

AEERAARMORNFEREXZBOARFERR
REERAIF  MEFMEEBHREEERSE R
BAKEZETHODEFLEEENERNES -

AEBCHEA LBNF RE T EZBOEER
FENME -ZERFOHERREEP B8 BN
RERERRREE -

AEBERARNENBRLNDERYK MAFHE
BHROEAR - AREKEBEREYFEEINFE D
ENSE NERRPERER -
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STAKEHOLDERS’ ENGAGEMENT AND FHENZHERERX (&)
MATERIALITY (CONT’'D)
Stakeholder Communication Channels
&
Customers 1. Company news updates
®5F DA EE
2. Conference
&
3. Customer Service Hotline
BRI EAR
4, Email, facsimile and phone contacts
BE FEREFEBZT
Employees 1. E-mail
B8 B
2. Internal website
A B AR
3.  Regular meetings
=
Government 1. Cooperate with the government and regulatory authorities on
B compliance inspections
aBmkEERBNESRRE
2. Conference
&
3. Email, facsimile and phone contacts
BE  FAEKEFEBKTN
Media 1. Company website
e N a8 uh
2. Press releases
hEEM
Shareholders/Investors 1. Annual General Meeting
BRREE RRBERE
2. Company news updates
DA EE

3. Email, facsimile and phone contacts
BE  FERBHEBATN

4. HKEx Website: Announcements, Notices, Reports, etc.
BEZSF#EM - N BE BEF

5. Press releases

ik
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ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group recognizes the importance of good environmental
stewardship and is committed to protect and conserve the
environment. The Group hopes that the concept of environmental
sustainability lies in all aspects of daily operation.

Specifically, the Group strives to balance quality, price and
environmental impact when consuming resources and materials.
The Group is closely monitoring the energy consumption and water
consumption through the concept that it is part of the communication
priorities to educate staffs on the rationale of environmentally friendly
choices, and for making them available.

As the Group’s principal operation is based in the PRC, the Group
is principally subject to the PRC environmental laws and regulations
such as Environmental Protection Law of the PRC (FF Z A K &
B 3R 3B R 7 JK), Law on the Prevention and Control of Water
Pollution of the PRC (1 2 A R H A B /K05 27 747%), and Law on
the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution of the PRC (/1
= ANRLFMBI K& S 28 %). The senior management team are
delegated to perform the maintenance of the Group’s sustainability.
The representatives of each operational department, will actively
manages business in an environmentally and socially responsible
manner. The Group will meet annually to review the key processes
and identify possible aspects underlying the operation of such
department. The senior management team will also discuss on any
significant aspects identified, and design measures accordingly.
These measures will be documented for reference to ensure effective
implementation.

1=

AEBERAZRENREEENEEN XD
RERR - AEEHLREVFEERNETE
HRAREENSEZH -

HBME  EEREREMHNREE  AEBEH
NREREE BEREREFENTE - A5H
TSR ERBRENFKE  MAER RS
BHBETETRAREEN S LEREINEER
R e

HRARBETEAETREE WAKE T EET
PEIRFEARLER - HlanhEARKMBEIRE
REEE - PEARKXMBEKFRPEERPEA
RAMBARSRIEE - 2R EEEEKERE
RGEAEENARHERR SELEEEK
REBEEARREAH AR 2T AETEERR
AEBERSFETSH AR TERERBAE
FARPINEER S RNER - SREEEEK
TR 3t P 28k Bl ) {247 B K T AE 17 & i K il 7 AR
FEEIE - A SN FRESEURRERENR
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ENVIRONMENTAL (CONT’D) IRIE ()
The Group’s ultimate goal is to minimize the adverse impact of the ZlSE E ey &L B ER K EBEIRENTH %
businesses on the environment. The efforts being made throughout &IK o REERIRE AR ATEN TIERL I

the Reporting Period can be concluded as follows:

Practice
28

1. Avoiding generating waste that polluted the environment
iR EE VS A IR A R R

2. Compliance with all relevant laws, regulations, rules and requirements of environmental protection

ETHARBRERBNER ZR REREX

3.  Creation of an environment for sustainable development
BIEF BB RAIRE

4. Provision of training for employees on the protection of the environment

RETRHEARRERENE

5.  Reduction in the consumption of various resources including raw materials and fuel

WS BEIREERE - BIERM A RRE

6. Reduction in the generation of waste, recycling and reusing as much as possible of the waste

A BESEL - R A e HERGETT R MERE R

7. Using environmentally friendly materials as well as design, technology and raw materials capable of conserving
energy and reducing waste

FERE - RMERMEOER L FERBREME - AT E L BLIRM D BE R

8.  Vigorous promotion and implementation of the recyclable economy, minimizing and avoiding negative effects due to
the Group’s development and the environment

ANHEMERBREE  RAONELEAAEBNERYREERNEATE

During the Reporting Period, the Group has conducted AIHEEIR - ANEE YT AITIKIE A 7 HIRIE
comprehensive inspection regarding the environmental management ‘&EIBANER T 2B = Hes {E;&? ]
situations of all controlling subsidiaries to facilitate the improvement A FEBIETE A EMNNEZHIZS  RETHK S
and promotion of controlling subsidiaries on environmental 2 L,‘%%}iﬂ B ﬁxﬁlﬁ@ﬁ$’§lﬂﬁ—ﬁiﬁ
management, and demanded the completion of its construction & A& EAR - ANEE R4 (F(AIRIE T A HE o
and implementation with stipulated deadlines, ensuring effective

sustainable development of the Group. During the Reporting Period,

there was no environmental pollution incident in the Group.
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IRIE (8)
Al) Y

BE-2 - N\E+ZA=t+-RILEE.
ARtk B SRS B R I TR PR -

ENVIRONMENTAL (CONT'D)
A(l) EMISSION

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s types of
emissions and respective emissions data are showed as below:

Emission Data
(approximately)

Types of Emissions

R ZER BB (5)

Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) R &L 126 Kg T
Sulfur Dioxide (SOx) & &1t 0 Kg T35
Particulate Matter (PM) &% 47 12 Kg T7

Direct greenhouse gas emissions (scope one) are resulting from
gasoline used by vehicles. Indirect greenhouse gas emissions
(scope two) are mainly resulting from electricity consumed in
production and R&D units of the Group. Due to the nature of
our Group, the greenhouse gas emissions of the Group were

BERRERBHNES B EWERMNTH
(BE—) FEEERBHEREIERERN
HEERREEUNEERE (BB ) - =
RAEBNEBLE BEEREBHREE
KER#E— -

mainly generated from scope two.

HE—Z—\F+-A=+—BILFE"
AREREFRBRENIHEER TR

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s
greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity are showed as
below:

Emission Data
(approximately)

Scope of Greenhouse Gas

BEREEE BER B (W)

Direct Greenhouse Gas Emissions 59 tCO2e
HEBZEREYN M-S iRE =
Indirect Greenhouse Gas Emissions 3,483 tCO2e

FE A= REEEEN Wi — &Lk E &
Greenhouse Gas Emissions in Total 3,542 tCO2e
BERIBHERERE W&t &g &
Greenhouse Gas Emissions in Intensity 10.6 tCO2e/number of employees

BERBHFREE

WSt E 8 EBRE T AK

The Group proactively makes its great efforts to reduce AEBEEBREIRNBARNERMNEEBR
greenhouse gas emissions by improving our production BRI RBEMEEBEPMEENLE
= REgh

process. SESHEIR ©
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The Group promotes the “3-R” concept which aims at
minimizing, to the extent practicable, the amount of wastes
produced during the course of the Group’s business operations.

ENVIRONMENTAL (CONT’D) IRIE (8)
A(l) EMISSION (Cont’d) Al) BERH) (&)
Waste Management BEEYEE

AEBHITIS-RIER  §ENYEATTH
BT ROAREEXRGELBETAE
EHEZRMHE -

The term “3-R” represents: [3-RJiE :
Concept Practice
B =¥
(@  Reduction Reducing the volume of daily wastes generated to the extent practicable, by using
R alternative materials, processes and procedures )
FREABERME  REKEARIEAITHNBERLA TR EEBEEEMNHE
(b) Reuse Reusing wastes generated and returning unused materials
BiIREA BIREREENEEY REEREAOME

(¢) Recycling

Converting waste materials into usable materials or extracting useful substances from

EEA=RE them, such as recycling packaging material and paper
REMSRAAAMASEEPIRRRERYE @ fINERBEBRREME RAK

Due to the nature of the Group, various hazardous wastes and
non-hazardous wastes are generated during our production
process. During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
quantity of these wastes was as follows:

ENAKENEBRE  SRAREREY
MIEEREEYNEMEEBRETRESL -
BE_Z-/\Ft_A=+—RALLFE"
AEBERMEBER TR :

Waste Quantity (approximately) Unit
BEZEY BE (W) B
Hazardous f& & 1 Tons 8
Non-hazardous FE /& k& 15 Tons 8

Hazardous wastes are strictly segregated from non-hazardous
wastes for proper collection and treatment purpose. Hazardous
wastes are collected with leakage-proof containers (e.g. scrap
metal bucket) to avoid leakage during transfer. A hazardous
wastes warehouse is established for collection and classified
storage of hazardous wastes. Licensed waste collectors have
been engaged for disposal of hazardous wastes.

The Group does not involve in any material discharge of
industrial sewage. Domestic wastewater will be discharged into
the municipal pipe network after being processed.

General compliances

In summary, to the best of our Directors’ knowledge, there was
no material non-compliance with the applicable local rules and
regulations relating to air emissions, greenhouse gas emissions,
water discharges, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes in all material aspects.

1 I o 32 W) £ JF £ [ B 22 W R AR 0 R DA i
gEWEREE - EREEMEERNSE
Hex (WETER) WS ARE2ERERE
PHIRRE  BRERMEENGELIN
WEEDBERTFRERERY - FEEEY
WEHEZEEZREBRERY -

REBAYRERMBERTEREKREER &£
BBENKEREBEERABEATRER -

-REHR

BEME  BEFEMAN  RAAEAN
R R BRI R ERETN
BEKBEBMARELERERBEZERYAH
BB A E R IR BRI -
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ENVIRONMENTAL (CONT'D)
A(ll) USE OF RESOURCES

The main resources used by the Group in the production
process are electricity, water and paper. In order to be an
environmentally responsible corporation, the Group strives
to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of resources
consumption in the production process for minimisation
of wastage and avoidance of excessive usage of precious
resources.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, to the best
knowledge of our Directors’ knowledge, we believe that there is
no material issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the energy

consumption by type in total of the Group are showed as
below:

Data

Direct/Indirect Energy by Type
HEE HERRZER

IRIE (1)
Alll) &R ZEA

AEEGELEERRTEANEZEERSE
NKEBER - BRERFS—KHURRA
BENEE AEBEHINZEREAUE
M MWD ELEEBRETIRE R#ER
BEEHAEENER -

HE T \F+-_A=+—HILLFE"
REEMAMN BRMANRSEAKEFE
Wi s KMEE -

Eﬁi:;—)\i-@—_ﬂf—k HIFFE -
REBEZREREBERBRAT :

(approximately)

B (%)

Gasoline /33 21,786
Electricity & 77 4,418,484
Water 7K 10,725

The Group is conscious of environmental protection. Further
details of which are disclosed in the section “The Environment
and Natural Resources” below.

Use of Packaging Materials

The Group mainly uses paper boxes and plastic bags as
packing material for our products. During the year ended 31
December 2018, the Group purchased 86 tonnes of packaging
material for sales of our products. If possible, we would aim
to increase the effectiveness of packaging material through
continuous examination of using lighter and environmental-
friendly packaging materials from the market.

litre 22 F+

KWh T EL B

m2 37 75 K
AEEITERFR HE—FP2HBERA
TRRIBRERAER] —SHHRHEE -
BEFEHF

AEBTZERABEMBRIESTME
mOBEMH - BHE_T-N\F+_H
ST-RLEFE AKEREEERRE
T8EMER KM AL - Al BE - AT BB
K5 LA EAEEEEMRFROBEM
HAEBRE  URFTBEMBHMA -
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ENVIRONMENTAL (CONT’D)

RiE (&)

A(ll) THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES — Allll) IRER XA EIR

Environment protection is the responsibility of every staff in the
Group. The Group is committed to sustainable development
and delivering our premium and quality products in a manner
with minimal impact to the environment resulting from our
business activities.

Apart from those details disclosed in the section “Emissions”
and “Use of Resources” above, the Group also continuously
implements “green” concept with the following measures:

° Office Power Saving: Policy to turn off lights when not
in use, air-conditioning temperature control, printer and
computer hibernation management, shut down of lights
and computers during lunch break, etc.

° Paper Saving: Implement paperless office, use email and
online signature system for document review, signing and
communication where possible, reduce the frequency
of printing and/or copying, and reduce the use of office
paper. If necessary, employees are also encouraged
to re-use paper and conserve paper usage by printing
double-sided to the extent practicable.

° Increase equipment and vehicle efficiency: Arrange for the
equipment and vehicles to undergo regular maintenance
in order to improve their performance and dispose high
energy consumption equipment as part of the efforts to
conserve resources at source

° Reduce the Use of Bottled Water: Provide drinking water
supply equipment at all production bases for the use by
factory employees, meetings and visitors. Employees are
encouraged to bring along their own reusable cups to
reduce the use of bottles.

AEEB-—EZETHRHRERRNHEE -
REBERNRAHEER RRESHRE
ﬁ%uuﬂ%ﬂ’:‘#‘ Hﬂ‘ﬁﬁmifn/ﬁ@{ﬁ&iﬁ
rERTERERE -

BRTRALISm I RIERER] —&i
BEZFHBEIN NEBETBBATHERS
B RE B

s MAEME:FERERERAETE
B =R EES 5 EUT%E@*
JERER B I - RS EIRRE S

o  HIKMME: HITEELHD BRI
ERE iﬁﬁiﬁi@i R A% R BAETT
ffF%F? BEEBE HIIERS
g EUDFET PR R=ERA - 1
)A/EEHZEE SETBETHYER
TIERERMR LKA EESE] -

o IREANRBLERME  THRENE
WMETEFHREANEAERENESE
ERERERRE B OMIRELEESYEIR

o ERAERMEK: AEEMMELR
EERAKRE RHSBELEEREN
WET - /;\;%&inﬁgﬁﬁ‘ﬁ>i1§ﬁﬁ°§
BETAERAEEERNMNEA B

KIREM »
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SOCIAL
EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES
B(l) EMPLOYMENT

The Group has set up a comprehensive set of human resource
policies stipulating rules on recruitment, compensation,
training, welfare, promotion guidelines and dismissal. In
order to safeguard benefits for the employees, the Group
abides by Labor Law of the PRC (1 A & £ A B 45 &)%),
Labor Contract Law of the PRC (FE AR EME 434 [
5%), the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong (& /& 1& & &
f51) and employment laws applicable to relevant jurisdictions
where operations are located. Labor contracts or employment
agreements are entered into between the Group and the
employees. Moreover, the Group regularly monitors information
related to employment to prevent non-compliance with labor
laws and regulations.

In order to increase efficiency in hiring and to ensure consistency
and compliance in the recruitment and selection process, as
well as to promote fair opportunities to each candidate, the
Group has detailed recruitment policies in place. An objective
and carefully documented recruitment process will ensure that
any discrimination risks are minimized and will give us the best
possible chance of identifying the right candidate. Regardless
of nationality, gender, age, race, religious belief or disability, etc,
candidates with relevant professional qualifications and working
experience receive equal consideration for employment.

The Group provides our employees “5 Insurances and 1
Pension”, business trip allowance, birthday allowance, wedding
allowance, body check, and holiday allowance. Employees are
entitled to national holidays, company holidays, annual leave,
funeral leave, marital leave, maternity leave and sick leave as
well. In addition, The Group also adopted measures, such as
distributing gifts and benefits, as well as holiday lengthening, to
further enhance the benefits system and its staff satisfaction.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT 2018
= ERIE e RE AR

HE
EBERSITER
B() 1EE

AEBCHER - M 5[ BN B
ol MERRI-E2ENANERRE
RE - REERERERN AEBEETHE
ARKMBEEE hEARKMELH
BRE - BEARRREGD REEMREMRDE
KB EARERER BB R KIERI
EIOHAEEEREAY - WIN AKE
EHERREEABEAMAAERTTE S

ERREREER -

SRTRSHEBERENRE  UHRERHBER
BEBETN-—BMUELARL URARE
fREAREATFORE AEECHEY
FANBERER - TBA/NORENEE
RABEREETAERRAR XSHMAD
BAEFREARKRERS - THREZE-
Rl Fik - Bk RBEMREES A
BHEEXRERR TIEEROBEER
BARTHZTHFFHET-

rEBERESRHE AR —2]  ZROFR -
ERERE BIEER B RRAER-
BENAZXEZOEELRA - RAREY
FR - B/ERER ERAEMR - U &K
£ B TR R BUR 35 48 5 B @ F A B & R HA
S E—PRITENFHERETREE -
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SOCIAL (CONT’D)

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES
(CONT'D)

B(l) EMPLOYMENT (Cont’d)

The Group actively recruits talents in a fair and equitable
manner through social media such as online platforms and
newspaper advertisements. Across the Group’s diversified
business portfolio, as of 31 December 2018, the Group has a
workforce of 334 in a number of locations in the PRC and Hong
Kong. The composition of staffs is as follows:

= (&)
EBREEETER(E)

B() 1E1& (#&)

$Elﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁtiéﬁﬁa% Lt
SEENFERAEMBEEAS - EKEIy
mmm%%mé$v$%5ﬁ§:§—ﬂ
F+-_A=Z+—HEEFREEAEBEF334
FZEI - BTHHMKIOT

TOTAL WORKFORCE BY GENDER
BERIEIDHE TR

52%

@ vae =it

48%

Female Z

®
’ PY China Regenerative Medicine International Limited Annual Report 2018
]



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT 2018
—ZF)\EFRE e REAWE

SOCIAL (CONT’D) e (&)

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES EBEKREIER (B)

(CONT’D)

B(l) EMPLOYMENT (Cont’d) B() 1E1E (&)
Categorized by employee’s gender, male employees accounted LZREREMRNSE SHEEMANI8% M
for approximately 48% and female employees accounted ZHEEEBNSBTE52% ANEEREE TR
for the remaining 52%. The Group believes in equality of BErEMNKeRFAETYE BAFTALEY
opportunity and treatment between male and female employees RERTEBKEREEERE - AEER
because it is just and fair and promotes good business and AEZEEMIETFNFEZIEQBERE
better performance. The Group recognizes that equality at work FARGFEER  UBEE N HREN&E
between male and female employees means (a) discrimination REA RO)DIREEFREEREANS
is not existed in the recruitment process to get the best ERERAREARETIENKE -

candidates for the appropriate vacancies : and (b) equality of
opportunity in providing assignments based on candidate’s
merit and choice.

TOTAL WORKFORCE BY AGE
RERETNE TR

9%

® - ) 30-40 @ -0 @

L HB05% 30Z405% 41E507% K515
As for employee distribution by age, aged below 30 accounted ZREEFH D 305 TE429% : 30
for approximately 29%; aged 30 to 40 accounted for ZA0BRIERIAT% s A EB0BRIEHI15% &
approximately 47%; aged 41 to 50 accounted for approximately 51 5% A E1E#19%.

15%; and aged above 51 accounted for approximately 9%.
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES EBENRS IER(E)
(CONT’D)

B(l) EMPLOYMENT (Cont’d) B() 1E1E (&)

TOTAL WORKFORCE BY EDUCATION
BRABKFEDTNE TR

12% 3% 6%

@ Doctor of Philosophy (‘Ph.D”) @ Master @ Bachelor () Diploma Other
Bt (gL ) B B4 SUR EHAth
Professionals in different fields are the Group’s precious EREGHNEEASTZAEENEEELE -
assets. Categorized by education level, employees with BHAEKEDLE Tﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ;iﬂﬁﬁ’]ﬁ%{ﬁ
Ph.D background accounted for approximately 3% of the BEBHNA3% BB LEMNMERN
total number of employees; employees with Master degree 496% : EBEETEMNMEBEEGLN47%
. accounted for approximately 6%; employees with Bachelor EEENENEEMANRY : MEMESR
’ ° degree accounted for approximately 47%; employees with MHERT12% ©
) diploma accounted for approximately 32%; and others
. accounted for the remaining 12%.

®
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SOCIAL (CONT’D) e (&)
EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES EBRERSIER (&)
(CONT’D)

B(ll) HEALTH AND SAFETY Bl) RERZZ

Safe, effective and cozy workplace is essential to support
the precious asset, employees. To create a safe working
environment, the Group has established safety policies on the
prevention and remediation of safety accidents, and detection
on potential safety hazards in workplace, including regular
safety inspections and launch of safety promotion and safety
training.

To mitigate the health and safety risk during production and
R&D processes, protective equipment would be provided to
operating employees, such as protective suit, glove, mask etc.

Our staffs are briefed and trained with safety and environmental
knowledge regularly to ensure that everyone understands the
risk of the task they are involved, has safety and environmental
consciousness and is familiar with safety and environmental
precaution measures.

Hazardous materials and wastes are handled separately with
great care. Emergency and evacuation procedures for fire were
established for timely and orderly response to any major safety
accidents.

The Group monitors the workplace safety continuously, and
performs a regular examination of workplace safety hazards.
To ensure the effectiveness of fire emergency control, the
Group appointed a third-party institute to test its fire alarms and
inspect its fire safety equipment.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, to the best
knowledge of our Directors’ knowledge, there was no
occurrence of any fatal accident.

ZE - BURFEN TERBERAIFR
SENEEEE BEEWUEZE - AEY
ZEHNITIERE  ASECHIEL2BUR
LATB B RORIEZ 2 B OB TS AT
BEZZRE  BRETHETLEZHREM
EREZEMNEFMEI -

v 5)@%1&%?&63??*%5%%435’3@%2@?%2
J_\, MERETEREGBREET - m
R H& FE-AEZF-

BB THE CHETHENTAERLZ S
FIRIB A - AR A AR S W
TEzZREE TEHEZERRERE#HER
BLERIRBERE -

et kEERMEEREERDF - X
K2 B2 RHGARAGE BT - B RE
Bt ERNERLEENY

AEEREERTHRBRETE  REIF
SHEZ2RBETERRSE BERYE A
KESETNERNE  AEECEZBN
RS AR R
BEHEBHEEM -

HE-_ZT—/\F+ZA=+—RHLFE"
SAEFEATA - I A A B B o
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SOCIAL (CONT’D) e (&)
EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES EBRERSIER (&)
(CONT’D)

B(lll) DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING B(ll) 2 /7 R 3= 5

The Group recognizes the importance of empowerment through
development and training in the Group. Equipping employees
with the appropriate knowledge not simply benefits the long-
term development, but the society as a whole.

The Group has devised training schedule to provide different
types of trainings to employees every year. The categories
include personnel, finance, medical instruments, environmental
management and fire safety. Through education and training,
the Group can enable its employees to enhance their personal
qualities, strengthen their working skills and reinforce the team
performance. Moreover, employees can grow with the Group
by realising their own values on the basis of their personal
interest and expertise.

Besides, all employees are subject to regular performance
and career development appraisal in order to ensure the
efficiency and quality of our employees and to foster the stable
development of the Group.

Promotions are made in accordance with the needs from
the Group’s business development and the employees’
competence. Vacancies of the Group’s internal management
positions will be filled up internally by promoting the most
qualified employees within the Group. This offers the employees
with the opportunities for promotion and enhances the
efficiency of the Group.

B(lV) LABOUR STANDARDS

As the Group strictly adhered to the Law of the PRC on the
Protection of Minors (/7 2 A R H F1 B K pk &F AR %), the
Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong and other laws and
regulations in all aspects, the Group does not permit forced
labour or child labour under any circumstances. All new
employees’ identification card should be checked before they
entry the Group to ensure their age meets requirements of laws
and regulations.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, to the best
knowledge of our Directors’ knowledge, we did not identify
any material non-compliance or breach of relevant laws and
regulations in child labour and forced labour.
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OPERATING PRACTICES
B(V) SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Suppliers are the Group’s long-term business partners. Stability,
safety and effectivity of product quality is directly influenced
by the selection of suppliers. To effectively manage the supply
chain, the Group has developed a comprehensive system for
assessing new and existing suppliers. The Group has further
regulated the operational procedures of evaluation and approval
for main suppliers, and clarified the suppliers’ qualification,
selection principle, quality evaluation methods, evaluation
standard, and approval procedure for main supplier. The Group
requires suppliers to comply with local laws and regulations
in all aspects. Most of the supplies of the Group are procured
from the PRC. The PRC government has strict laws and
regulations governing social and environmental risks.

Agency Contracts Management

The majority of the Group’s business and product distribution
are relied on agents to introduce and promote the products to
hospitals for sale. Therefore, the management of the agents is
very crucial to the Group. To avoid inefficiencies in agents and
to strengthen the sales performance, the Group has tailor-made
contracts for each agent in accordance with its selling ability
and respective target customers in the PRC. The contracts
clarify the province or area in which the agents are responsible
for, as well as the hospitals they cooperate with. The contracts
also list out the compensation they get, and the sales amount
that is targeted to be achieved during the contract period. The
Group will evaluate agents from time to time following their
performance against the contract terms. The Group believes
that the management of agency contracts can help to control
the quality of agents and to implement the business strategy
efficiently.
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OPERATING PRACTICES (CONT’D) EEHI (1)
B(V)) PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY BV) EmEF

The Group strives for products and services excellence
across all the business activities. To protect the samples
from contamination in the laboratory, the Group has devised
procedures for operations in the laboratory. The Group also
requires the laboratory technicians to wear protection suits
and to regularly clean and disinfect the laboratory equipment,
in order to maintain workplace hygiene and prevent the cross-
contamination of the products.

Apart from the hygiene control in laboratory, the Group also
understands the importance of an accurate testing result. Thus,
the Group has developed policies in relation to the management
and maintenance of laboratory equipment, especially the
calibration of laboratory equipment. Our equipment is calibrated
externally by professionals and internally when necessary to
ensure its accuracy. Qualified personnel is assigned to each
equipment for the daily management and maintenance, to
make sure equipment that we are using is in good condition.
Damaged equipment will not be used until they are fixed by the
suppliers.

Also, listening to customers about their experiences with
products and services is the key to the Group’s success. The
Group constantly interacts with customers by reviewing their
enquiries and feedback so that performance can be tracked
regularly. Also, the Group is dedicated to provide after-sale
maintenance and operational technical supporting services
to customers. Training is provided to employees in offering
comprehensive services to customers.

Health and safety

Being a responsible corporation, being accredited with the ISO
13485:2016 Quality Management Certificate, we strictly monitor
the quality of our products, and the safety issues in using our
products.

We are committed to complying with local rules and regulations
on product safety, and protecting consumers’ health on using
our products. In accordance with the requirement of the ISO
13485:2016, the Group implements stringent internal rules and
procedures for quality check during its production process. Any
non-conformity products must be handled properly, including
proper labelling and recording.
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OPERATING PRACTICES (CONT'D)
B\V)) PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY (Cont’d)

e (&)
=EEH ()

BV) EmE T (&)

Advertising

The Group understands our customers’ rights and is committed
to providing accurate product and service information for
customers in connection with their purchase or consumption
decision. The Group requires careful review of advertising
materials to protect customers’ interest.

Labelling

The Group is committed to providing sufficient and accurate
information and product label to customers and considers that
it is an extended responsibility of product safety management.
The Group provides clear and simple instructions, including
the danger, precaution measures and emergency treatment of
products and contact information.

Privacy matters

The Group has stringent measures in place to protect
operational and customer data privacy. Non-disclosure
agreements are signed by all suppliers. A systematic approach
is implemented internally to ensure that only designated
employees have access to sensitive and confidential
information.

In view of the customer confidential information, the Group
implemented a strict confidentiality system. According to the
system, the Group should enter into a confidentiality agreement
with the client who provides the confidential information.
Meanwhile, for ensuring no betraying confidential matters, risk
control department of the Group is responsible for investigating
the confidential information to delimit secrecy scope and
ascertain information-security. The Group also provides
employees with education regarding confidentiality, including
specifies the confidentiality obligation of employees in employee
manual.
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Methods of redress

Although the Group ensure the quality of our products and
services, at the same time, it requires that products with quality
issues should be returned or compensated in accordance with
terms of sales contracts. Return, recall, or compensation of
products is required to be offered to all customers who are
affected with consistent treatment and procedures.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, to the best
knowledge of our Directors’ knowledge, we did not identify
any material issues on product health and safety, advertising,
labelling, privacy matters and methods of redress.

BIVI) ANTI-CORRUPTION

To ensure honest, loyal behaviour and ethical conduct among
employees, the Group has adopted code of ethics and anti-
corruption regulations, so as to enable employees’ conducts
and behaviours to be monitored throughout daily operations.
The Group performs annual self-evaluation to look at the
implementation of code of ethics and relevant regulations,
the objective of which is to ensure the thoroughness and
consistency in actual operations and management practices,
with a view to balancing and safeguarding interests of the
stakeholders and establishing long-term partnerships. The
Group employs independent auditors to carry out external
audits on the Group, aiming at preventing corruptive behaviours
within the Group through internal supervision and external
audits.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with any relevant standards, rules,
codes and regulations. There were no complaints of corruption
against the Group or any of the Group’s employees during the
Reporting Period.
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With the market’s focus on corporate behaviour, the
short-sighted behaviour of maximizing financial returns to
shareholders is no longer the management goal of business.
The Group stays proactive in fulfilling the responsibilities as a
corporate citizen of the community.

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed
to extending the efforts from own operation to the wider
society. The Group believes that staff members are the core
value makers in the society. The Group will continue to pool
the strengths and commit itself in increasing community
participation, balance of interests of stakeholders and strives
to build a corporate-community relationship that promotes
harmony, security and prosperity.

Although the Group has not established and documented a
specific community policy, social care is deep-seated in the
Group’s corporate culture. Employees are encouraged to
participate in various charitable events and community service.

SOCIAL (CONT’D) e (&)
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
BEGHE

The Directors present to the Shareholders the Company’s annual
report and audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (the “Reporting Period”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are engaged in the R&D of bio- medical
and healthcare products, and medical techniques; the provision
of the production and sales of tissue engineering products and its
related by-products; as well as sales and distribution of medical
products and equipment. In accordance with Schedule 5 of Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, further discussion and analysis of these
activities including a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing by the group and an indication of likely future developments in
the group’s business and an analysis using financial key performance
indicators, can be found in the Management Discussion and Analysis
set out on pages 8 to 58 and notes 40 and 44 to the consolidated
financial statements of this report, which form part of this directors’
report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business during the Reporting Period as
well as discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance under
review and the material factors underlyings its financial performance
and financial position are provided in sections headed “Chairman’s
Statement” on pages 6 to 7 and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 8 to 58 of the annual report and the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

Results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 138.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years is set out on page 268.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Reporting Period are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.
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RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to Shareholders as
at 31 December 2018 amounted to approximately HK$170,817,000
(2017: HK$2,051,657,000).

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Reporting Period are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 142 and note 33 to the financial
statements, respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Reporting Period are set out in note 14 to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors
Ray Yip (Chairman of the Boara)
(appointed as Chairman of the Board with effect from
3 December 2018)
Wang Xuejun (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed as executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer with effect from 3 September 2018)
Chen Chunguo (resigned with effect from 6 July 2018)

Non-Executive Directors

Cui Zhanfeng
Xiong Chengyu

(resigned with effect from 1 June 2018)
(resigned with effect from 1 June 2018)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Chan Bing Woon
Wong Yiu Kit Emest
Fang Jun

Pang Chung Fai Benny (resigned with effect from 1 June 2018)

In accordance with article 116 of the Company’s articles of
association, Dr. Ray Yip and Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest shall retire from
office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re- election.

In accordance with article 99 of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. Wang Xuejun shall hold office until the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and chief executives of the
Company are set out on pages 59 to 62 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has signed an appointment letter with the Company for a
term of two years commencing from the date of appointment. After
the expiry of the appointment letter(s), the Director(s) shall agree to
continue to hold office as a Director, subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company. In the
event that the Director(s) is successfully re-elected at the conclusion
of the annual general meeting of the Company, the Director(s) shall
enter into a supplemental letter with the Company for continuation of
his/her appointment for a term of two years.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the Reporting Period, each Director is entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which he/
she may incur or sustain in or about the execution of the duties of his/
her office or otherwise in relation thereto, save for matters in respect
of his/her fraud or dishonesty.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as those set out in note 37 to the financial statements and
under heading “CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS” in this report, none
of the Directors had a significant beneficial interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during
the Reporting Period.
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SHARE OPTIONS 8 By fE
Share Option Scheme BRESZ

The share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was adopted
on 14 September 2011 for the primary purpose of providing
incentives to directors and eligible employees of the Company.

R=B——FNATIA - AD SRR
Bl (BRI E))  EEAMAMAARNEER
BEEE R RGN -

RBE-F—N\E+-A=+—AILEE A2
AN =T ——4 1 A+ M A RAZ BREEIE
T2HBEEHMT :

The movement of share options under the share option scheme
adopted by the Company on 14 September 2011 during the year
ended 31 December 2018 was as below:

Movement of Share Options during the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-E-N\EtoA=t-ALEEZBREZD

Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise  Vesting schedule and Exercisable portion asat asat
price  exercise period of of the Share Options 31 December 31 December
Eligible persons  Date of grant (HKS)  the Share Options granted 017 Granted Exercised  Reclassified Lapsed 2018
3 i
ERE “E-tE ZE-N%
ke BEEHRR BRIEREZ TZA=T-H tZB=1-A
RERAL RiAH (Br) IfikSH TR HRTE BRY B BENAE BxH HATR
Directors 16/9/2015 045 16 September 2016t U to 20% (“1st Options”) 13,920,000 NL NL (9,630,000) (1,556,000) 2,734,000
5% “T-1E 15 September 2017 5520%([£-(%RE]) & i
ARTAR (both days incusive)
(the “1st Period’)
ZEREAATARE
ZE-tENATRA
(REEERA)
(E—-lEsmE)
16 September 2017 to Upto 20% (2nd Options’)
15 September 2018 (together with any 1st Options
(ooth days inclusive) which have not been exercised
(the “2nd Period") during the 15t Period)
ZE-EARTARE 5520% ([ H%&RE))
“E-\FAATRA (BARE-EBEAXAR
(BEBERR) LEAE-hERE
([E={Hm)
16 September 2018 to Upto 20% (‘3rd Options’)

15 September 2019
(ooth days inclusive)
(the *3rdl Period)
ZE-EARTARE
ZE-NENATRA
(REEERA)
(E=lEsmE)

(together with any 1st and 2nd
Option’s which have not been
exercised during the st Period
and 2nd Period)
550% [ E=hEkE])

(BRNZ-AHERE-MA
BRRAGREME R
E-hRkE)
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SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)
Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

% HX* /na
IR E 2 ()

Movement of Share Options during the year ended 31 December 2018
BZE-NEtIBSt-BLEEZBREZD

Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise  Vesting schedule and Exercisable portion asat asat
price  exercise period of of the Share Options 31 December 31 December
Eligible persons  Date of grant [HKS)  the Share Options granted 017 Granted Exercised  Reclassified Lapsed 218
i i
BhEz I3-tE 5§
kB BEWERR BRUEREZ TZRZ1-H +2A=1-8
RERAL RHAE (81 TAkHH qiERH HATE 54 Bfif  BEFAE BAN HATE
16 September 2019 to Up to 20% (‘4th Options”)
15 September 2020 (together with any 1st, 2nd and
(ooth days inclusive) 3rd Options which have not been
(the “4th Period") exercised during the 1st Period,
’ﬁ—fﬁﬂﬂ 1/ HE 2nd Period and 3rd Period)
ZENATER 55200 ([E0RERE]) (2R
(B éémﬁ/ NE-EER Z-ABHRE
(EmEHE ) SEEERRAE ENE-R
E-hRE=HERE)
16 September 2020 to 15 U to 20% (‘5th Options’)
September 2025 (both days (together with any 1st, 2nd, 3rd
nclusive) (the “5th Period) and 4th Options which have not
_§ SENATRREE been exercised curing the st
SZRENATER Period, 2nd Perod, 3rd Period
(2 Eﬁ%ﬁﬂ'ﬁ/ and 4ih Period)
(EnREHE)) wzo%’{%ﬂm%wgn@@
-8R $-E88 &
1[%&9@@1%%?%% Tf
ZEAE-1 E=h Ezf
REMHERE)
9/92016 0291 9September 2017108 Up to 20% (‘First Options') 8,700,000 NL NL (4,000,000) (1,920,000) 2,780,000
3 September 2018 both days  &H20%([E—-HERE]) & &
AANA inclusive) the “First Period’)
ZE-tEARNRE
ZE-\EAANB(REE
ZRA)(1Z-E8H)
9 September 2018 to Up to 20% (*Second Options’)
8 September 2019 [together with any First Options

(ooth days inclusive)

(he “Second Period')
ZE-\ENANBE

:z—ﬂﬂlﬂ/ \E \@Tﬁ

EmA) (- E5H))

which have not been exercised
during the First Period)

55200 ([E-RERE]) (2R
RE-RERRANE L EAE
~fERE)
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SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)

Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

A AR R (
BRREE (E)

Movement of Share Options during the year ended 31 December 2018

BECR-N\FTIACt-BLEFEZERERE

Outstanding Outstanding

Exercise  Vesting schedule and Exercisable portion asat asat

price  exercise period of of the Share Options 31 December 31 December

Eligible persons  Date of grant (HKS)  the Share Options granted 017 Granted Exercised  Reclassified Lapsed 2018

i i

EREZ -t 5\

fikE BERERR BRLEREL TZA=t-H tZR=t-A

RERAL RHAE (Br) AfiEEE g HATE &4 Bfif  BENAE BN HATR
9 Septernber 2019 to Up to 20% (‘Third Options’)
8 September 2020 (together with any First and

(ooth days inclusive)
(the “Third Period’)

“I-NENANRE
“ETENANR

(BfEEERA)
(E=ED

9 September 202010 8
September 2021 (both days
nclusive) (the “Fourth Period)

“EIEENANGE
ZEC-ERANR

(REEEERA)

([£mEERE)

9 September 202110 8
September 2025 (both days
inclusive) (the *Fifth Perod)

E>-FAANEE
ZZZRFAANR

(BEEEAA)
([2RRA%)

Second Options which have not
been exercised during the First
Period and Second Period)

5520%([E=hERE)) (&R
NE-AHRRE - EHHEE
i EmE-ARE-hER
)

Up to 20% (‘Fourth Options’)
(together with any First, Second
and Third Options which have not
been exercised during the First
Period, Second Period and Third
Period)

55200 ([E0AERE]) (2R
m” (EEORE e i)

EEREAGRZENEN
g w&%:;%ﬁV

Up to 20% (‘Fifth Options’)
(together with any First, Second,
Third and Fourth Options which
have not been exercised during
the First Period, Second Period,
Third Period and Fourth Period)

55200 ([ERRERE]) (BR
RE-EERE F-EHE 2
Eﬁﬁf&iwﬁ%aﬁﬁﬁ&
LEAE-f 526 £=h
REMHERE
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SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)

Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

Bk ()
BIREE (F

Movement of Share Options during the year ended 31 December 2018
BECZ-N\ETCA=T-RLEEZERELD

Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise  Vesting schedule and Exercisable portion asat asat
price  exercise period of of the Share Options 31 December 31 December
Eligible persons  Date of grant [HKS)  the Share Options granted 017 Granted Exercised  Reclassified Lapsed 218
i i
EREL I3-tE 5§
kB BEWERR BRUEREZ TZRZ1-H +2A=1-8
RERAL RHAE (81 TAkHH qiERH HATE 54 Bfif  BEFAE BAN HATE
250102017 0.3025 1 Aprl 2020 to 31 March 2021 Up 0 30% (‘A Options’) 500,000,000 NIL NL NIL (500,000,000 NL
It S (both days inclusive) 550% ([ABERE]) & & & &
—-A=+aA" (the “A Period’)
Z32EEMA-BE
ZRI-EZAE-A7
(B EERMA) ([AHR)
1 April 202110 31 March 2022 Up'to 30% (‘B Options’)
(ooth days inclusive) (the ‘B (together with any A Options
Period) which have not been exercised
“E--%¥RA-BE during the A Period)
CECCESAZT-B? BHA0%(BEERE]) (ZRNA
(aEEEMA)(BEA)  BEEXORZEMARERE)
1 April 2022 0 24 January Up to the remaining balance of
2027 (both days inclusive) the options granted (together
(the “C Period) with any A and B Options which
ZBCf¥MA-RECR fiave not been exercised during
“t5-f-1ER® the A Period and B Period)
(REEEMA)(CHM)  REACREBREZEH(ER
RASERBERRAE L
fTAE RBEERE)
Others 16/9/2015 045 For Grantegs other than new employees who have joined the 100,226,000 NL NIL 9,630,000 (25,010,000 84,846,000
A —3-1% Company for less than 12 months or are yet to commence work & &
. ARTAR with the Company on the relevant date of grant (as the case may
be):
’ . RREERLAB ARA BIARLRAI R ZRARNAR
® BRAFARER HREN RS (BERAE):

1st Period
£-[5R

2nd Period
EG

1st Options
ERE ¢

2nd Options (together with any 1st
Options which have not been
exercised during the 1st Period)

S-ERE(ERAE-ESH
AR EfE-hERE)
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SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)

I AR FE (

,-E
Share Option Scheme (Cont’d) BIRET 2 ()
Movement of Share Options during the year ended 31 December 2018
BZE-NEtIBSt-BLEECBREZD
Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise  Vesting schedule and Exercisable portion asat asat
price  exercise period of of the Share Options 31 December 31 December
Eligible persons  Date of grant (HKS)  the Share Options granted 017 Granted Exercised  Reclassified Lapsed 2018
i i
EREZ I3-tE E-)\F
kB BEWERR BRUEREZ TZRZ1-H t2A=1-8
RERAL RHAE (B1) TAkEE qERH HATE B B  BENAE BN HATE
3rd Period 3rd Qptions (together with any 1st
=58 and 2nd Options which have not
been exercised during the 1st
Period and 2nd Period)
S=(BRE (RN E-AER
RE-EERHAGEENE
-hRE=(ERE)
4th Period 4th Options (together with any 1st,
EM AR 2nd and 3rd Options which have
not been exercised during the 1st
Period, 2nd Period and 3rd Period)
SROBRE (BRRE-EEH-
E-ABERE=EERRAT
feEmE-H E-hRE=
fhERE)
5th Period 5th Options (together with any 1st,
EEAEE 2nd, 3rd and 4th Options which

have not been exercised during the
15t Period, 2nd Period, 3rd Period
and 4th Period)

SnhERE ZEHN\ —[AHRE
ECEEE £-EHMRED
@Eﬁ h%ﬂfﬂﬂ” f3-

E-h E=RREMAE H%‘

For Grantees who are new employees who have joined the Company
forless than 12 months o are yet to commence work with the
Company on the relevant date of grant (as the case may be):

RREERLAB ARA (BIARLR) R ZRARNAR
RREDIERZ RS IE (BERAE):

16 March 2017 10 15 March Up to 20% (‘Options 1)
018 oth daysinclusive) 5% 20% ([ERE1])

fhe “Perig 1)

“E-{EZATARE
“I-\EzAt1A
(REEEMA) (581))
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SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D) BRAE ()
Share Option Scheme (Cont’d) BIRET 2 ()
Movement of Share Options during the year ended 31 December 2018
BZE-NEtIBSt-BLEEZBREZD
Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise  Vesting schedule and Exercisable portion asat asat
price  exercise period of of the Share Options 31 December 31 December
Eligible persons  Date of grant [HKS)  the Share Options granted 017 Granted Exercised  Reclassified Lapsed 218
i i
BhEz I3-tE 5§
kB BEWERR BRUEREZ TZRZ1-H +2A=1-8
RERAL RHAE (81 TAkHH qiERH HATE 54 Bfif  BEFAE BAN HATE
16 March 2018 10 15 March Upto 20% (‘Options 2
2019 (ooth days inclusive) [together with any Options 1
(the *Period 2') which have not been
Z5-/\EZAtARE exercised durmg the Period 1)
ZE-NEZATRA &5 0%([BHE)) (BRRER
CEEERENE R 1R EAERE)
16 March 201910 Upto 20% (‘Options &)
15 March 2020 (together with any Options 1
(ooth days inclusive) and 2 which have not been
( he “Period 3') exercised during the
ZE-NEZATAEE Periods 1 and2)
Z3ITEC Hﬂla 5% 00% ([BIRES)) (BRHH1
(aEERMA) (533 RomAfife EfERE R2)
16 March 2020 to 15 March Up to 20% (‘Options )
2021 (both days inclusive) (together with any Options
(the *Period 4') 1,2 and 3 which have not
ZEITECAARE been exercised during the
ZZZ-¥ZRTHA Periods 1, 2and )
(AHEERE)(884))  &500(ERE) (ERRERE
1 2R3EKREZ EERE
1213
16 March 2021 to 15 September  Up to 20% (together with any Options
2025 (both days inclusive) 1,2, 3:and 4 which have not been
I A WALE exercised during the Perods 1,2,
ZEIRENATEA 3and4)
(EERMA) 5% 0% ERRER1 23R4

RATEZ ETERE! 23
4
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SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D) IB IR #E (1)
Share Option Scheme (Cont’d) IR E 2 ()

Movement of Share Options during the year ended 31 December 2018
BZE-NEtIBSt-BLEECBREZD

Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise  Vesting schedule and Exercisable portion asat asat
price  exercise period of of the Share Options 31 December 31 December
Eligible persons  Date of grant (HKS)  the Share Options granted 017 Granted Exercised  Reclassified Lapsed 2018
i i
EREZ I3-tE E-)\F
kB BEWERR BRUEREZ TZRZ1-H t2A=1-8
RERAL RHAE (B1) TAkEE qERH HATE B B  BENAE BN HATE
9/9/2016 0.291 For Grantees other than new employees who have joined the 147,984,000 NL NL 4000000 (236960000 128,288,000

“ERE Company for ess than 12 months or are yet to commence work £ b

NANE with the Company on the relevant date of grant (as the case may
be):

W EBRLAA AR (RIARD A DR E
BIMELRIBRREN TS (BERAE):

the First Period the First Options

£-E5R F-hERE

the Second Period the Second Options (together with

Z-RHR any First Options which have not
been exercised during the First
Period)

E-NERE(ERNE-EHE
HANTRZ EAZ-HERE)

the Third Period the Third Options (together with any
£ (5 First and Second Options which
have not been exercised during the
First Period and Second Period)
£ RERE (RN 2 - AR
RE-EEREAGEANE
-BRE-(ERE)

the Fourth Period the Fourth Options (together with any
EMESE First, Second and Third Options
which have not been exercised
during the First Period, Second
Period and Third Period) PY
SMRERE (BRRE-REH -
- EBERE=AHEEAT
feEmE-H E-hRE=

hERE)
the Fifth Period the Fifth Options (together with any ‘
ERAEE First, Second, Third and Fourth

Options which have not been
exercised during the First Period,
Second Period, Third Period and
Fourth Period)
SRhERE(RARE-EHR -
S_ESE - 2-EERREN
BSRRAR EEAE -
E-fh E=RREMDERE)
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SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)
Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

Exercise
price
(HKS)

Vesting schedule and
exercise period of
the Share Options

Eligible persons  Date of grant

EREZ
BREERR
TEEE

iR

REBAL RHAH (E7)

A AR R (
BRREE (E)

ma

Movement of Share Options during the year ended 31 December 2018
BECR-NETCR=T-ALEEZRREZD

Outstanding Outstanding

Exercisable portion asat asat
of the Share Options 31 December 31 December
granted 2017 Granted Exercised  Reclassified Lapsed 2018
i i

tE-tE It it

BRLEREZ tZB=t-H tZR=t-A
qiEHH AT [Bf:d Bfif  BENAE BXM HRTE

For Grantees who are new employess who have joined the Company
forless than 12 months o are yet to commence work with the
Company on the relevant date of grant (as the case may be):

ﬁH@@&EH#Z%xA’ﬁE
BREDEERZFEEIE

9 March 2018 t0 8 March 2019
(ooth days inclusive) (the ‘I
Period’)

- N\E=fnRE
Z2-NEZANA
(REEERA) (53]

9 March 2019 to 8 March 2020
(ooth days inclusive)
(the “Il Period”)
Z5-NEZANRE
ZZ2EE-A/H
(BFEEERA) (531

9 March 2020 to 8 March 2021
(ooth days inclusive)
(the ‘Il Period’)

“E-FEZRARE
“5-EZ ﬂ/\E
(BEEERR) ([5E1))

9 March 2021 to 8 March 2022
(ooth days inclusive)
(the “IV Period")
“3--EZANRE
ZE_ZFZAA
(REEERA) (HRV)

9 March 2022 to
8 September 202
(ooth days inclusive)
ZEICESANAE
ZRZREAANR
(REBEMA)

MNELESRTZEAZNAR
£ (RERME):

Upto 20% (‘Options I'
5% 20 ([EHE)

Upto 20% (‘Options I)
(together with any Options |
which have not been exercised
during the | Penod)

5% 20%(55 @H\@ﬂ AR
IRARTE B RIED

Upto 20% (‘Options II")
(together with any Options | and
[l which have not been exercised
during the | and Il Periods)
&% 0% ([BH0EN]) (ERR:
\RIHRTTEZE T%ﬂx%\&\\/

Up to 20% (‘Options V")
(together with any Options I, I
and Il which have not been
exercised during the 1, Iland
Periods)

5% 0% [ BREN) (ERAHH
I IRINAFE EERRE
I M)

Up to 20% (together with any
Options |, 11, l and IV which
have ot been exercised during
the | 1, ll and IV Periods)
EEK%QD%‘@HY\EEW IRV
AT ZEMERE 1 1k
W
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SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)
Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

* References are made to the announcements of the Company dated 25
January 2017, 20 March 2017 and the circular dated 26 June 2017 in
relation to the conditional grant of Share Options to Mr. Chen Chunguo
to subscribe for up to an aggregate of 500,000,000 ordinary shares. On
17 July 2017, the Shareholders excluding Mr. Chen and his associates
(the “Independent Shareholders”) has approved the resolution at
the extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”), please refer to the
announcement dated 17 July 2017 for details.

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 6 July
2018 regarding the resignation of Mr. Chen. Mr. Chen surrendered
the options to subscribe for up to an aggregate 500,000,000 ordinary
shares in the Company granted to him on 25 January 2017. Please
refer to the announcement dated 6 July 2018 for details.

2 Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 28
September 2017 in relation to the change of financial year end date, the
Vesting Schedule and exercise period of the share options granted to
Mr. Chen changed accordingly.

Save as disclosed above, no further share options were granted,
outstanding, lapsed, cancelled or exercised for the year ended 31
December 2018.

% HX* /na
IR E 2 ()

*4 }E IRAARAAE-_TE—+F—A=-+HA
—tHF=A-t+HZAERBHAE-ZT—+t
i/\ﬂ_'f'/\HZLl_l ARA B RRER LA

H G B ] RE A 5 % 500,000,000 f I i

B ERE - R_ZT—tFtA+ER BRCR
BEREEREBREA) ((BIRE]) ESRRKRE
BRIARE ([REFHRE ) EHEZRER - &
BE2MHBHA-T—tFLATHERAZAE -

ZRBARBBHAZST - \FLARNBZAE
NEFBARELERT REEXER T —+L
F-A-THAMERARBARAEGHES
500,000,000 f & 3@ ik 2 BE i1 - S BB 2 M AR
RABRAE-ZT-NFLARBZRAE -

2 HRBMARRBBMAZZT—+FEAAZTNAAR
REBERTRFEEERZRE  ARELER
HZ BRENR B RTEREE T UER -

BREXHBEEN BE_T-NF+_-A
=t HUEFE SEEGBRES RS WA
T8 - KRB SN ITE -
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BEGHE

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, the following Directors and chief executives
of the Company had or were deemed to have interest or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) (the “SFQO”)) (i) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or (i) which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (i) which were,
pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules related to
securities transactions by the Directors to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange:

SRR K& AEE

RZZTE—N\F+-A=+—H" THESZTEAR
AERSTRAERARGT REEHEIE (TR
BEBEPIETIEFFRBERDN ([FHERBE
151 EXVED) 2% - ARG SRES+ -
BRERIEESR()VRIEES R E K EXVIEH
BT REDEBAME ADE) KB T2 S EOR
B (EEEEREZEFALRBEKRMNEBIECRE
ESRBIEE R 2 D TAR)  HNBEEHF K
HAE 50| 56 352 6 8 50 A & I P it & 50 1 2 2
SOK A S (i) AR B GEM E TR B £ 5.46 £ 5.67
BKERERETESRGZHRTEEMGARA R
BTz SRR

Long Positions HE

Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company REXARGREER G Z D
Aggregate long Approximate
position in the percentage of
Name of Directors/ shares and the issued
chief executives Capacity underlying shares share capital
RS R e &7
HERGZ AL
EE BRTBABHSE 14 R Aotk
Chan Bing Woon (Note 1) Beneficial owner 4,230,000 0.02%

PR (BRE) EmEAA
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AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (CONT’D)

Long Positions (Cont’d)

Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
(Cont’d)

Note:

1. Mr. Chan Bing Woon (“Mr. Chan”) is an independent non-executive
Director of the Company. On 16 September 2015, Mr. Chan was
granted 1,930,000 Share Options by the Company under the Share
Option Scheme entitling him to subscribe for 1,930,000 shares of the
Company at the exercise price of HK$0.45 per share, subject to the
terms and conditions of the Share Option Scheme.

On 9 September 2016, Mr. Chan was granted 2,300,000 Share
Options by the Company under the Share Option Scheme entitling
him to subscribe for 2,300,000 shares of the Company at the exercise
price of HK$0.291 per share, subject to the terms and conditions of the
Share Option Scheme.

Assuming the Share Options granted to Mr. Chan on 16 September
2015 and 9 September 2016 have been exercised in full, Mr. Chan shall
hold 4,230,000 shares of the Company as beneficial owner.

By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Chan shall be deemed to be interested in
4,230,000 shares of the Company as at 31 December 2018.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
Directors nor the chief executives of the Company had or was
deemed to have any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) (i) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO); or (i) which were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (iii) which were, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by
Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SRIRM% K AEE

#E ()
RER R RIGBIR 12 125 ()

P&

BRmEEE ([BREE]) BARARELIERITE
ZFE-RZZE—AFNAT B BREEEAEAR

1R 15 B PR HE 5T 21 9% 1,930,000 17 B8 A% # - B2 F
E*&%‘JT&:&OA&%nZMﬁaME%1 930,000
PEAD B - B T R RT B 2 AR FK R AE
o

—

RZZ—RNFNLANB  BAEEEERRQRBEE
PS4 51 21 5% 2,300,000 17 88 B #E - BE T EL4E R
Al | A% 0.291 % 7T 2 171 {2 52 8% 2,300,000 A& 2%

NEn - HEZRE ST R AR 5 B R R Mk

& —RHFNATARBEZZ—XRFNA
ij&%W’ﬁima%Wéz%?ﬁ%mﬁ [RSC 18
VERE XA AIEH 4,230,000 (% A A GRS ©

REEFLBAEGN R-Z—-N\F+ A

=+ — A BRELEERRSRN 4,230,000 KA
A R A A

MLXPH&E%%?I\ \:7 NEF+ZA= +—
BEEFEXARFAZFITHABRRAR

Hifﬁﬂwa’:l(m%%p %&Hﬂiﬂwlfﬁxv*ll)z
f&in - HERMDESTPER R IEES ()R
TJ§ EAEREBEKAIEXVEHET RS D BAMG A

NARBRz SRR (BIERSEREES
&Hﬂfﬂﬂﬁuﬁf%&%ﬁz”‘f’&ﬂﬁfﬁ%ﬁﬂé¥
E3/-DK (||)$ET)§ &5 N ERE &0 5 352 7B
ua/\;%wﬁz_ s 2 = Ek//*\%vjz(m)ﬁﬂf
GEM EMRAIFES46E567I6B BE FHITE
(R P2 RTEBME AN T M BB 8 s 5K

A
B e
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2018, the
following parties (not being the Directors or chief executives of the
Company) had, or were deemed to have, interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company (i)
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO; or (i) which were required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein:

Exﬂx%& L A+ R BR1D K AE S
f% 10 2 =

BESEMAM RZZEZ—N\F+A=+—H" T
WAL GEESTIARRERTHRAR) RERQ
ARG, - HERGKEST - AR IEES ()
*E?J%uﬁ%&ﬂ;ﬁffwﬁﬂ%w*ﬁ%?&3"*521\7RX
JAMANA B K B AT T 5 < M s ook ﬁ'&(n)ﬂi
TJ%.M%&HH?{IM@J%3361!%?%1;.5)\321 Ffr st
iRz ERSIAE -

Long positions HE
Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company REXARGREER G ZE D
Aggregate long Approximate
position in the percentage
shares and of the issued
Name of Shareholders Capacity underlying shares share capital
RRG REE HEBITRA
BERMES AR &4 1P 2B 4ast BABE DL
China Orient Asset Management Co., Held by controlled 5,642,155,319 32.08%
Ltd (Note 2) corporation
PRERSEEEERMNDBRA BEEEERE
(MH3E2)
China Orient Alternative Investment Held by controlled 5,258,155,319 29.90%
Fund (Note 2) (Hf&E2) corporation
BEEEERE
All Favour Holdings Limited (Note 3) Beneficial owner 5,258,155,319 29.90%
. PIEZERA R AR (EE3) EnfEBA
’ ¢ Dai Yumin (Note 3) Held by controlled corporation 5,258,155,319 29.90%
.‘ 28 (MFE3) BEEEERE
‘ Beneficial owner 17,500,000 0.10%
. EnfB A
‘ China Dragon Asia Champion Investment manager 1,404,779,300 7.99%
® ‘ Fund Series SPC (Note 4) WEKE
‘ (BisE4)
p -
®
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (CONT’D)

Long positions (Cont’d)

Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

(Con

t'd)

Notes:

2.

Based on Forms 2 both filed on 25 January 2018 by China Orient
Asset Management Co., Ltd (“COAMC”) and China Orient Alternative
Investment Fund (“COAIF”), Optimus Prime Management Ltd.
(“Optimus”) has a security interest in 5,258,155,319 shares of the
Company and China Orient Asset Management (International) Holding
Limited (“COAMI”) has an interest in 384,000,000 shares of the
Company. Optimus is wholly owned by COAIF. COAIF is owned to
45% by COAMI. COAMI is owned as to (i) 50% by Wise Leader Assets
Ltd. (“Wise Leader”) which is wholly owned by Dong Yin Development
(Holdings) Limited (“Dong Yin”); and (ii) 50% by Dong Yin which is
wholly owned by COAMC. By virtue of the SFO, Wise Leader, Dong
Yin and COAMC are deemed to be interested in 384,000,000 shares of
the Company held by COAMI, and COAIF, COAMI, Wise Leader, Dong
Yin and COAMC are deemed to be interested in 5,258,155,319 shares
of the Company held by Optimus as security interest. As a result, Wise
Leader, Dong Yin and COAMC are deemed to be interested in an
aggregate of 5,642,155,319 shares of the Company.

All Favour Holdings Limited (“All Favour”) is beneficially owned as to (i)
40% by Nat-Ace Wood Industry Ltd. (“Nat-Ace Wood Industry”) and
20% by Honour Top Holdings Limited which are both ultimately wholly
owned by Mr. Dai Yumin (“Mr. Dai”), and (i) 40% by Mr. Dai. Moreover,
All Favour has been the beneficial owner of 5,258,155,319 shares of
the Company.

By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Dai and Nat-Ace Wood Industry are deemed
to be interested in 5,258,155,319 shares of the Company in which All
Favour is interested in.

On 16 September 2015, Mr. Dai was granted 17,500,000 Share
Options by the Company under the Share Option Scheme entitling him
to subscribe for 17,500,000 shares of the Company at the exercise
price of HK$0.45 per share, subject to the terms and conditions of
the Share Option Scheme. Assuming the Share Options granted to
Mr. Dai has been exercised in full, Mr. Dai shall hold an aggregate of
17,500,000 shares of the Company as beneficial owner. By virtue of
the SFO, Mr. Dai, together with his deemed interests in All Favour, was
deemed to be interested in an aggregate of 5,275,655,319 shares of
the Company.

The Company was informed by All Favour that it has pledged its
interests in 5,258,155,319 shares of the Company in favour of Optimus
Prime Management Ltd..

Based on Form 2 filed on 11 October 2018 by China Dragon Asia
Champion Fund Series SPC (“China Dragon”), China Dragon holds
1,404,779,300 shares of the Company as an Investment manager.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
= EEWfRE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (CONT’D)

Long positions (Cont’d)

Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
(Cont’d)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the Directors are
not aware that there is any other party (other than the Directors and
the chief executives of the Company) who had, or was deemed to
have, interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company (i) which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company and Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO; or (ii) which were required, pursuant
to section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading “DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES” in this report, at no time during the
Reporting Period were the rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to
any Director or chief executive of the Company or their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company or its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights or
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

The Company had not entered into any connected transaction during
the Reporting Period which is required to be disclosed under the
GEM Listing Rules.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and chief executives and
the five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in note 9 to
the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
BEGHE

EMOLUMENT POLICY

A Remuneration Committee is set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
practices.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as incentive to
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out in
note 34 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors or the substantial shareholders of the Company,
or any of their respective close associates (as defined under the GEM
Listing Rules) had any interest in a business that competes or may
compete with the business of the Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 50% of the Group’s total turnover for the year. In
particular, sales to the largest customer of the Group accounted for
approximately 17% of the Group’s total turnover for the year.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 54% of the Group’s total purchases for the year. In
particular, purchases from the Group’s largest supplier accounted for
approximately 27% of the Group’s total purchases for the year.

None of the Directors of the Company, their close associates (as
defined under GEM Listing Rules) or any Shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors of the Company own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interests in the
Group'’s five largest customers or suppliers.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FR&RIE AR
The following table sets out the revised use and actual use of the net TER#HIIEHEZEZ_ZT—NF+_A=+—H1 &
proceeds from the placings as at 31 December 2018: EMSRIFRE2EEBTRERERRS -

Total net
Date of announcement  Fund raising activities Revised use of the net proceeds proceeds Utilised Unutilised
NERS SEE FEREFEvLETRE FEREFELE EHA *BA

(HKDMilon) ~ (HKDMilon) ~ (HKD Milion)
(BBBTL) (BEAT) (BE#T)

10 November 2014, Placing of 3,300,000,000 (@) Used for existing operations and 730 730 -
6 February 2015 and new shares and grant of products development and expansions
5 March 2015 share options under specific in tissue engineering
“Z-ME+-F+E-  mandate under the First ) BREBTIRZABLENERH
“Z-R%ZA~BR  Placng BEUARER
E-RFZARAR RE-REEETRERAK
R £3,300,000,0000 % (o) Used for broadening R&D coverage, 269.0 269.0 -
PRE L ERE opportunities in regenerative medicine

and stem cell related industries, and
other investments

) BRAERMEEZEE BEEER
AR EREENANRE

(c) Settlement of consideration under the 4750 4750 -
Sale and Purchase Agreement
() BEEEWZETIAE

Sub-total 817.0 817.0 -
INEF

23 March 2015 and Placing of 977,300,000 new (@) Used for existing operations and 64.6 64.6 -
22 April 2015 shares under general mandate products development and expansions
under the Second Placing in tissue engineering
ZE-IF-ACTZR RECAREETRE-HRE () BREBIRIRELEN
R=F-%F TERLE 977,300,000 (R 37 R ERREIRER
MAZ+ZH {7

(b)  Used for broadening R&D coverage, 814 814 -
’ capturing strategic investment
® opportunities in regenerative medicine
. and stem cell related industries, and
other investments
© b BRSEFEESEE REELE
. ERGRNEEERNERR AR

‘ SREMILE

(c) Settlement of consideration under the 130.0 130.0 -
‘ Sale and Purchase Agreement

. . ) REEERZETIAR

® Sub-total 2760 2760 -
© i
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USE OF PROCEEDS (CONT’D) Fr8IERAE (&)
Total net
Date of announcement  Fund raising activities Revised use of the net proceeds proceeds Utilised Unutilised
NERH REED FERERE LT AR FENERELE EBA B A
(HKD Milion) (HKD Milion) (HKD Milion)
(BE#T) (BE#T) (BEBT)
10 July 2015 and Placing of 1,150,000,000 new (@ Money lending operation 150.0 120.0 300
30 July 2015 shares under general mandate  (a) MEEHE
ZE-nEtATRR under the Third Placing
ZE-REEASTH RE-REEETRE-KEK () Medcal equipment trading 50.0 50.0 -
EEE1,150,0000005 K () BERBES
{n
(c) General working capital 256.0 256.0 -
 —HeEES
Sub-total 456.0 426.0 30.0
N
Total 1,549.0 1,519.0 30.0
@

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

For the year ended 31 December 2018, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s
listed securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company maintains a high standard of corporate governance
practices. Details of the corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 63 to 87. The Directors believe the long term financial
performance as opposed to short term rewards is a corporate
governance objective. The Board would not take undue risks to make
short term gains at the expense of long term objectives.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual report,
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
GEM Listing Rules.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Directors acknowledge the importance of stakeholders’
engagement, and would make effort to share the Group’s results
with shareholders by dividend payment. The Directors will determine
the portion and actual amount of distribution out of profits based
on various factors, including but not limited to the Group’s financial
condition, funding for R&D, cash availability and future plans.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors the written confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has three members, comprising of our
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ermnest
(the chairman of Audit Committee), Mr. Chan Bing Woon and Dr.
Fang Jun. The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2018.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association, or laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders of the Company.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Ray Yip
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 11 April 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BN A2 AR S

|IBDO

EEE 1 +852 2218 8288
{85 : +852 2815 2239

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
HFATHEPR1115E
k2258

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA REGENERATIVE MEDICINE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Regenerative Medicine International Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on pages 138 to 267,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
HKICPA'’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Impairment of goodwill, other intangible assets and
property, plant and equipment

(Refer to notes 14, 16 and 18 to the consolidated financial
Statements)

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amounts of goodwill, other
intangible assets and property, plant and equipment, before current
year's impairment, are HK$202,292,000, HK$387,740,000 and
HK$273,731,000 respectively. These assets are mainly relating to
Aierfu Business, Reshine Business, Weikai Business and AK Business
and are assessed annually for impairment. The Group has made
losses for current and previous years. These situations increase the
risk that the carrying value of these assets may be impaired.

Impairment tests require the estimation of recoverable values of
the relevant cash generating units using a discounted cash flow,
as detailed in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.
Management concluded the impairment losses of goodwill, property,
plant and equipment and other intangible assets of HK$202,292,000,
HK$168,486,000 and HK$275,896,000 respectively were recognised
in profit or loss during the year as the recoverable values of the cash
generating units were lower than the related assets of these cash
generating units.

We have identified such impairment assessment as a key audit
matter because of their significance to the consolidated financial
statements and it involves a significant degree of judgement made by
management which includes:

° Preparing future cash flow forecasts for Aierfu Business,
Reshine Business, Weikai Business and AK Business; and

° Selecting and applying appropriate growth and discount rates

The Group engages an independent external valuer to assist the
management in assessing the recoverable values.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT’D)

Our response

Our audit procedures in relation to the management’s impairment
assessment included:

° Assessing the accuracy of management’s forecast by
comparing previous budgets to actual results;

° Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions of the
forecast based on our knowledge of the industry and evidence
provided;

° Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodologies;

° Reconciling input data to supporting evidence and checking the
mathematical accuracy of the calculation of the valuations; and

o Evaluating the independent external valuer’s competence,
capabilities and objectivity.

Impairment of trade receivables

(Refer to notes 22 to the consolidated financial statements)

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amounts of gross trade
receivables amounted to HK$143,805,000 represented 14% of the
Group’s current assets before current year’s impairment loss on trade
receivables. Impairment loss on trade receivables of HK$139,006,000
was recognised in profit or loss during the year.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are based on management’s
estimate of the lifetime expected credit losses to be incurred, which
is estimated by taking into account the credit loss experience, ageing
of trade receivables, customers’ repayment history and customers’
financial position and an assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions, all of which involve a significant degree
of management judgement.

We identified assessing the recoverability of trade receivables as a key
audit matter because the assessment of the recoverability of trade
receivables and recognition of loss allowance are inherently subjective
and requires significant management judgement, which increases the
risk of error or potential management bias.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT’D)

Our response

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment included:

= Ascertaining our understanding on the policy and operating
effectiveness of internal controls which oversee credit control,
debt collection and estimate of expected credit losses;

- Assessing, on a sample basis, whether items in the trade
receivables ageing report were classified within the appropriate
ageing bracket by comparing individual items in the report with
the relevant sales invoices;

- Assessing the reasonableness of management’s loss allowance
estimates by examining the information used by management
to form such judgements;

- Inspecting subsequent cash receipts from customers after the
financial year end relating to trade receivables balances as at 31
December 2018, on a sample basis; and

= Discussing with management about the recoverability status
of material overdue balances and assess whether provision is
required.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the annual report but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not and will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibilities in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ERVREE 2GR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF XM Bst 42 & B 1S 3R 3= AR IE
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HWEE (8)

(CONT'D)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise fEiREE B ETEBBETETRBRES » HIE
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism A7 B HE - R3F 7T EE IR - T :

throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the e

consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit e

in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used e

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the e

going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the

consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BN A2 AR S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONT'D)

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lam Pik Wah

Practising Certificate Number P0O5325

Hong Kong, 11 April 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

=N 7
sraBmM

KEAM R ERATR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H & ==

—N\F+ZA=+—HLEFE

Period from
Yearended 1 May 2017 to
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
BE-Z—tfF
8= AH—H#E
—E-N\FE E-_FT—+tF
+=B=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
IHEE 1EHAR
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B E FET FHET
Revenue s 5 72,952 503,680
Cost of sales $H & AR (45,946) (356,384)
Gross profit EF 27,006 147,296
Other income HABA 5 23,857 49,909
Selling and distribution expenses HE RS HEAX (134,695) (89,270)
Administrative and other expenses TR R H AR (324,017) (238,984)
Fair value (loss)/gain on contingent FERHAREB 2 A FE
consideration receivables (E#8) / g 17 (26,271) (15,876)
Expected credit loss on trade receivables BRI IEESREE
&8 22 (139,006) =
Reversal of expected credit loss on Hi W IBBSEE
other receivables fE5 18 4 O] 22 2,458 =
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair value A FERIEZEIIEZ
through profit or loss TREECATEERE (113,803) =
Impairment of goodwill EESNEAE] 16 (202,292) =
Impairment of property, plant and equipment Y - WE kERERE 14 (168,486) =
Impairment of other intangible assets HEmEmEEERE 18 (275,896) =
Finance costs W52 A 7 (21,654) (24,901)
Loss before income tax RRFr{S B AT &8 8 (1,352,799) (171,826)
Income tax credit FIETiE R 11 68,884 5,610
Loss for the year/period AEE /HEEES (1,283,915) (166,216)
Other comprehensive income HatZmEUWA
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently HgneeEsoE
to profit or loss: BmsIAB
Exchange gain/(loss) on translation of MEBINRB I BHREK
financial statements of foreign operations ZER W (EE) (14,311) 31,621
Available for sales financial assets AR ESREE - (13,163)
ltems that may not be reclassified /H\ 1% Ol E MoRE
subsequently to profit or loss: i-Eapsl=
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEREMD
other comprehensive income FEKET IR
ZERMEE (3,777) -
Other comprehensive income for AN, FEEHAD
the period/year ZEIKA (18,088) 18,458
Total comprehensive income for the REE HEEEmAKRA
year/period (1,302,003) (147,758)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
reEmREMEERAR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFZ

Period from

Yearended 1 May 2017 to

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
BE-_ZT—tfF

8= AH—H#E
—E-N\FE E-_FT—+tF
+=ZA=+—-H +t=—A=+—H

IHEE 1EHAR
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
hg=a FHExT FHET
Loss for the year/period attributable to: UTALTEIEEREE
HIEEE -
Owners of the Company VN/NEIEZZEN (1,193,501) (158,492)
Non-controlling interests FETE AR AR SR A 2 (90,414) (7,724)
(1,283,915) (166,216)
Total comprehensive income for the LR AT EIEARBE,
period/year attributable to: FEZEAWA :
Owners of the Company VN/NEIESZEN (1,210,195) (142,500)
Non-controlling interests FEE AR AR SR A 2 (91,808) (5,258)
(1,302,003) (147,758)
Loss per share for loss for the year/period 72 F#HE AFE1S
attributable to owners of the Company REE HEEEZ
BRER 13
- basic (HK cents) — B (GBAL) (6.787) (0.901)
- diluted (HK cents) — 58 (B4L) (6.787) (0.901)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ARE RIIEARER

As at 31 December 2018 R=ZE— N\FE+-A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5 FHET FHET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAR
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - WE REE 14 105,245 294,653
Land use rights o Hb {5 A A 15 4,091 4,416
Goodwill Bk 16 - 202,292
Contingent consideration receivables FEM AR E 17 - 32,502
Other intangible assets HEEEEE 18 111,844 444,745
Deposits for acquisition of property, BEYE BEK
plant and equipment REzEe - 491
Deposits for acquisition of subsidiaries WEEKB AR 2kE 35 145,457 100,000
Pledged bank deposits SRR TR 24 28,200 818,062
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESREE 19 - 454,456
Financial assets at fair value through other G/ 3?@75(\ AT IR
comprehensive income ZEREE 20 161,445 -
556,282 2,351,617
Current assets REEE
Contingent consideration receivables fEUS B SRR (B 17 4,587 =
Inventories FE 21 32,375 28,750
Trade receivables FEYE 5 8R18 22 4,128 279,806
Deposits, prepayments and e ERRER
other receivables H A U s 22 117,825 490,673
Financial assets at fair value through EAFERERYEZ
profit or loss CRLE E 23 208,296 12,154
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESRERE 19 - 120,600
Pledged bank deposits 2R Tﬂ? 24 389,368 —
Cash and cash equivalents BeNhIREEEIER 24 20,062 244,373
866,641 1,176,356
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables FERE 5 8R18 25 24,210 238,346
Accrued charges and other payables Bt ERAREMEMNIEKE 26 143,959 147,869
Contract liabilities EHaE 27 28,676 =
Shareholder loans R E K 28 58,334 372,542
Bank borrowings RITIENK 29 366,400 =
Current tax liabilities EHNIEEE 1,520 2,976
623,099 761,733
Net current assets MENEEFE 243,542 414,623
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ARERIIEARR

As at 31 December 2018 R ==

—N\F+ZA=+—H

2018 2017
—E2-N\#F —tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B3 FET THTT
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBERE 799,824 2,766,240
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Shareholder loans R E = 28 200,000 100,000
Bank borrowings RITEN 29 22,900 771,840
Deferred taxation RIEFIIA 30 9,661 81,076
232,561 952,916
Net assets EEFE 567,263 1,813,324
EQUITY e
Share capital [N 31 175,858 175,858
Reserves i 429,921 1,584,174
Equity attributable to owners AAREEAELERER
of the Company 605,779 1,760,032
Non-controlling interests FERBRER (38,516) 53,292
Total equity MR e 567,263 1,813,324

On behalf of the directors

Dr. Ray Yip
EEEL
Director

EF

REE=S

Mr. Wang Xuejun
TEERE
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

\\/T\

e 7
T Z \lnl:l/n%bi%

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H & ==

—N\F+ZA=+—RHLFE

Non-
controling
Attributable to owners of the Company inferests Total
R
YN U RixER ait
Avallgble-
for-sale
Shere financial
Share Share  Tranglation Special Other option assets  Accumulated
capttal premium resene eserve reserve reserve reserve losses  Sub-fotal
e
BhiE SHEE
RE  KhRE AEEE  RRER  AfEE i BB ZiBE Nt
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HK§00D  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000
TiL TiEL T T T ThTL T Tin T TiEn Thn
(note 31)
(R31)
A0 Apil 2017 and 1 May 2017 R=E-tERA=THR
Z3-tERA-H 175858 3,19699 (49,239 (2000 (410469) 34,674 - (1070595 1,877,037 3085 190789
Loss for the period 1HEEE - - - - - - - (158490 (158492) (1724 (166.216)
Other comprehensive income ~ E#2EUA
Bxchange ganon transkton of ~~ BEBAEEEBHRZ
financil statements of foreign Eiha
operations - - 29,15 - - - - - 29,155 2,466 31,621
Avalable-forse fnancialassets AL HESRAE - - - - - - (13163 - (13183 - (13183
Total comprehensive income ~ AHE2ELNA
for the period - - 29,155 - - - (13,163 (158492 (142,500 (6,268 (147,758
Acquistion of asubsidary (ote 41) - WEEHB R (1) - - - - - - - - - Ue% 6%
lssue of share options (note 36) ~ E/7EEE (R3£36) - - - - - 25,49 - - 25,4% - 25,4%
Lapse of share options (note 3) B MEBRIE (K £36) - - - - - 7240 - 7240 = = =
At 31 December 2017 RZE-tEtZA=+-A 175858 3,196,996 (32,99) (2000 (410463 5929 (13,163 (414000 1,760,082 53202 181334
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

—||— N/
/ \Il\l:lll\
/\\/T\ T %b%%

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H & ==

—N\F+ZA=+—RHLFE

Non-
controlling Total
Attributable to owners of the Company interests equity
ARIREAER FBEREER  4RR
Available-
for-sale
Share  financial
Share Share  Translation Special Other option assets FVOCI Accumulated
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses  Sub-total
RATE
THEE REMRE
SHEE  WATIE
ke REEE  ENBE RAER  EtER ERERRE B 28k RAER it
HKS000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TEr  TEn  TEn TR TEn  TEm  TEn  TEn  TEn  TEx  TEn  TEn
(note 31)
(B3 31)
Balance at 31 December 2017 H=Z-t&E+=f
as originally presented St-RRR%E5
P33 175,858 3,196,096 (20,078) (200) (410,463 52,929 (13,163) - (1,221847) 1,760,032 53202 1,813,324
hifelapplcatonof HKFRS 9.~ BAER A AB B8
ote2) 295 (3k2) - - - - - - 13163 52204 (8966 56491 - 5641
Restated balance as at RZB-NE-R-AZ
1 January 2018 HER] 175858 3,196,996 (20,078) (200) (410,463 52,929 - 52204 (1,20813) 1,816,523 53202 1,869,815
Loss for the year EnER - - - - - - - - (1193501) (1,198,501 (00.414) (1,283,915)
Other comprehensive income £ 2EHA
Bxchange loss on ranslationof 8IS ERBHRR
financial statements of foreign EiER
operations - - (12917) - - - - - - (12917) (1,304 (14311)
Fairvalue change of fnancill ~~ RATEREBZARA
asseis at farvaue through other S BMEBEEZ AT
comprehensive Income %) - - - - - - - 311 - 311 - (3777
Total comprehensieincome ~ ER2ANEAE
forthe year - - (12,917) - - - - 8777 (1,193501) (1,210,195 (91,808) (1,302,008)
Fouty-setfled share-based HRESSHHRAAER
payments (note 36) B3 (P 36) - - - - - (549) - - - (649) - (649)
Lapse of share options (note 36) BB IEM (R3E36) - - - - - (024 - - 10 - - -
Balance at 31 December 2018 H=F-NE1=A
Zt-B2H 175858 3160 (2095 00 (410463 42156 - WET A0 B5TI9 (8516 56728
The special reserve represents the difference between the nominal 4% HFHEREAEER ST —FHHE - HIE

value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal value
of the Company’s shares issued for their acquisition at the time of the

Group’s reorganisation in 2001.

The other reserve represents the difference between the fair value
of consideration paid to increase the shareholding in a subsidiary,
Shaanxi Aierfu Activtissue Engineering Company Limited and the
amount of adjustment to non-controlling interests during the years

ended 30 April 2011, 2013 and 2014.

B AR EEEAR AR EZFHE AR
P AETZRARRMDE(EZ Z5

HFEHEREREBEE—_T——F —T— =Kk
E-MNEMA=THILEFEREZNN —HHBA
A RANBEABTREERAR - ZREMN
REZAFEEFZERERESARSEIER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

/\\/T\/\EE stz ;ﬁ:%%

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H & ==

—N\F+ZA=+—HLEFE

Period from
Yearended 1 May 2017 to
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
BE-Z—tfF
8= AH—H#E
—E-N\FE E-_FT—+tF
+=B=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
IHEE 1EHAR
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B E FET FHET
Cash flows from operating activities REFTH2EHSRE
Loss before income tax B PS¢ A B 18 (1,352,799) (171,826)
Adjustments for: R
Amortisation of land use rights oMb AR A 5 106 69
Amortisation of other intangible assets HimpEE#E 43,386 30,428
Depreciation e 26,210 10,494
Interest income MEUA (7,026) (10,265)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEMB AR 2 W 42 - (35,206)
Gain on disposals of property plant and HEYE BE R
equipment, net B Wam (55E) - (1)
Gain on financial assets at fair value through EAFEREBERIERZ
profit or loss SREE W 113,803 (118)
Fair value loss/(gain) on contingent FEW S AR E Z A1E
consideration receivables B8, (s 26,271 15,876
Written off property, plant and equipment P - R %&“ i) - 427
Equity-settled share-base payment expenses LAz 45 & 2 JE#E
<NER (549) 25,495
Interest expenses MEE A 21,654 24,901
Impairment loss on goodwil EEREEE 202,292 =
Impairment loss on property, W - EREHE
plant and equipment B 1B 168,486 =
Impairment loss on intangible assets EREEZREEIE 275,896 =
B EWHIEESEE
Expected credit loss on trade receivables 518 139,006 -
Reversal of expected credit loss on other HihEW kBB EE
receivables B8 2 = (2,458) -
Operating loss before working capital EEESEEATZ
changes REEE (345,722) (109,726)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories =FEOgm e (5,079) 34,483
Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables FEUE S ERIER
(3L 1n) 117,654 (238,292)
Decrease/(Increase) in deposits, prepayments %% ~ T FI8 & H b g
and other receivables Wk R D (32 1) 347,636 (120,291)
Changes in financial assets at fair value BATFERERIIRZ
through profit or loss TREEZD 74,097 -
(Decrease)/Increase in trade payables BB SERECRD)
2 (202,080) 197,266
Increase in contract liabilities BB EEM 5,107 =
Increase in accrued charges and FEETE A K H b fEfTBRIB
other payables 3 0 27,138 44,560
Cash generated from/(used in) operations fxzﬁ ¥KFE/ (R 2
BE 18,751 (192,000)
Income taxes paid BAFTER - (1,291)

China Regenerative Medicine International Limited Annual Report 2018



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

relRTnER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFZ

Period from
Yearended 1 May 2017 to
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
BE-Z—tfF
8= AH—H#E
—E-N\FE E-_FT—+tF
+=B=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
IHEE 1EHAR
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B E FET FHET
Net cash generated from/(used in) KESEE TS, (M)
operating activities ReFHE 18,751 (193,291)
Cash flows from investing activities RETHZ2RERE
Interest received B W F B 7,026 437
Decrease in pledged deposits BEREFORD 400,494 =
Payment of deposits for acquisition I BB B R RlR S R
of subsidiaries (45,457) (100,000)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE  WEK&EHE (13,221) (6,067)
Purchase of other intangible assets BEHEMEREE 18 - (3,475)
Purchases of available-for-sale financial assets B E At HES R EE - (475,291)
Net cash inflow from acquisition of subsidiary ~ WEEH B A A 2R R A
T 41 - 5
Net cash inflow from disposal of subsidiary HEMRBARZEER
i 42 - 24,911
Proceeds from disposal of property, plantand ~ HE®E¥ - HiE K&
equipment R FT1S RIE 1,315 9
Net cash generated from/(used in) REZTEFE,(3H)
investing activities ReFHE 350,157 (559,471)
Cash flows from financing activities METHZ2RERE 43
Proceeds from shareholder’s loans IR E R IE - 472,542
Repayment of shareholder’s loan EERRER (214,208) =
Repayment of bank borrowings EEBIRITIER (343,500) (28,345)
Interest paid on bank borrowings BERITERZFE (21,654) (24,901)
Net cash (used in)/generated from MEED (EA) FiB
financing activities REFHE (579,362) 419,296
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RERBEELZEER 2
W F R (210,454) (333,466)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of &% M zREREE
the year/period £EEE 24 244,373 571,732
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash EXSEHHUBRERESE
and cash equivalents SHEHEBZVE (13,857) 6,107
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the FRBMRZ2EAER
year/period ReEEER 24 20,062 244,373
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILF=

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Regenerative Medicine International Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the Companies
Law (Revision 2001) of Cayman Islands on 20 April 2001. The
address of its registered office is P.O. Box 309, Ugland House,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands and its principal
place of business is Rooms 3006—-10, 30/F., China Resources
Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The
Company’s shares are listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. Details of the
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 38 to
the financial statements. The Company and its subsidiaries are
collectively referred to as the “Group” hereafter.

During the period from 1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017,
the directors had resolved to change the Company’s financial
year end date from 30 April to 31 December. As a result
of the aforesaid change of the financial year end date,
the consolidated financial statement of the Group for the
comparative period cover the 8-month period from 1 May 2017
to 31 December 2017. The amounts presented in the current
period in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of cash flows
and consolidated statement of changes in equity and related
notes cover a 12-month period from 1 January 2018 to 31
December 2018 and therefore may not be comparable with
amounts shown for the comparative period.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018
were approved for issue by the board of directors on 11 April
2019.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BATS R It

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFZ

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1

January 2018

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 2
HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 15

HKFRIC-Int 22

Amendments to HKFRS 1, First-time adoption of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
HKAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures

Classffication and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions
Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Clarifications to HKFRS 15)

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration

Except as explained below, the adoption of these new
and amended HKFRSs did not result in substantial
changes to the Group’s accounting policies and had no
material impact on how the results and financial positions
for the current and prior periods have been prepared and

presented.

A. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

() Classification and measurement of financial

instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018, bringing
together all three aspects of the accounting
for financial instruments: (1) classification and
measurement; (2) impairment and (3) hedge
accounting. The adoption of HKFRS 9 from 1
January 2018 has resulted in changes in accounting
policies of the Group and the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H & ==

—N\F+ZA=+—HLEFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. XA E\,%ﬁ#ﬁ%iﬁjéﬁ A (T&#EM
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) B ZEH ) (&)
(CONT’D)
2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1 2.1 BRANFTET -~ #ENSET & B Z‘ ﬁﬁ
January 2018 (Cont’d) FEA - —F—/IF—
HEEE 3 (&)
A. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Cont’d) A BEBUBHEEEREIN -2/
T H(E)
() Classification and measurement of financial () ZHTATERE ()
instruments (Cont’d)
The following tables summarised the impact, net TEBRMBEEB BV HHRSE
of tax, of transition to HKFRS 9 on the opening EHEORHBE—_T—\F—
balance of reserves and accumulated losses of 1 H—H EI’J YR EHBER AR
January 2018 as follows: EENZE (HRRIE)
HK$’ 000
TET
Accumulated losses Bit s
As at 31 December 2017 R-ZB—tF+=A=+—H (1,221,847)
Increase in expected credit losses (‘ECLs”) in & 5 fE W FIATE Hi (= B &5 18
trade receivables ([FEER=E 51 ) 12 0 (4,866)
Increase in expected credit losses (‘ECLs”) in  H b fE I FIBEFE HA{= B B 18
other receivables ([FTEHAEE 51 ) 3 0 (2,851)
Reclassification of investments from available- & AF(Ezt AA M HEREETFHHLE
for-sale at fair value to financial assets at fair ~ EIZ A FEREZRER ([RAFE
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL?) RERIIER]) 2 2REE (13,163
Fair value remeasurement of investments from 3%k Zx 5+ A A i Hj EREEHTESR
available-for-sale at cost to FVTPL BAFERERYIEZ ATE 11,914
Restated as at 1 January 2018 R-ZE—NF—A—BREJ (1,230,819)
Available for sales financial asset reserve A2 EL & EFE
As at 31 December 2017 R-ZE—tHF+=-HA=+—H (13,163)
Reclassification of investments from available- 1% A P&zt 2 A] ﬁ EXRBEETHE
for-sale at fair value to FVTPL ERATERERIIECREE 13,163
Restated as at 1 January 2018 —NEFE—HA—B&F| =
FVOCI reserve BRAFERAEMEENUATIRZ #FE
As at 31 December 2017 R-E—tF+=-A=+—H -
Fair value remeasurement and reclassification @F DA & ¢ @& E LR &
of investments from unquoted equity BB EREIFIEKN AT ES
investment previously classified as available- ﬁ’&i@ﬁéﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%kﬁ'l ARHIR
for-sale financial assets and measured MERESE ZIRERFEEHT
at cost under HKAS 39 to FVOCI ENEFHE 52,294
Restated as at 1 January 2018 RZFE-NF—H—BLKHE7 52,294
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFZ

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. 4
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) &R
(CONT'D)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1

g,ﬁ%?&%ﬁﬂu (&8

e
i}
~

2.1 FRANHTET ~#ENE5] BB

January 2018 (Cont’q) £ - —FE— ) F—H—
HEE LR (&
A. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Cont’d) A BEBYUBREERFEIN -/

(i) Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Cont’d)

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition,
classification and measurement requirements for
financial liabilities from HKAS 39, except for financial
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL”), where the amount of change in
fair value attributable to change in credit risk of
the liability is recognised in other comprehensive
income unless that would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9 retains
the requirements in HKAS 39 for derecognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities. However,
it eliminates the previous HKAS 39 categories
for financial assets of held to maturity financial
assets, loans and receivables and available-for-sale
financial assets. The adoption of HKFRS 9 has no
material impact on the Group’s accounting policies
related to financial liabilities and derivative financial
instruments. The impact of HKFRS 9 on the Group’s
classification and measurement of financial assets is
set out below.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILF=

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONT'D)

R

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
January 2018 (Cont’d)

BRAE
&

s SR ([ &2
(%8)

n

2.1 f”’fﬁ%’/ﬂf/ﬁé‘/ﬂf ZERI

ERA-H=F—-/NF—H—

Ei@i—t}&( g)

A. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Cont’d) A.

(i) Classification and measurement of financial (i)
instruments (Cont’d)

Under HKFRS 9, except for certain trade
receivables (that the trade receivables do not
contain a significant financing component in
accordance with HKFRS 15), an entity shall, at
initial recognition, measures a financial asset at its
fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not
at FVTPL, transaction costs. A financial asset is
classified as: (i) financial assets at amortised cost
(“amortised costs”); (i) financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”); or
(i) FVTPL (as defined in above). The classification of
financial assets under HKFRS 9 is generally based
on two criteria: () the business model under which
the financial asset is managed and (i) its contractual
cash flow characteristics (the “solely payments
of principal and interest” criterion, also known
as “SPPI criterion”). Under HKFRS 9, embedded
derivatives is no longer required to be separated
from a host financial asset. Instead, the hybrid
financial instrument is assessed as a whole for the
classification.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFZ

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BRNEEMBHREER (EEY

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) BamEZER ] (&)

(CONT'D)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1 2.1 RANFTET 155 & BB 753
January 2018 (Cont’d) FEA-H—F—-NF—HF—

HEE 3% (48
A. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Cont’d) A BEHEHREERFEIN -8
TA(#E)

() Classification and measurement of financial () ZHITAWSERE ()

instruments (Cont’d)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it EeRMEERRTE A TEGE -

meets both of the following conditions are met and B EmIEFEERAFERERT

it has not been designated as at FVTPL: R-AlZemEEREHKA
I

e |t is held within a business model whose e HomEER—EEEA
objective is to hold financial assets in order to BREESREEWRREG LN
collect contractual cash flows; and ReEMEZEHEXFTR

g &

e The contractual terms of the financial asset s ZEBMEBEZALIERE
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that REERHEEREGER
meet the SPPI criterion. TRAE R EERAE

LRE °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILF=

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BRME
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) B S
(CONT'D)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1

g,\ﬁ'%?&%ﬁ,ﬁ\u (&8

e
i}
~

2.1 FRANHTET ~#ENE5] BB

January 2018 (Cont’d) FEA-H—F—-NF—HF—
HEBE 3 (&
A. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Cont’d) A BEHEHREERFEIN -8
TA(#E)
() Classification and measurement of financial () ZHITAWSERE ()

instruments (Cont’d)

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets
both of the following conditions and it has not been
designated as at FVTPL:

° It is held within a business model whose
objective is to achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets; and

o The contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
meet the SPPI criterion.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that
is not held for trading, the Group could irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the
investment’s fair value in other comprehensive
income. This election is made on an investment-
by-investment basis. All other financial assets not
classified at amortised cost or FVOCI as described
above are classified as FVTPL. This includes all
derivative financial assets. On initial recognition,
the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI at FVTPL
if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H & ==

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(CONT’D)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
January 2018 (Cont’d)
A. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

()

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Cont’d)

The following accounting policies would be applied
to the Group’s financial assets as follows:

FVTPL

Amortised costs

FVOCI (equity
instruments)

FVTPL is subsequently measured
at fair value. Changes in fair value,
dividends and interest income are
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost
are subsequently measured using
the effective interest rate method.
Interest income, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain
on derecognition is recognised in profit
or loss.

Equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income
are measured at fair value. Dividend
income is recognised in profit or loss
unless the dividend income clearly
represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investments. Other net
gains and losses are recognised in
other comprehensive income and are
not reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILF=

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BRME
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) B S
(CONT'D)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1

,\7151’%?&%%5\'] (&8

e
i}
~

2.1 FRANHTET ~#ENE5] BB

January 2018 (Cont’d) FEA-H—F—-NF—HF—
HEBE 3 (&
A. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Cont’d) A BEHEHREERFEIN -8
TA(#E)
() Classification and measurement of financial () ZHITAWSERE ()

instruments (Cont’d)

(@ As of 1 January 2018, an unquoted equity
investment, not held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in
a business combination to which HKFRS 3
applies, was reclassified from available-for-
sale financial assets at cost to FVOCI. These
unquoted equity instrument has no quoted
price in an active market. The Group intends
to hold these unquoted equity investment for
long term strategic purposes. In addition, the
Group has designated such unquoted equity
instrument at the date of initial application
of HKFRS 9 as measured at FVOCI. As at 1
January 2018, the difference between the
previous carrying amount and the fair value of
HK$52,294,000 (gain) has been included in
the opening FVOCI reserve.

(b) As of 1 January 2018, an investment in
unlisted private fund was reclassified from
available-for-sale financial assets at fair value
to FVTPL. As a result, financial assets with a
fair value of HK$126,837,000 were reclassified
from available-for-sale financial assets to
FVTPL and fair value loss of HK$13,163,000
were reclassified from the available-for-sale
assets reserve to accumulated losses on 1
January 2018.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFZ

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(CONT'D)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
January 2018 (Cont’d)

A. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

(i) Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Cont’d)

(@

As of 1 January 2018, an investment in
unlisted private fund was reclassified from
available-for-sale financial assets at cost
to FVTPL. This unquoted instrument has
no quoted price in an active market. As a
result, financial assets with carrying amount
of HK$214,691,000 were reclassified from
available-for-sale financial assets to FVTPL
and the difference between the previous
carrying amount and the fair value gain of
HK$11,914,000 has been included in the
opening accumulated losses.

As of 1 January 2018, an unquoted equity
investment was reclassified from available-for-
sale financial assets at cost to FVTPL. This
unquoted instrument has no quoted price in
an active market. As a result, financial assets
with carrying amount of HK$120,600,000
were reclassified from available-for-sale
financial assets to FVTPL. The cost of this
investment approximates its fair value as at 1
January 2018.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI =E

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILF=

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BRMMEBUBREER(EFEBY
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) BamEZER ] (&)
(CONT'D)
2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1 2.1 BRANFTET 4S5 & B iR
January 2018 (Cont’d) LR - - &E— ) 1F—F—
HEE3L (&
A. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Cont’d) A FBEUBBEEEREIR -2
T A (&)
() Classification and measurement of financial () ZHITAWSERE ()
instruments (Cont’d)
The following table summarizes the original TERBAREER=ZZ—\F
measurement categories under HKAS 39 and the — A BEESRMEERESR
new measurement categories under HKFRS 9 for BEIERFEINRNREFTE
each class of the Group’s financial assets as at 1 38 Bl AR ¥R B S B 7S R 5 2 R
January 2018: FOHmMFT =LA ¢
Carrying Carrying
amount as at amount as at
Original classification New classification 1 January 2018 1 January 2018
Financial assets under HKAS 39 under HKFRS 9 under HKAS 39 under HKFRS 9
R=B-N\% R=2-N\%§
-A-H -A-H
REFEET REBHHERE
REEBEHEL REEBHBRE B Z30%; EHE9H%
tHEE EFHREE EREIORMHER ZEEE ZEHE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THT
Listed equity investments Held-for-trading FVTPL 12,154 12,154
IikiER BEEE BRATERNMERSR
Unlisted equity investments (note 2.1A()(@)) ~ Available-for-sale FvoCl 112,928 165,222
FEmRERE (MaE21A0@) FEHE BRATEREMZE
LNl
Unlisted equity investments (note 2.1A()(d)) ~ Available-for-sale FVTPL 120,600 120,600
FEMRBERE (HE21A00) BELE BRTHERERIR
Unlisted debt investments (note 2. 1A(j)(b)) Avallable-for-sale FVTPL 126,837 126,837
FEMEHRE (H2.1A00) FEHE BRATERERTIR
Unlisted debt investments (note 2. 1A(j(c)) Avallable-for-sale FVTPL 214,691 226,605
¥ EmEBRE (MEE2.1A0(0) RELE BRHERERTR
Trade receivables Loans and receivables Amortised cost 279,806 274,940
B oRYE B REKGE BHERA
Other receivables Loans and receivables Amortised cost 142,533 139,682
EthEYEE BERREKHE BERA
Contingent consideration receivables FVTPL FVTPL 32,502 32,502
YRR E BLTHERERR BRHERERTR
Pledged bank deposits Loans and receivables Amortised cost 818,062 818,062
BEARTER B REKHE BERR
Cash and cash equivalents Loans and receivables Amortised cost 244,373 244,373
ReRRSZED BERREKTE BERA
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFZ

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BRNEEMBHREER (EEY
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) BamEZER ] (&)
(CONT'D)
2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1 2.1 AT, /?éé‘/ﬁ%f %C B IR
January 2018 (Cont’d) ZER-H5= = JVFE—H—
H#EE R (B )
A. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Cont’d) A EBEBUBHEEREIN 25
TA(#E)
(i) Impairment of financial assets ()  EHEERE
The adoption of HKFRS 9 has changed the Group’s BB I RS R 2 95k 2K

impairment model by replacing the HKAS 39
“incurred loss model” to the “expected credit losses
(“ECLs”) model”. HKFRS 9 requires the Group to
recognised ECL for trade receivables, financial
assets at amortised costs and contract assets
earlier than HKAS 39. Cash and cash equivalents
are subject to ECL model but the impairment is
immaterial for the current period.

Under HKFRS 9, the losses allowances are
measured on either of the following bases: (1) 12
months ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from
possible default events within the 12 months after
the reporting date: and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are
ECLs that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted
at an approximation to the assets’ original effective
interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances
for trade receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified
approach and has calculated ECLs based on
lifetime ECLs. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and
the economic environment.

BARAEENREEX  BES
S ERIFE 3R [ B EEEHEIR
NI A[FEHREEEE ([FEH
EEER])ERX] - BEMKH

EEBFEIRRAEAEBERT
/%@u /EE'J%39SJT%EEE’751FEJ
TE S EWGIE R HEKA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILF=

B R A ([ &8
281 1) (&)

2.1 FRANHTET ~#ENE5] BB

o

Bl-H=—F—)1F—H—

HELR (&

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BNE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) B S
(CONT’D)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
January 2018 (Cont’d)
A. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Cont’d) A.
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d) (i)

Measurement of ECLs (Cont’d)

For other financial assets, the ECLs are based on
the 12 months ECLs. The 12 months ECLs is the
portion of the lifetime ECLs that results from default
events on a financial instrument that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. However,
when there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since origination, the allowance will be based
on the lifetime ECLs. When determining whether
the credit risk of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition and when
estimating ECL, the Group considers reasonable
and supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information and
analysis, based on the Group’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including
forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is aged
more than 90 days.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in
default when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay
its credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or (2) the financial asset is
aged more than 365 days.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECL is the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFZ

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BRNEBMIBHRERA (FEM
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) BamEZER ] (&)
(CONT’D)
2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1 2.1 f"’,?ﬂir"/f 7. /?&‘/fnf %C BB
January 2018 (Cont’d) ER-H=-F—-/NF—F—
/iE * 5&? ()
A. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Cont’d) A BEBUBHREEREIS -2/
T A (&)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d) ()  EHEEBE (&)
Presentation of ECLs HHEEEBEHIZ2)
Loss allowances for financial assets measured BHEEKNAGTENESREEN

at amortised cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets.

EiRR R B B ERRE AR HIRR o

Impact of the ECL model A EEERRE I E
(@  Impairment of trade receivables @ EBSrWEIERE

As mentioned above, the Group applies the B A _E SR - AN B
HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure AEBHBEREERZEI
ECLs which adopts a life time ECLs for all S A ERMEE
trade receivables. To measure the ECLs, 2 WA A 2 T8 8
trade receivables have been grouped based EEEIENEEEEIE -
on shared credit risk characteristics and the RITEHEHEEEE &
ageing analysis. The loss allowance as at 1 %FEW?&EE@T@%TEE
January 2018 was determined as follows for % 5 155(&55&\ o AT
trade receivables as follows: \ Zﬁ BHE-Z—)N\&F
—H HREEREEZT

B S EBFIREENT

Weighted Gross
average carrying Loss
lifetime ECL amount allowance
MEFH2H

BHEEEE BEEE FERE

(%) (HK$'000) (HK$'000)

(%) (F&m) (F&71)

1-90 days 1Z90K 1 050,744 2,597)
91 - 365 days 91Z365% 10 19,770 (1.977)
More than 365 days 365K L 100 292 (292)
279,806 (4,866)
The increase in loss allowance for trade RZZE—-—N\F—H—RHB
receivables upon the transition to HKFRS 9 EERABN B HELERE

as of 1 January 2018 were HK$4,866,000.
The loss allowances further increased to
HK$139,677,000 for trade receivables as at
31 December 2018.

OSR K E Z FE W SR IA [ 18
B & 1% 0 A 4,866,000 74
L -R-_FE—NF+=A

=+—HULEFE -BEFE
Wi 5K TR B 5 18 B R 5 —

ANZE 139,677,000 78 T °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILF=

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BRME
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) B S
(CONT'D)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1

g,\ﬁ'%?&%ﬁ,ﬁ\u (&8

e
i}
~

2.1 AT AT B
R =% U

HELR (&

January 2018 (Cont’d)
A. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Cont’d) A.
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d) (i)

Impact of the ECL model (Cont’d)
(b)  Impairment of other receivables

Other financial assets at amortised cost
of the Group includes deposits and other
receivables. Applying the ECL model result in
the recognition of ECL of HK$2,851,000 on 1
January 2018 and loss allowance reduced to
HK$393,000 as at 31 December 2018.

(i) Transition (i)

The Group has applied the transitional provision
in HKFRS 9 such that HKFRS 9 was generally
adopted without restating comparative information.
The reclassifications and the adjustments arising
from the new ECLs rules are therefore not
reflected in the statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2017, but are recognised in the
statement of financial position on 1 January 2018.
This mean that differences in the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities resulting
from the adoption of HKFRS 9 are recognised in
retained earnings and reserves as at 1 January
2018. Accordingly, the information presented for
2017 does not reflect the requirements of HKFRS 9
but rather those of HKAS 39.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFZ

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BRNEEMBHREER (EEY

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) I EAER]) (8)

(CONT'D)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1 2.1 HRANFTET -~ #ANEET & BRI IR
January 2018 (Cont’d) ERA-H_-F—)\F—F—

E/i@*fﬁ(f (%)
A. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Cont’d) A EBHBHREEREIN 2@
T E (#&)

(i) Transition (Cont’d) (i) BEZHE (&)

The following assessments have been made on the
basis of the facts and circumstances that existed at
the date of initial application (“DIA”) of HKFRS 9:

° The determination of the business model
within which a financial asset is held; and

o The designation of certain investments in
equity investments not held for trading as at
FVOCI.

B. HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with B.
Customers

HKFRS 15 supersedes HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts, HKAS 18 Revenue and related
interpretations. HKFRS 15 has established a five-
steps model to account for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15,
revenue is recognised at the amount that reflects
the consideration to which an entity expects to
be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
services to a customer.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILF=

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. R#E
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) B S
(CONT'D)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
January 2018 (Cont’d)

B R A ([ &8
281 1) (&)

2.1 AT AT B
R =% U

HELR (&

B. HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with B.
Customers (Cont’d)

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the
cumulative effect method without practical
expedients. The Group has recognised the
cumulative effect of initially applying HKFRS 15 as
an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
earnings at the date of initial application (that is, 1
January 2018). As a result, the financial information
presented for 2017 has not been restated.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 does not have a material
impact on the amounts reported to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group based on the
existing business model of the Group. However,
upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, amount previously
presented as “receipt in advances” under “accrued
charges and other payables” as at 31 December
2017 has been reclassified as “contract liabilities”
on 1 January 2018. These contract liabilities mainly
relate to the advance considerations received from
customers. All contract liabilities and arose from
sale of goods. The Group may take certain deposits
from customers on acceptance of the order,
with the remainder of the consideration payable
at the earlier of delivery of the finished goods. If
the customer cancels the order, then the Group
immediately refund the deposit less costs incurred,
if any, to customers.

China Regenerative Medicine International Limited Annual Report 2018

BB BHEEREISS —[F
P&z | (&)

AEEERARAZELARM
FRMBRELEANFE 155 (EA]
THRENER) - AKEEHER
FRERBBEME RS ERE5
BHRGATE FRYTFE
REHE—Z-N\F—HA—R)
MRE BN AR HE -
At IAREIN-_F—LF=2
52 BA TS E RS

KW B BT EREERF 1557
HERAEEBRBEFENXD
AEEREUBBRERERS T
WEEATE - AN KAE
ISR ERIF155RE - =
T—tHE+-A=+—HI[E
A REMERKIE] L2
P AETTERREINSENR -
—N\NFE— A —HEEHFSES
[GHEaE] ZEAHNEEE
DHPMEFHERRESHE -
FrEEHNEBERELERHESE
Mo AEBEMNTERBRR
Wl ETFES & TRERK
MRS (AR REEABE) -
i B EUHF] B8 - B K& B A
BREPRERESREELNK
K(A) o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BATS R It

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BRNEEMBHREER (EEY
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) I EAER]) (8)
(CONT'D)
2.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been 2.2 B ME#1E e 7K £ MBI #T AT BEAX

/ssued but are not yet effective

At the date of this report, the following new or amended
HKFRSs have been published but are not yet effective,
and have not been early adopted by the Group.

HKFRS 16 Leases'
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Business Combinations?

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation'
Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements?
Amendments to HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting

Estimates and Errors?
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures'
Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 3, Business Combinations'
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 11, Joint Arrangements’
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKAS 12, Income Taxes'
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKAS 23, Borrowing Costs!
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and HKAS 28 and its Associate or Joint Venture*

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

4 The amendments were originally intended to be effective

for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017. The
effective date has now been deferred/removed. Early
application of the amendments of the amendments
continue to be permitted.

Except for HKFRS 16, the directors expect that the
adoption of the other standards above will have no
material impact on the financial statements in the year of
initial application. The nature of the impending changes
in accounting policy on the adoption of HKFRS 16 are
described below.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILF=

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. &%

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONT'D)

2.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Cont’d)

HKFRS 16 - Leases

This standard is effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019. HKFRS 16, which
upon the effective date will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases”
and related interpretations, introduces a single lessee
accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise
assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more
than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low
value. Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required
to recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right
to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation of the
right-of-use asset and interest on the lease liability, and
also classifies cash repayments of the lease liability into
a principal portion and an interest portion and presents
them in the statement of cash flows. Also, the right-of-
use asset and the lease liability are initially measured on
a present value basis. The measurement includes non-
cancellable lease payments and also includes payments
to be made in optional periods if the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise an option to extend the lease, or to
exercise an option to terminate the lease. This accounting
treatment is significantly different from the lessee
accounting for leases that are classified as operating
leases under the predecessor standard, HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor continues
to classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases,
and to account for those two types of leases differently.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFZ
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. %ﬁ

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONT'D)

2.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Cont’d)

HKFRS 16 - Leases (Cont’d)

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting
as a lessee of leases for property, plant and equipment
which are currently classified as operating leases. The
application of the new accounting model is expected to
lead to an increase in both assets and liabilities and to
impact on the timing of the expense recognition in the
statement of profit or loss over the period of the lease.
As set out in Note 34, the future aggregate minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease
of the Group as at 31 December 2018 amounted to
HK$118,731,000. A preliminary assessment indicates
that these arrangements will meet the definition of a lease
under HKFRS 16, and hence the Group will recognise a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability in
respect of all the leases unless they qualify for low value
or short-term leases upon the application of HKFRS 16.
In addition, the application of new requirement may result
changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as
indicated above.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILF=

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

3. FEEFHERME

3.1 wHREE

3.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements on pages 138 to 268 have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). The financial
statements also include the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM
of the Stock Exchange (“GEM Listing Rules”).

The significant accounting policies that have been used
in the preparation of these financial statements are
summarised below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated.
The adoption of new or amended HKFRSs and the
impacts on the Group’s financial statements, if any, are
disclosed in note 2.

The financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments, which are stated at fair value. The
measurement bases are fully described in the accounting
policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the financial
statements. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge and judgement of current
events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ
from those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial statements
are disclosed in note 4.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFZ

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESFBEREEZE (&)

POLICIES (CONT'D)

3.2 Business combination and basis of

3.2 EESHREGESEE

consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Inter-company transactions and balances between
group companies together with unrealised profits are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of impairment on the
asset transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
effective dates of acquisition or up to the effective dates of
disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments
are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to
bring their accounting policies into line with those used by
other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition
is measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date
fair value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and
equity interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
principally measured at acquisition-date fair value. The
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.
The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, to measure the non-controlling interests that
represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-
related costs incurred are expensed unless they are
incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case the
costs are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement period
(@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date)
about the fair value at the acquisition date. All other
subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILF=

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. X EE i HEME (F)
POLICIES (CONT'D)

3.2 Business combination and basis of 32 EEBEEHREEEE(E)

consolidation (Cont’d)

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do REERKB AR gD EE (&
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity BEUR KSR TIEERR S AMK °
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interest RNEE 2 ez B IR R IR R M 2 2 BR
and the non-controlling interest are adjusted to reflect HEEYETFUAZE  UARBRERKE A
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. B S c #E) o IR R S
Any difference between the amount by which the non- ZARBHENKBEWRRELTE
controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of the ZARE A ERES EEN ER TR
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in WHERTARARHEAA ©

equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or WAEBEAEWB AR 2B - i
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between EZBm IR Ty ME 2 ZRETE ()
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration BERAREZATFEAEMREBERZ
received and the fair value of any retained interest and NEEERE BHiZMNBARIZEE
(i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including (BHEEE) ke GRE A IFERRER
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non- oAl 2 BREE © LRI ZMT B A
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in AREMEERARRZ SBIRHE
other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary EEEESXBEMEE ZHRET XA
are accounted for in the same manner as would be AR

required if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed

of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non- W%  BERBARNBARES
controlling interests that represent present ownership BZIEEBRBRRER RAEAZS
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those R I TR 2 £ 5N E3EE AR
interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling IRER e EL 1 E &) 2 317 »
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total BV {5 & 38 B SE 128 AR A% SR A = (3R /s A
comprehensive income is attributed to such non- EHR o 2HAWRATEBRZEIFE
controlling interests even if this results in those non- AR AR SR A 2 o

controlling interests having a deficit balance.

3.3 Subsidiaries 3.3 WM& LA
A subsidiary is an investee over which the Group is able BB A Rl B AN & B A S ) B AT (R 2
to exercise control. The Group controls an investee if all BZESKRER NRFETIES
three of the following elements are present: power over =EAE AR EEIEHEZEER :
the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from AEFEXIRE HITHEES - AERE
the investee, and the ability to use its power to affect BEXREDT 2RI ERESRESE
those variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever ZEEF 2 EEEHR - ReeHER
facts and circumstances indicate that there may be a EENRFE2E@EIEHO®R - §E
change in any of these elements of control. FERBERABENMEMZEEGEREE

AREHBREHR  MeEHTHED
HHEGIE -

In the Company’s statement of financial position, RARBZHBARRAER  RHTB A
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less A2 E R AR AR EEE (10E)
impairment loss, if any. The results of the subsidiaries are PR o AN B S BT B A T S 4E A BR B
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends LAE UG A0 fe W i B A E i o

received and receivable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ul R
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFZ

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESFBEREEZE (&)

POLICIES (CONT'D)

3.4 Foreign currency translation 34 JEBEE

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency of the individual entity
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the reporting date, monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the reporting
date retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into HKS.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into HKS at the
closing rates at the reporting date. Income and expenses
have been converted into HK$ at the exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates, or at the average rate over
the reporting period provided that the exchange rates do
not fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising from this
procedure have been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in the translation
reserve in equity.

When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified from equity to profit or loss as
part of the gain or loss on sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILF=

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESFBEREEZE (&)

POLICIES (CONT'D)

3.5 Property, plant and equijpment 3.5 ¥ BERKE

Buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building
could be measured separately from the fair value of
the leasehold land at the inception of the lease, and
other items of property, plant and equipment, other
than construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided
to write off the cost less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method, at
the following rates per annum:

Buildings over 50 years or the
terms of the leases,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvement 33%
Furniture and equipment 5%-25%
Computer equipment 33%
Motor vehicles 20%-25%

The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
each reporting date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other costs,
such as repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFZ

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

3. TESTHERME &)

3.6 Land use rights 3.6 T EHE

Upfront payments made to acquire land held under an
operating lease are stated at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. The
determination if an arrangement is or contains a lease and
the lease is an operating lease is detailed in note 3.12.
Amortisation is calculated on the straight-line method
over the term of the lease/right of use except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the time pattern
of benefits to be derived by the Group from use of the land.

3.7 Gooadwill

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess
of the aggregate of consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests over the
fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities exceed the fair value of consideration
paid, the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the
acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-
generating units and is tested annually for impairment (see
note 3.16).

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of gain or loss on disposal.

3.7
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILF=

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

3. FEEFHEBE(E)

3.8 Intangible assets (other than gooadwill) and

research and development activities

Acquired intangible assets are recognised initially at cost.
After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided
on straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Amortisation commences when the intangible assets are
available for use. The following useful lives are applied:

Trademark 15 years
Patents 7-15 years
Capitalised development costs 10 years
Licensing agreement 7 years

Expenditure on internally developed products is
capitalised if it can be demonstrated that:

° It is technically feasible to develop the product for it
to be sold;

° Adequate resources are available to complete the
development;

° There is an intention to complete and sell the
product;

° The Group is able to sell the product;

° Sale of the product will generate future economic
benefits; and

° Expenditure on the project can be measured
reliably.

Capitalised development costs are amortised over
the periods the Group expects to benefit from selling
the products developed. The amortisation expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Development expenditure not satisfying the above
criteria and expenditure on the research phase of internal
projects are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H & ==

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

3.9 Financial Instruments

A

()

Accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item
not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade
receivable without a significant financing component
is initially measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. The Group classifies
its debt instruments as following measurement
category:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets
at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest rate method. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain
on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H & ==

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

3.9 Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

A

()

Accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018 (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)
Debt instruments (Cont’d)

Fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI"): Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at fair value through OCI.
Debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income are subsequently measured
at fair value. Interest income calculated using the
effective interest rate method, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are recognised
in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income. On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”): Financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at fair value
through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing
in the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not solely payments of principal
and interest are classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss, irrespective of the
business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for
debt instruments to be classified at amortised
cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income, as described above, debt instruments
may be designated at fair value through profit or
loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or
significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H & ==

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

3.9 Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

A

()

(i)

Accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018 (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that
is not held for trading, the Group could irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the
investment’s fair value in other comprehensive
income. This election is made on an investment-
by-investment basis. Equity investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income are
measured at fair value. Dividend income are
recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend
income clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investments. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income
and are not reclassified to profit or loss. All other
equity instruments are classified as FVTPL, whereby
changes in fair value, dividends and interest income
are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit loss (“ECL”) on trade receivables and other
financial assets measured at amortised cost. The
ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:
(1) 12 months ECLs: these are the ECLs that result
from possible default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date: and (2) lifetime ECLs: these
are ECLs that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument. The
maximum period considered when estimating ECLs
is the maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive.
The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation
to the assets’ original effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H & ==

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

3.9 Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

A

(i)

Accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018 (Cont’d)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Cont’d)

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances
for trade receivables and contract assets using
HKFRS 9 simplified approach and has calculated
ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors
and the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based
on the 12 months ECLs. However, when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based on the
lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group’s historical
experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is aged
more than 90 days.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay
its credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or (2) the financial asset is
aged more than 365 days.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets
is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the
gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset. For non credit-impaired financial
assets interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFZ

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

3.9 Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

A

(i)

(v)

V)

Accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018 (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at amortised costs
are initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
and other payables borrowings, using the effective
interest method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial
asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing
of shares are deducted from share premium (net of
any related income tax benefit) to the extent they
are incremental costs directly attributable to the
equity transaction.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H & ==

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

3.9 Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

A

(vi)

Accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018 (Cont’d)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation
to the financial asset expire or when the financial
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets
the criteria for derecognition in accordance with
HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments
to a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole
or in part as a result of renegotiating the terms
of that liability, the equity instruments issued are
the consideration paid and are recognised initially
and measured at their fair value on the date the
financial liability or part thereof is extinguished. If the
fair value of the equity instruments issued cannot
be reliably measured, the equity instruments are
measured to reflect the fair value of the financial
liability extinguished. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability or part
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss for the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BATS R It

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFZ

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONT'D)

3.9 Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

B. Accounting policies applied until 31 December

2017

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively,
but has elected not to restate comparative
information. Accordingly, the comparative financial
information provided continues to be accounted for
in accordance with the group’s previous accounting

policy.

(i) Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and available-for-sale financial assets.
Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition depending on
the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired and where allowed and appropriate, re-
evaluates this designation at every reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and
only when, the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular
way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade date. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair
value through profit or loss, directly attributable

transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
expire or are transferred and substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership have been

transferred.

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed
to assess whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. If any such evidence exists, impairment
loss is determined and recognised based on the

classification of the financial asset.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss includes financial assets held for trading and
financial assets designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H & ==
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

3.9 Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

B.

()

Accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017 (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Cont’d)

Financial assets are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in
the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments or financial guarantee
contracts.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss, except where the embedded
derivative does not significant modify the cash
flows or it is clear that separation of the embedded
derivative is prohibited.

Financial assets may be designated at initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if
the following criteria are met:

- The designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets
or recognising gains or losses on them on a
different basis; or

- The assets are part of a group of financial
assets which are managed and their
performance evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with a documented risk
management strategy and information about
the group of financial assets is provided
internally on that basis to the key management
personnel; or

- The financial asset contains an embedded
derivative that would need to be separately
recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial assets
included in his category are measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H & ==

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

3.9 Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

B. Accounting policies applied until 31 December

()

2017 (Cont’d)
Financial assets (Cont’d)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. Loans
and receivables are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment losses. Amortised cost is
calculated taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and includes fees that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate and
transaction cost.

Available-for-sale financial assets

These assets are non-derivative financial assets
that are designated as available-for-sale or are not
included in other categories of financial assets.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these assets
are carried at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income, except
for impairment losses and foreign exchange gains
and losses on monetary instruments, which are
recognised in profit or loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such unquoted equity instruments, they
are measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI =E

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H & ==
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

3.9 Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

B.

()

Accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017 (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)
Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, financial assets other than
at fair value through profit or loss are reviewed to
determine whether there is any objective evidence
of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual
financial assets includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about one or
more of the following loss events:

= Significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- A breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- Granting concession to a debtor because of
debtor’s financial difficulty;

- It becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
and

= A significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity instrument
below its cost.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from the group of financial assets. Such
observable data includes but not limited to adverse
changes in the payment status of debtors in the
group and, national or local economic conditions
that correlate with defaults on the assets in the
group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFZ

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

3.9 Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

B. Accounting policies applied until 31 December

()

2017 (Cont’d)
Financial assets (Cont’d)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

L oans and receivables

If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss on loans and receivables carried at amortised
cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). The amount of the loss is recognised in
profit or loss of the period in which the impairment
occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed to the
extent that it does not result in a carrying amount
of the financial asset exceeding what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised at the date the impairment is reversed.
The amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or
loss of the period in which the reversal occurs.

Available-for-sale financial assets

When a decline in the fair value of an available-for-
sale financial asset has been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
and there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, an amount is removed from equity and
recognised in profit or loss as an impairment loss.
That amount is measured as the difference between
the asset’s acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H & ==

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

3.9 Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

B. Accounting policies applied until 31 December

()

2017 (Cont’d)
Financial assets (Cont’d)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Cont’d)

Reversals in respect of investment in equity
instruments classified as available-for-sale and
stated at fair value are not recognised in profit
or loss. The subsequent increase in fair value is
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
Impairment losses in respect of debt securities are
reversed if the subsequent increase in fair value
can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised. Reversal
of impairment losses in such circumstances are
recognised in profit or loss.

For financial assets other than financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, available-for-
sale financial assets and loan and receivables that
are stated at amortised cost, impairment losses
are written off against the corresponding assets
directly. Where the recovery of trade receivables is
considered doubtful but not remote, the impairment
losses for doubtful receivables are recorded using
an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied
that recovery of trade receivables is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade receivables directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account in respect of that
receivable are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance account
and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H & ==

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

3.9 Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

B.

(i)

Accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017 (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade
payables, accrued charges and other payables,
bank borrowings and shareholder’s loans.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All interest related charges
are recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note
3.19).

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amount
is recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowing using
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H & ==

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

3.9 Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

B.

(i)

(i)

Accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017 (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities (Cont’d)
Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are recognised initially
at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial
asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Equity instruments

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share
capital is determined using the nominal value of
shares that have been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing
of shares are deducted from share premium (net of
any related income tax benefit) to the extent they
are incremental costs directly attributable to the
equity transaction.

3.10 Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. In the case of work in progress and
finished goods, cost also comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of
completion and applicable selling expenses.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

3.11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and in
hand, time deposits with banks within original maturities
of three months or less that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

3.12 Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such
a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i)  Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as being
held under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group are classified as operating
leases, with the following exception:

= land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value of
a building situated thereon, at the inception
of the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease (see
note 3.6). For these purposes, the inception
of the lease is the time that the lease was first
entered into by the Group, or taken over from
the previous lessee.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

3.12 Leases (Cont’d)

188

(ii)

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under the
leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight
line basis over the lease terms except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the time
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
assets. Lease incentives received are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent rental are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

3.13 Revenue recognition

A

Accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018

Revenue from contracts with customers is
recognised when control of goods or services is
transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services, excluding those amounts collected
on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the
laws that apply to the contract, control of the
goods or service may be transferred over time or
at a point in time. Control of the goods or service is
transferred over time if the Group’s performance

o provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer;

o creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H & ==

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

3.13 Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

A

Accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018 (Cont’d)

If control of the goods or services transfers over
time, revenue is recognised over the period of the
contract by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance obligation.
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the goods or
service.

Sales of goods are recognised at a point in time
when the goods are transferred and the customer
has received the goods, since only by the time
the Group has a present right to payment for the
goods delivered. For the provision of service,
revenue is recognised over time as the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the entity’s performance as the entity
performs.

In determining the transaction price, the Group
measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. There is no right of return,
volume rebate and warranty arrangement for the
sales of goods and provision for services.

There is no significant financing components for the
contracts and the consideration is not variable.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

3.13 Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

B.

Accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale of
goods, the rendering of services and the use by
others of the Group’s assets yielding interest, net of
rebates and discounts. Provided it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured
reliably, revenue is recognised as follows:

Sales of goods are recognised upon transfer of
significant risks and rewards of ownership to the
customer. This is usually taken as the time when the
goods are delivered and the customer has accepted
the goods.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

3. FEEFHEBE(E)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFZ

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

3. FEEFHEBE(E)

314 EHNEERSHNEE(H=F

3.14 Contract assets and liabilities (accounting

policies applied from 1 January 2018)

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional.
In contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

Contract asset is recognised when the Group completes
the delivery under such services contracts but yet
certified by customers. Any amount previously recognised
as a contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables
at the point at which it is invoiced to the customer. If
the considerations (including advances received from
customers) exceeds the revenue recognised to date
under the output method then the Group recognises a
contract liability for the difference.

3.15 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions. Government grants relating to costs
are deferred and recognised in profit or loss over the
period necessary to match them with the costs that they
are intended to compensate. Government grants relating
to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are
included in non-current liabilities as deferred government
grants and are recognised in profit or loss on a straight
line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESFBEREEZE (&)

POLICIES (CONT’D)
316 LA EERE

3.16 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of subsidiaries, other
intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, land
use rights and interests in subsidiaries are subject to
impairment testing.

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that they
are impaired. All other assets are tested for impairment
whenever there are indications that the asset’s carrying
amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable
amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of
time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent
from those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generate cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit). As a result, some assets are tested
individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-
generating unit level. Goodwill in particular is allocated to
those cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from synergies of the related business combination and
represent the lowest level within the Group at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purpose.

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating units,
to which goodwill has been allocated, are credited
initially to the carrying amount of goodwill. Any remaining
impairment loss is charged pro rata to the other assets in
the cash generating unit, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value
less cost to sell, or value in use, if determinable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFZ

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

3.16 Impairment of non-financial assets (Cont’d)

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods including impairment losses
recognised in an interim period. In respect of other
assets, an impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss has
been recognised.

3.17 Employee benefits

()

Retirement benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer’s contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in the Mainland China are required to
participate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute a percentage of its
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESFBEREEZE (&)

POLICIES (CONT'D)

3.17 Employee benefits (Cont’d) 3.17 ES 57 (&)

(i)  Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

3.18 Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees and
others providing similar services, the fair value of the
options at the date of grant is recognised in profit or loss
over the vesting period with a corresponding increase in
share-based payment reserve within equity. Non-market
vesting conditions are taken into account by adjusting the
number of equity instruments expected to vest at the end
of each reporting period so that, ultimately, the cumulative
amount recognised over the vesting period is based
on the number of options that eventually vest. Market
vesting conditions are factored into the fair value of the
options granted. As long as all other vesting conditions
are satisfied, a charge is made irrespective of whether the
market vesting conditions are satisfied. The cumulative
expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve a market
vesting condition.

All employee services received in exchange for the grant
of any share-based compensation are measured at fair
values. These are indirectly determined by reference to
the equity instruments awarded. The value is appraised
at the grant date and excludes the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESFBEREEZE (&)

POLICIES (CONT'D)

3.18 Share-based payments (Cont’d) 3.18 Uik t7 B EE 2175 (18)

All share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in profit or loss with a corresponding credit to
share- based payment reserve, net of deferred tax where
applicable. If vesting periods or other vesting conditions
apply, the expense is recognised over the vesting period,
based on the best available estimate of the number of
share options expected to vest. Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the number
of options that are expected to become exercisable.
Estimates are subsequently revised, if there is any
indication that the number of share options expected to
vest differs from previous estimates. No adjustment to
expense recognised in prior periods is made if fewer share
options ultimately are exercised than originally vested.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified
before they vest, the increase in fair value of the options,
measured immediately before and after the modification,
is also recognised in profit or loss over the remaining
vesting period.

Where equity instruments are granted to persons other
than employees and others providing similar services,
the fair value of goods or services received is recognised
in profit or loss unless the goods or services qualify for
recognition as assets. A corresponding increase in equity
is recognised. For cash-settled share based payments,
a liability is recognised at the fair value of the goods or
services received.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share-based payment
reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the vested share options are lapsed, forfeited or still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be
transferred to accumulated losses.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESFBEREEZE (&)

POLICIES (CONT'D)

3.19 Borrowing costs 3.19 B LA

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition, construction
or production of any qualifying asset are capitalised
during the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use. A qualifying asset
is an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. Other
borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost
of a qualified asset when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and
activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are being undertaken. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are complete.

3.20 Accounting for income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, tax authorities relating
to the current or prior reporting period, that are unpaid
at the reporting date. They are calculated according to
the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods
to which they relate, based on the taxable profit for the
year. All changes to current tax assets or liabilities are
recognised as a component of tax expense in profit or
loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the reporting date between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, tax losses available to
be carried forward as well as other unused tax credits, to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit, including
existing taxable temporary differences, will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFZ

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESFBEREEZE (&)

POLICIES (CONT’D)
320 Frif# 2 &5t 5% (&)

3.20 Accounting for income taxes (Cont’d)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
taxable nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
difference arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period the liability
is settled or the asset realised, provided they are enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity if they relate to items that are charged
or credited to other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented
in net if, and only if,

(@ The Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off the recognised amounts; and

(o) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H & ==

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

3.20 Accounting for income taxes (Cont’d)

—N\F+ZA=+—HLEFE

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities in net if, and only if,

(@ the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(i)  different taxable entities which intend either to
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered.

3.21 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive directors,
being the chief operating decision makers of the Group,
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group’s business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information reported
to the executive directors are determined following the
Group’s major product and service lines.

Certain comparative figures in the segment information
for the year ended 31 December 2018 have been
represented. Previously, executive directors identified
tissue engineering, cell, cosmetics and others and
medical equipment as separate reportable segments.
For the year ended 31 December 2018, the executive
directors re-define business segments as a result of
change in information reported internally for the purpose
of resources allocation and assessment of business
performance. Comparative figures have been reclassified
accordingly.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ul R
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFZ

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESFBEREEZE (&)

POLICIES (CONT'D)

3.21 Segment reporting (Cont’d) 321 BB E (&)

The Group has identified the following operating and
reportable segments:

Dermatology, cosmetic products and others — production
and sale of dermatology, cosmetic products and others;

Cell and healthcare products and services — production
and sales of cell and healthcare products and services;

Ophthalmology products — production and sales of
ophthalmology products;

Stomatology products and others — production and sale
of stomatology products and others; and

Medical equipment — trading of medical equipment.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those
used in its financial statements prepared under HKFRSs,
except that:

° fair value loss on contingent consideration
receivables and financial assets of fair value through
profit or loss

° finance costs
° income tax

° corporate income and expenses which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment

are not included in arriving at the operating results of the
operating segment.

Segment assets include all assets except contingent
consideration receivable, available-for-sale financial
assets, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income and corporate assets which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment are not allocated to a segment, which primarily
applies to the Group’s headquarter.

Segment liabilities exclude corporate liabilities which are
not directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment and are not allocated to a segment.
These include deferred tax liabilities and liabilities incurred
for financing rather than operating purposes.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

—N\F+ZA=+—HLEFE

3. TESTHERME &)

POLICIES (CONT'D)

3.22 Related parties

@

A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(i)
(i
(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

)

(iv)

(vi)

(vil)

(viil

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the Group
or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFZ

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

3. FEEFHEBE(E)

3.22 Related parties (Cont’d) 322 BHEA L (#E

Close members of the family of a person are those family BAALTZORREKERBHRNRE
members who may be expected to influence, or be ETRRBTEZALTHZZALE
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity L VHERRKE - BIE

and include:

()  that person’s children and spouse or domestic () BATZFEREBIREF

partner; & :
(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic (i) RATEBIREFBEZTFE:
partner; and 53
(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse (i) FRATHERBIRENEZ
or domestic partner. REA
3.23 Provision and contingent liabilities 323 IRERSEEEE

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing EARE BT EIEEAE R
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive TEEE - Mk =R LB A 7] 5218
obligation arising as a result of a past event, which it is ST 4SO A 2 R - SR SR TR E B
probable will result in an outflow of economic benefits that Mok eE s BEERBEE -

can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILF=

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

Provision for expected credit losses of trade and
other receivables

The Group uses a provision of matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on ageing analysis
for groupings of various debtors that have similar loss patterns.
The provision matrix is based on management’s estimate of the
lifetime ECLs to be incurred, which is estimated by taking into
account the credit loss experience, ageing of trade receivables,
customers’ repayment history and customers’ financial position
and an assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions, all of which involve a significant degree of
management judgement.

The provision of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances
and of forecast general economic conditions. The information
about the ECLs and the Group’s trade receivables are disclosed
in note 40. If the financial condition of the customers or the
forecast economic conditions were to deteriorate, actual
loss allowance would be higher than estimated. The Group’s
management determines the impairment of trade and other
receivables on a regular basis. This estimate is based on the
credit history of its customers or debtors and current market
conditions. Management reassesses the impairment of trade
and other receivables at the reporting date.

For other receivables relating to accounts that are long
overdue with significant amounts, known insolvencies or non-
response to collection activities, they are assessed individually
for impairment allowance. The Group recognised the provision
for expected credit losses by assessing the credit risk
characteristics of debtors, discount rate and the likelihood of
recovery and considering the prevailing economic conditions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFZ

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONT'D)

Estimated impairment of goodwill, other intangible
assets and property, plant and equipment related to
cash-generating units

4

B E R LT R H E (&)

BERETELE N HE R
@ﬁgﬂ&#ﬂ% BERREZE

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any ANEBREK T3 16 Tt @ 5 KR &4 8
impairment in accordance with the accounting policy stated in HAEEREEBMREE - ,H\’rtﬁﬁﬁ/,éfFL/(
note 3.16. The carrying values of other intangible assets and NEEI f%& & BREE DR FED
property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment SXPAEMBIZEENRME  HERK
when there are any indications that the carrying value of other 15 2 BRTE B 1] A M A IR Bl B s 1T R (B FT 4% ©

intangible assets and property, plant and equipment may not be
recoverable. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units
have been determined based on value-in-use/fair value less
costs of disposal calculations. These calculations require the
use of estimates about future cash flows and discount rates.

In the process of estimating expected future cash flows,
management makes assumptions about future revenues and
profits. The assumptions about future revenues are mainly
based on the actual financial performance of the Group’s

BeEABMUMAREHBRCRERE
B/ RPERHEEXNLETE RS EZE
FARNIR 2R RITR LA -

RGETREARRESROBES  BEE
/?JE?EXJ%Z 5 NOg FEHRER - B BARRIK
ANBRNDEEERAEEFAKREHEH
ReELEBNNRENERTBRIR  E

revenue from respective cash generating unit for the year, mARFEHE R miEHER  RmisEUE
the current market demand of the products in the PRC, mA B ATt RE - HET A A KEIE’J$FA
the current supply of the similar products in the market, the NWREEES B A& ER =BT R

estimated utilisation of the Group’s production capacity and the
management’s current assessment of the economic outlook.
The unit selling price is assumed to remain constant throughout
the forecasted period. The assumptions about future profits are
mainly based on the available market data of the profit margin
ratio of companies engaged in respective cash generating unit
in the PRC and global market. As these assumptions relate to

Eh%ﬁﬂﬂfﬁwﬁﬁﬁhTm B
%Xmﬂ%@“ﬁ}%ﬁﬂﬁ¢l& BR
mEYRARREELBMNTRRAA
™5 80 mﬂ&iﬁmﬁﬁ?$X$
HRERL BERGERAEAAFEE LA
A%ﬁFT*Wﬁﬁfﬁﬁ@ H b 8
BENRYE BEARGBEREEFLE

future events and circumstances, the actual results may vary RNAE -

and may cause a material adjustment to the carrying amount

of goodwill, other intangible assets and property, plant and

equipment within the next financial year.

Determining the appropriate discount rate involves estimating BEEHENREIREMGERLREER

the appropriate adjustment for market risk and for asset specific
risk factors. The management has taken consideration of risk-

ERBRAZZEEFHBELMGE - EEE
EZRERARX (2EHECHTRAES

free rate (reference to the yield of the long term bond issued R E) RERITENR R ZRARE
in the PRC), the cost of equity and debt of the companies in AR EMmAaeRE R E = - flin A& E

respective industry and other possible risk factors such as the
market capitalisation of the Group in estimating the discount
rate. Details of the estimates of the recoverable amounts of
cash generating units are disclosed in note 16.
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{37 &) R U [ <5 B8 1O fl 5t S 1B TO IR B RE 16 3%

o

2018 F3f FEBLEEEFEBEERAT



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILF=

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONT'D)

Share-based payment transactions

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions
with employees/consultants by reference to the fair value of
the equity instruments at the date at which they are granted.
Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions
requires determining the most appropriate valuation model,
which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant.
This estimate also requires determining the most appropriate
inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of
the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making
assumptions about them. The assumptions and models used
for estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions
are disclosed in note 36.

Contingent consideration receivables

Where the fair value of contingent consideration receivables
cannot be derived from active markets, their fair value is
determined using valuation techniques including the discounted
cash flow model. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets, where possible, but where this is not
feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair
values. The judgments include considerations of inputs such
as probability-adjusted profit/loss, marketability discount and
minority discount. Changes in assumptions about these factors
could affect the reported fair value of contingent consideration
receivables.

4
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFZ

5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 5 WmkEMUA
The Group’s turnover represents revenue from its principal AEBZEXEERNERFTERNREEE
activities, measured at the net invoiced value of goods sold ZEY RO EEMBRFEFE 2 ME -

during the years presented.
Other income recognised during the year is as follows: RNEFADEREMPALAT :

Period from

Yearended 1 May 2017 to

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
BE-ZT—tF

BZE AH—HE
—E-NF =ZEZT—+F
+=—A=+—-8 +t=ZA=+—H

LHEE 1EHARS
HK$’°000 HK$’'000
FEx FHETT
Bank interest income RITH B UA 7,026 9,967
Fair value gain on financial assets EAFERERYIEREZ
at fair value through profit or loss TREEATFERE - 118
Gain on disposals of property, HEWE - BE K& 2 K
plant and equipment - 1
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 42) HERB ARz K (HFE42) - 35,206
Government grant income (note) BT A B A (BT ) 12,830 2,351
Interest income on loan receivables FEWE 52 F B WA - 298
Others H A 4,001 1,968
23,857 49,909
Note: I &E -
These government grants were received and complied with all attached N5 B B YRR EZ S BT 4 B X 75 S BB B AR -
conditions and therefore recognised in profit or loss during the year. bR FERNEBEPER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H & ==

—N\F+ZA=+—RHLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. DEPEHR
The executive directors have identified the Group’s five business NITESCERASERLKERERLE
lines as operating segments as further described in note 3.21. DE (GEEEHNHES21) - RIBL&FHESD
The operating segments are monitored and strategic decisions B AL .%.* XEMREEED BEEERE RIE
are made on the basis of adjusted segment operating resullts. .ﬂ &R Hﬁlﬁﬁ?ﬁzi%éuu (S By ] B T
Revenue is disaggregated by major products (recognised at a R) MR (BER I RERR) D5 o
point in time) and services (recognised over time).
Dermatology, cosmetic Cell, healthcare products Ophthalmology Stomatology products
products and others and services products and others Medical equipment Total
R thmRES BB REBERARH BNER NENERRER BRRE it
Perod from Perod flom Period from Perod from Perod fom Perod flom
Yearended 1Mey207to  Yearended 1Mey207to  Yearended 1May207to  Yearended 1May20i7to  Yearended 1Mey20i7Tto  Yearended 1Mey20(7to
31 December  3fDecember 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December  3fDecember 31 December 31 December
2018 217 2018 2017 2018 017 2018 17 2018 2017 2018 2017
3 “5-tF Rtf TRtE IRtE 3t
BE 1A-HeZ B2 1f-AEE B2 1f-A#E B2 nA-AZ B2 1A-AEZ B2 1A-REZ
8-\ ZFF 3N St BN 3t BN Z3-tF BN CT4F ZE-NF C34F
T2R tzR 25 12R 25 2R t2R 2R 28 27 tzB T=R
-f =8 -8 B -8 IR I-B -8 H-R IR =-R ci-R
2:3:4 o) z:3:4 ItER 334 g1 LEE 25 2354 5] 334 12:15]
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK§ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
TEL ThrL TR TEn TEn Tién TR Thn T#L Thr &1 Thn
(Restated) [Restated) [Restated) [Restated) [Restated) (Restated)
(EE2]) ({271 (1)) (HEj)) () (7))
Revene fiom conracts wihcustomers. BB BE £ 285 15
it the scope of HKFRS 15 FEERNRPAIMA:
- From extemal customers -RENAER 12494 i 6,867 1,851 5341 55,628 19,386 63556 28,864 3i14n 12952 503,680
- From intersegment revente -RaABH - - - - - - - - -
Reportable segment revenue AT2HHuE 124% 174 6,867 1,851 5341 55,628 19,386 63,56 2,864 3i14n 72952 503,680
Reporleseqmentprofiffoss)  ETEROUNA/(6E) (0 G019 (M) MO @eed 0 @M 197 0 TR O % W)
Amotisaton of land use rights HHERER 106 69 - - - - - - - - 106 6
Amortsaton of oheritangbleassets  EfERAERH 16,595 1220 7,663 6217 - 175 19,128 12515 - 1 3% 3048
Depreciation g 6,954 5845 14,968 3751 3,054 604 1,19 269 k') 2% 26,215 10494
Impaiment of gooctl EEHE 146,619 - 55673 - - - - - - - 200292 -
Impaiment ofoter ntangle assets EHEVEERE 73,048 - 67,102 - - - 135,74 - - - 275,8% -
Impaiment of property, plant and equipment 1% + BiE R B E 55,286 - 95,304 - 6,13 - 11,760 - - - 168,486 -
Inerestinoome HEMA 3 810 6 7 % 8 38 4,981 8 1 9 5898
Reportable segment assets AT2H09EE 14510 647430 53,525 167,432 53,381 143,661 103,836 342,046 97,863 611430 383,175 191,999
Addtonstonon-curent seqmentassets  ERERHABEE
during the year LRE 3288 30,286 8,601 0719 9 80 626 8 - - 12474 61,127
Reportable segment liabilties 7280986 16,517 71812 71,004 36,204 25765 33603 7990 10855 4892 28746 192,168 300320
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFZ

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT'D) 6. DEER (&)

AREE B K2 ) B 5 TR /O 48 7R S A SR [ 0 B
BBmRIIRAORRR Y BBIRARAT -

The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments
reconcile to the Group’s key financial figures as presented in the
financial statements as follows:

Period from
Yearended 1 May 2017 to
31 December 31 December

2018 2017

B —tF

BZE AA—HiE

—E-N\FE ZE-ZT—+F

+=A=+-R +t=A=+—~

LFE 1EHARS

HK$’°000 HK$’'000

FEx FABT

Total of reportable segments’ revenue AT EWMDEPM =L EE 72,952 503,680

Less: Elimination of intersegment revenue VR iz ba A R - -

Group revenue SEE W 72,952 503,680

Total of reportable segments’ loss AT EWMDEPEIBREE (975,769) (50,963)

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEHB AR 2 W - 35,206

Unallocated corporate income ROBEEWA 8,631 4,120

Unallocated corporate expenses ROMEEMX (223,933) (119,412)
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair value & A F{ERIEZEFBRH

through profit or loss TRMEEZATEEE (113,803) -
Fair value loss on contingent consideration ~ fEMW L AKE 2 AFE

receivables B8 (26,271) (15,876)

Finance costs &R (21,654) (24,901)

Group’s consolidated loss before income tax 2N B 2 & AT 1554 Al 45 & &5 18 (1,352,799) (171,826)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI =E

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H & ==

—N\F+ZA=+—HLEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT'D) 6. DEER (&)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHTT
Total of reportable segments’ assets BT EWMDEPEERTE 383,175 1,911,999
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESRMEE - 575,056

Financial assets at fair value through bi-a/N lﬁﬁ/\\i@\ =ANERZ
profit or loss SREE 208,296 12,154
Deposit for acquisition of subsidiaries WENB AR ZIES 145,457 100,000

Financial assets at fair value through other ~ ZAFER 42

comprehensive income Wes PR H & Bl & B 161,445 -
Contingent consideration receivables FEU AR (B 4,587 32,502
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFHEER 2,828 6,575
Pledged bank deposits BEHERRITIFE R 417,568 818,062
Other corporate assets HEbxEEE 9,567 71,625
Group assets EBEE 1,422,923 3,527,973
Total of reportable segments’ liabilities BATEWMDEEERE 192,168 380,320
Bank borrowings RITER 389,300 771,840
Shareholder’s loans BRRE R 258,334 472542
Deferred taxation ERER IR 9,661 81,076
Other corporate liabilities HEMEEE 6,197 8,871
Group liabilities SEAE 855,660 1,714,649

Unallocated corporate expenses mainly included staff costs,

APECERAXTIZEBREFERATANLE

exchange loss, equity-settled share-based payments, rental BN EREHEENETINA - ER
and other expenses not directly attributable to the business BE- UEZEECREINER B2

activities of any operating segments.

KBRS o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BATS R It

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFZ

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D)

The Group’s revenue from external customers and its non-
current assets other than contingent consideration receivables,
FVOCI, available-for-sale financial assets and pledged deposits
(“Specified non-current assets”) are divided into the following

geographical areas:

6. ZEER (B&)

AEEXRBINATFPHREREFRDE
E(BEHARE ZAFEREMEER
AR AR ESRMEEREERER
BROM (TS ESERBIBE ) IR DT :

Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
RENREF RS BEXRBEE
Period from Period from
Year ended 1 May 2017 Year ended 1 May 2017
31 December to 31 December 31 December to 31 December
2018 2017 2018 2017
B-F—+tF BE-ZE—tF
BE FHA—HiE S FH—HiE
—B-N\F  EZTLF —B-N\F  EZTLF
+=A=+-B +ZA=+—H +=A=+-B +ZA=+—H
LFE LEEAR LFE LEERRE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT FET THERT TET
Hong Kong BB 2,054 13,377 25,392 83,723
The PRC (domicile) B (EREF7Ei) 70,898 490,303 341,245 962,874
72,952 503,680 366,637 1,046,597
During the year ended 31 December 2018, 14% and 12% of Bz —_Z—N\F+_A=+—BItFE "

the Group’s revenue depended on two customers in medical
equipment segment. As at 31 December 2018, none of the
Group’s trade receivables were due from these two customers.

ALK H14% K 12% 5 B R B R E R

REIHIMEBEFS -R=_F

—N\F+=

A=1+—H XEERBERKESRENR

EEANEE-S o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILF=

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D)

During the period from 1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017, 14%
and 10% of the Group’s revenue depended on one customer
in medical equipment segment and one customer in tissue
engineering segment respectively. As at 31 December 2017, 0%
and 1% of the Group’s trade receivables were due from these
two customers respectively.

The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the services were provided or the goods
delivered. The geographical location of the specified non-
current assets is based on (1) the physical location of the assets
(for property, plant and equipment and land use rights) and (2)
location of operations (for goodwill and other intangible assets).
The Company is an investment holding company where the
Group has majority of its operation and workforce in the PRC,
and therefore, the PRC is considered as the Group’s country
of domicile for the purpose of the disclosures as required by
HKFRS 8 “Operating Segment”.

%

7 EBE R ()

754\: —+FRA—HEZE—+tF+=
A=+—HHHE AEEKZEMN14% &
10% DRI RENEEXHEI 2 —BEF
NEBTIE Bz —BEP - RZT—+
F+-ZA=1+—H AEERKESEHE

0% K1% D RIREZMERF °

BEP AR D RBE IR M 2 R LA
EmZHMEHED - REFRDEEZ I
TRBENEEBRMEN CERRYE - K
B R L i (8 R 4E) K (248 & P fE
(BRARBEREMENEE) D AR

Tﬁ—ﬁhﬁi“ﬂj MmAEEAZ 8
LENBBNHETE - Bt PEHKER
REBRBEEVERELANFESRILLD
MIREMBEZARE 2 EBMEM -

FINANCE COSTS M%EH
Period from
Yearended 1 May 2017 to
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
BE-ZT—tF
BZE AH—HE
—E-NF =ZEZT—+F
+=—A=+—-8 +t=ZA=+—H
LFEE 1EEAE
HK$’°000 HK$’'000
FET T T
Interest on bank borrowings IRITIERZHE 21,654 24,901
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BATS R It

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFZ

8. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

8. KRFTGHAIEE

Period from
Yearended 1 May 2017 to
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
B —tF
BZE AA—HiE
—E-N\FE EZT—+tHF
+=A=+—8 +=ZA=+—H
LFE 1EHARS
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FEx FABT
Loss before income tax has been arrived at ~ BRETE R AIEEE
after charging/(crediting): Amortisation of meg GtA) T5I&E :
land use rights oMb A B 106 69
Amortisation of other intangible assets, B EEgs
included in administrative expenses (BEBEFBETHRRAYF) 43,386 30,428
Auditor’s remuneration i e 1,780 1,022
Depreciation e 26,210 10,494
Advertising and marketing, included in selling & & & ™5 # &5 52
and distribution expenses (BEEEEHERERASY) 102,181 63,128
Equity-settled share-based payments NEREE  REZNES (549) 25,495
Exchange difference, net EREZRCERE) 21,122 (1,648)
Operating lease rentals in respect WREYFEZ L&
of office premises HEHE 42,060 22,677
Research and development costs ot 25 i AR 32,443 30,194
Less: Capitalisation to other intangible assets i : B AL &= E b & &= - (3,475)
32,443 26,719
Employee benefit expense (including directors’ /8 E @A > (R IEZE =)
emoluments (note 9) (note 10) (ff5E9) (MIEE10) 110,621 101,414
Less: Employee benefit expenses included in & : B FEFEAFEE AR AR A 2
research and development costs EE @A HZ (2,012) (2,878)
108,609 98,536
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILF=

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 9. EERESTHAEME
OFFICERS’ EMOLUMENTS

Contribution
todefined  Equity-settled
Salaries and contribution share-based

Fees allowances plans payments Total
TEHY  NERLEZ
ng FoREy HEZHR  REXNER £t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THR THT THT THR
Year ended 31 December 2018 HEZZ2-\EtZA=t-ALEE
Executive directors #i7EE
Dr. Ray Yip EERT 647 897 - - 1,544
Mr. Wang Xugjun I8ELEE
(appointed on 3 September 2018) (R=B-N\ENA-REZF) - 1,500 - - 1,500
Mr. Chen Chunguo REELE
(resigned on 6 July 2018) (ZZ-NEtAREE) 2,009 455 14 - 2,568
Independent non-executive directors ~ BUKEHTES
Mr. Chan Bing Woon RRiaLE 240 - - - 240
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Emest ERGLE 240 - - - 240
Dr. Fang Jun hEET 242 - - - 242
Mr. Pang Chung Fai Benny FHELE
(resigned on 1 June 2018) (RZZ-NE/A-BEf) 100 - - - 100
Non-executive directors FifEE
Professor Cui Zhanfeng EREBHE
(resigned on 1 June 2018) (RZZ-N\E/A-BEf) 500 - - - 500
Professor Xiong Chengyu REFHR
(resigned on 1 June 2018) (RZZ-N\E/A-BEf) 250 500 - - 750
4318 3362 14 - 7,684
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 9. EERBSITHRAEME (&)

OFFICERS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONT’D)

Contribution
to defined Equity-settied
Salaries and contrioution share-based
Fees allowances plans payments Total
TEER  NBREEL
ik He Rzl ez REIAER At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL THT T T T
Period from 1 May 2017 to H-S-tERF-A#E
31 December 2017 ZE-tEtZAZt-HLHE
Executive directors UrEs
Mr. Chen Chunguo REALE - 3465 12 9,821 13,298
Dr. Ray Yip (re-designated from E36T
non-executive director to executive (R=2—tENAN\Af
director on 8 September 2017) FHNESRIANNES) 400 800 - - 1,200
Mr. Wong Sai Hung (resigned on EHELE
30 Noverber 2017) (RZE—tET-A=TRED) - 840 11 1,284 2135
Dr. Shao Zhengkang (resigned on G
8 September 2017) (RZZ-tENANREE) - 635 8 1,014 1,857
Independent non-executive directors B F&H{TES
Mr. Chan Bing Woon R 160 - - 188 348
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Emest ERERE 160 - - - 160
Mr. Pang Chung Fai Benny yHELE 160 - - 19 356
Dr. Fang Jun (appointed on FEET
29 December 2017) (RZE-tFT-A-THERE() - = = = -
Mr. Lui Tin Nang (resigned on BRsTE
8 September 2017) (R=E-tENANBEE) 140 - - - 140
Non-executive directors FHTES
Professor Cui Zhanfeng ELEHR 800 = - 601 1401
Professor Xiong Chengyu REFHE 400 - - - 400
Mr. Wang Hu (re-dlesignated from TELE
independent non-executive directorto (K=t F—H
non-executive directoron 1 June 2017 BUFHTEFATAFHIES
and resigned on 8 September 2017) TR-F-+ENANRER) 182 = - 14 196
2,402 5,740 31 13,118 21,291
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILF=

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 9. EBREBSTHRAEME (&)

OFFICERS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONT’D)

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year and the
period from 1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office.

Salaries, allowances and other benefits paid to or for the
executive directors are generally emoluments in respect of those
persons’ other services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Employees’ emoluments

The five individuals whose emoluments including share-based
payment expenses were the highest in the Group for the year
included three (2017: four) directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments of
the remaining two individual (2017: one) were as follows:

EAR—_E—+tHERA—HE-_ZT—+tF
T+ A=+ HHREEERESIRE
WEEAE 2 8k

AEEYEAETHEIMME - (ERM
AZRER B AN A AN 5 (B By 2 22 R ok B
e

XNTHRTEFZHE FEREMER
RRZEATERERARRRENBEA
AIEHHEMRBE SN ML -

ESHZ

AEBEFALERSFAL (HHEeRE
NBRDBRERZNHRFA) BRE=42 (=%
—tF OB EE EMeRBNRERD
TAR-BRTME(ZE—LF: —8B) AL
MBS T

Period from

Yearended 1 May 2017 to

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
BHZZ—t&

BZE FHA—H#E
—E-NE ZF T —tF
t=RA=+—-8 t=A=+—H

ItEE 1-HARS

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHExT FHET

Salaries and other benefits e REAMEF 4,390 1,890
Retirement benefits scheme contributions R A ET B 36 12
Equity-settled share-based payments NESEE 2 BRESFEB - 292
4,426 2,194
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFZ

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 9.
OFFICERS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONT’D)
EEMZ (&)

Employees’ emoluments (Cont’d)

The emoluments of the highest paid non-director individuals fell

within the following band: LAA -

EENBSTHRAEME (B)

HFEENRSHFALHMEN FATHEE

Number of individual

N
Period from
Yearended 1 May 2017 to
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
BE-_ZT—tfF
BZE AA—HiE
—B-N\F E-FL£F
t+=RA=+—-8 t=A=+—H
LFEE LEEA
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = % 1,000,000 7T - =
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500, 001 7% 7T — 2,000,000 7 7T - =
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000, 001 & 7T~ 2,500,000 % 7T 2 1

10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

10. RERNRAX (BREEHZ)

Period from

Yearended 1 May 2017 to

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

B —tF

BZE AA—HiE

—E-N\FE ZEZT—+tHF

+=ZBA=+—-8 +=A=+—H

LHEE 1EHARS

HK$’°000 HK$’'000

FHEx FHET

Wages and salaries TERES 98,824 69,145
Equity-settled share-based payments DiEmEE 2 RESNER - 23,173
Pension costs — defined contribution plans ~ ERE KA — FEREH KT 2] 9,795 7,002
Other staff benefits Hih 8 TaA 2,002 2,094
110,621 101,414
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI =E

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILF=

11. INCOME TAX CREDIT

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (period ended 31
December 2017: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profit for
the year. The PRC enterprise income tax of 25% (period ended
31 December 2017: 25%) is applicable to the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries except that Shenzhen AiNear Cornea Engineering
Company Limited and Tianjin Weikai Bioeng Ltd are granted the
tax benefit for the National High-Tech Enterprise for three years
starting from the calendar year ended 31 December 2016. They
are subject to income tax rate of 15%. Taxation on overseas
profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable profits
for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

1. i8R

BAEFE B TR AN F E (G 5T FE R B0% 7 &9
165% (HEZE=—FT—tF+=-A=+—H1
HiM : 16.5%) 5T & - N&EE F B B A 7
HAB% (BE_ZT—tF+=_A=+—
BIEHIM :25%) cHF BIBEFRBR -
NV EBABEIREER AR RXERI
EYTRERRAFANREBEEZE—RF+=
A=+t—BILEBEFRF=EFEANELE
XMt EmMERFIEESR  RAR
15% 2 FT 15 T R BHL o BN HL Th AR 1%
REE A ET R m F IR AR & [ 48 & T
2 IRITRERETE o

Period from

Yearended 1 May 2017 to

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

BE-ZT—tF

Bz hA—RHE

—E-NF =ZEZT—+F

+t=RA=+—-8 t=A=+—H

R 153

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHET

Profits tax — for the current year MEH -—KEE

Over provision in respect of prior years BEFEHRERE 35 =
Deferred taxation (note 30) EFERIE (BT 7E30) (68,919) (5,610)
Income tax credit FiSHiE % (68,884) (5,610)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFZ

1. INCOME TAX CREDIT (CONT’D) 1. TSHIER (B)
Reconciliation between income tax credit and accounting loss RERBMEFECMEHER R SFTEE
at applicable tax rates: ZHERIT ¢

Period from

Yearended 1 May 2017 to

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
BHZZ—t&F

BZE FHA—H#E
—E-N\FE EZT—+HF
t=ZA=+—-HB +=A=+—H

LEFE =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loss before income tax R P 1S B Al &5 18 (1,352,799) (171,826)
Notional tax calculated at the rates applicable %78 B %18 Rl AR & ~ &8
to the loss in the tax jurisdictions concerned 7 fi Rzt E ) & FZE R 1A (289,355) (36,082)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible A AENBR ARG E
for tax purpose 212,199 36,235
Tax effect of income not taxable BARBERANH S 2
for tax purpose (5,171) (1,211)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised HARERRIBBEENHBETE 13,408 3,041
Utilisation of previously unrecognised B BE R ER 2 R IEEE
tax losses - (7,593)
Over provision in respect of prior years BEFEBEREE 35 =
Income tax credit SRk R (68,884) (5,610)
12. DIVIDENDS 12. BB
The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for EEVITEBENAFEFERE (ZZE—+F
the year (Period from 1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017: Nil). AA—HZE_ZT—+&F+— H =+—HBH
fE : ) o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILF=

13. LOSS PER SHARE 13. BIREE
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share KRB ABGERERREEEBRT
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following BRIFEA T EIETE
data:

Period from

Yearended 1 May 2017 to

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
HZZ—t&F

BZE HFHA—H#E
—E-N\E =E=-_FT—+F
+=ZA=+—-8 +=A=+—H

LEFE 1FHARS
HK$’°000 HK$’'000
FEx FABT
Loss for the period/year attributable to AU ESREREEZ
owners of the Company for the purpose RARHER AELAERE
of basic loss per share FEEE (1,193,501) (158,492)
Period from
Yearended 1 May 2017 to
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
B-Z—tF
BZE AH—H#
—E-N\F EZFT—+F
+t=ZA=+—HB t-A=+—H
IHEE 1EHAR
’000 ‘000
T’ TR
Number of shares RGO E
Weighted average number of ordinary shares F At & &% E A EIE 2
for the purpose of basic loss per share - 38 A% 0k S 19 2K 17,585,790 17,585,790
For the year ended 31 December 2018 and period from 1 May HE_Z-\F+_A=1T—HLEFEXK
2017 to 31 December 2017, diluted loss per share attributable E-_2—tFRA—BRBE_ZT—+tF
to owners of the Company was not presented because the TZA=T—BILHE ARITEERE
impact of the exercise of share options was anti-dilutive. BER#EETE RUEBZIAARESA

FE1h SR EE A -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - MERRZRE
Furniture
Leasehold and Computer Motor
Buildings improvement  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
BT HENEEE HARRE Bl RE ait

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR

At 1 May 2017 R-Z-t£5A-A

Cost KA 102,331 60,189 99,497 3,289 4531 269,837
Accumulated depreciation 25thE (7,632) (10,849) (26,438 (2,135) (2,669) 49,723
Net book amount REFE 94,699 49340 73,059 1,154 1,862 220,114

Period from 1 May 2017 to B-Z-t5RfA-HE

31 December 2017 E-E-t§+-ZA=t-A
LHE

Opening net book amount BNREFE 94,699 49,340 73,059 1,154 1862 220,114
Exchange differences ERER 5,940 214 3,521 34 104 9,813
Disposal i3 - - ® - - ®
Additions AE - 43,766 30,080 1,866 - 75,712
Written off s - (422) ? &) - (21)
Disposal of asubsidiary (note 42) ~ tHER BA A (i3t 42) - - (1,435) (60) = (1,495)
Acquisition of a subsidlary (note 41)  WEERI B &l (st 41) - - 1419 19 - 1438
Depreciation ik (1,647) (2,350) (5,795) (370) (332) (10,494)
Closing net book amount BREEFE 98,992 90,548 100,839 2,640 1,634 204,653
At 31 December 2017 RZE-tE+-A=1-H

Cost A 108,847 104,096 134,582 5,086 4,825 357,436
Accumulated depreciation ZiHirE (0,855) (13,548) (33,743 (2,446) (3,191) (62,783)
Net book amount FAFE 98,992 90,548 100,839 2,640 1634 204,653
Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ-F-N\£+-F=+-H

LFE

Opening net book amount HREFE 98,992 90,548 100,839 2,640 1,634 294,653
Exchange differences EREE (4,958) (376) (1,775) - - (7,109)
Disposal irk:3 - (29) (1,225) (52) (15) (1,315)
Additions AE - 4,875 5,114 2,360 863 13,712
Depreciation i (1,872 (11,018) (12,187) (817) (316) (26,210)
Impairment losses HEEE (41,499) (83,265) (39,324) (2,367) (2,031) (168,486)
Closing net book amount HAREFE 50,663 ™ 51,442 2,264 135 105,245
At 31 December 2018 R=E-NE+-B=1-H

Cost kA 103,341 108,368 133,146 9,323 5,710 359,888
Accumulated depreciation and ZIHERAEER

impairment losses (52,678) (107,627) (81,704) (7,059) (5,575) (254,643)
Net book amount REE 50,663 741 51,442 2,264 135 105,245

2018 F3f FEBLEEEFEBEERAT



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILF=

14.

15.

106.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BERZE (E)
(CONT’D)
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, all the Group’s buildings RZE—NFERZFE—+tF+A=4—
are situated in the PRC and are held under medium term B ANEEMBEFAHMNFHE A E
leases. HEFRARFH -
During the year, the directors reviewed the carrying amount of FRN BEEEEEYVE BEEKBEZER
property, plant and equipment. The details of the impairment H{E BB G ZFBEIHNRHE16 -
assessment are stated in note 16.
LAND USE RIGHTS 15. T b5 FAAE
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHTT
Opening net carrying amount HAY) AR E 5B 4,416 4,219
Exchange differences ER =R (219) 266
Amortisation # 55 (106) (69)
Closing net carrying amount HA R BR D FHE 4,091 4,416
The Group’s land use rights represent payments to acquire REB 7+ ERAERBKEBLNTREZ -
interests in the usage of lands situated in the PRC, which are M FERER(LUHPBHEAERAFE) 2%
held under medium-term leases. <P FRIE ©
GOODWILL 16. BHE

The goodwill arose from (1) the acquisition of FD(H)
Investments Limited and its subsidiaries, which are engaged
in the production and sales of tissue engineering products,
in 2008 and the acquisition of Shenzhen Kechuang Guangtai
Technology Co., Ltd (“Kechuang”), which is engaged in
development and sales of information technology software
related to lamellar keratoplasty recording during the period
ended 31 December 2017 (note 41) (“Aierfu Business”);
(2) the acquisition of Maylion Management Limited and its
subsidiary (“Reshine Business”), which is engaged in bio-
medical engineering, research and development of regenerative
medical products in relation to tissue engineering technology in
December 2013; (3) the acquisition of Passion Stream Limited
and its subsidiaries (“Weikai Business”), which is engaged in
the design and manufacturing of pre-clinical cell and stem cell
related equipment, especially in 3D cell culture bio-reactors
and their related consumables, as well as provision of CRO
services in April 2015; and (4) the acquisition of Frame Sharp
Limited and its subsidiaries (“AK Business”), which is principally
engaged in providing service and equipment for human cell and
stem cell related clinical applications in August 2015.

BHEDEABN S NFWREFDH)
Investments Limited & H Bt & A &) - H %
EHERMEABIRER: REE_-Z
—+tF+-A=+—H HBRKEZRY
MelEZsmaRAn ((Ral)  EH=
FELEHERREAERELEEBZE
BREMTE G (M sE41) (RBEEK]
QO ZE—=F+-AUEZHREEAER
ARIREKBAR ([HERES])  Hit=
EYBRETEE  FREAKTERTNEE
EEEMMNTFE QT —RFMNAKE
Passion Stream Limited & £ fff B 2 &) ([
YLER])  E{EEERRA AR 4R AE
BB RTINS (Bh R E=fERE
BEYRESMESEEBOREN) L RIRE
ERABMAERS  RO=ZZT—RHEN
B U B Frame Sharp Limited & £ Kf & A 7
(TRIEK])  HEZREAABHERK
0 41 [0 A 8 B K B R IR (L AR 7S Mo Rk A o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BATS R It

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFZ

16. GOODWILL (CONT’D) 16. B& ()
The net carrying amount of goodwill can be analysed as follows: BECEEFEZONAT -
Aierfu Reshine Weikai AK
Business Business Business Business Total
NEEEE HEREE Xk RIER &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TET TET THT
At 1 May 2017 R=ZZ—t&ERA-H
Gross carrying amount BEERE 141,310 152,615 96,213 8,902 399,040
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE - (152,615) (49,442) = (202,057)
Net carrying amount RmEE 141,310 - 46,771 8,902 196,983
Period from 1 May 2017 to BE-Z—t5RA-HE
31 December 2017 E-Z—tH+-A=1+-H
IEEE
Opening net carrying amount H IR A 141,310 - 46,771 8,902 196,983
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 41) YEaH! B2 & (His41) 5,309 = = = 5,309
Closing net carrying amount HREEFE 146,619 - 46,771 8,902 202,292
At 31 December 2017 R-EB—t&+=ZA=+—-H
Gross carrying amount BEERE 146,619 152,615 96,213 8,902 404,349
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE - (152,615) (49,442) = (202,057)
Net carrying amount FmEE 146,619 - 46,771 8,902 202,292
Year ended 31 December 2018 HZE=-Z—N\&F+=f8
=t-BILEE
Opening net carrying amount H IR A 146,619 - 46,771 8,902 202,292
Impairment losses REEBE (146,619) - (46,771) (8,902)  (202,292)
Closing net carrying amount BARREFE - - - = -
At 31 December 2018 R-EB-NE+=ZA=+—-H
Gross carrying amount BERE 146,619 152,615 96,213 8,902 404,349
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (146,619)  (152,615) (96,213) (8,902)  (404,349)
Net carrying amount REFE - - - - -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILF=

16. GOODWILL (CONT’D) 16. B& ()
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to AETRERA BHEELEZNERS
four cash generating units, Aierfu Business, Reshine Business, EEEMN VBEXR WmEEL - il

Weikai Business and AK Business.

The recoverable amounts for these cash-generating units
have been determined based on higher of value-in-use (“VIU”)
or fair value less cost of disposal (“FVLCD”) calculation using
discounted cash flow technique, covering detailed five-year
budget plans. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using the estimated growth rates as stated below.
The discount rates used for VIU and FVLCD are pre-tax and
post-tax respectively and reflect specific risks relating to the
relevant cash-generating unit.

The key assumptions used for recoverable amounts are as
follows:

LT

ZERGELABUNAINESESRERE
ﬁﬁ,ﬁﬁiﬁiﬁiumg/‘z‘(TE;?iﬁfﬁi‘E%tﬁ'i‘D
AEZEREBE(EAEE]D KR FER
HERR ([AFEREEKRA]) MEDER
BEEE RAFHUE RS RENIEU
THAMEEI S REHER - ARNEREEK
RNFER B AR ITIR R D B AR BA
KTk WRRERREELEM 25
E R o

A El SR ERNERREOT

Basis Growth rate Discount rate
B Rz gk
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Z§-N\E “E-+F ZE-N\& 3 -\ “5+tF
Alerfu Business CIES VIUERER VUERERE 3% 3% 4% 2%
Reshine Business REER VIVEREE VUEREE 3% 3% 28% 28%
Welkai Business EEE) VUEREE  PLCDATFER 3% % 2% 2%
HERA
AK Busingss RY ¥ VU$REE  PICDATER 3% 3% 5% 20%
HEHA

The key assumptions are those regarding the discount
rate, growth rate and budgeted gross margin, which had
been determined based on the market comparables and
budgeted revenue, which had been determined based on the
management’s expectation for the market development and the
production capacity of relevant cash generating units.

Apart from the considerations described above in determining
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit, the
Group’s management is not currently aware of any other
probable changes that would necessitate changes in their key
assumptions. However, the estimate of recoverable amount of
the Group’s cash generating units is particularly sensitive to the
discount rate applied.

The recoverable amount has been determined by an
independent professional valuer, Roma Appraisal Limited (2017:
Hong Kong Appraisal Advisory Limited) with the discounted
cash flow approach. The recoverable amounts of these cash
generating units are classified as level 3 measurement.

TEBRAABEFARXR ERXREEE
M - REREN S A L EE R AE WS (K
REEEBHMENERNEBARSEL
BUMEEERNCEHET)ETE -

RrtiBErReELBEUAENEEZE
BHRE AEEZEEERFELMANE
EREMAIEE &L SHFTEEHTIR
BR-AM AEERSELEUNAR
Bl & At HARA TR R LS -

A E e BB EXRAEMESBR
HEBERAR (ZF—tF  FENEBRK
BERARDERBBRBERELZETE - %F
BeELBEMNHTTKRESBHRINSE =R

e o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFZ

16.

17.

GOODWILL (CONT’D) 16. B2 (&)
As at 31 December 2018, based on the results of the reviews of RZE—NF+ZA=+—0 BERL
the recoverable amount of the cash generating units containing EEBMAEReHE(EEE) MR ER
goodwill, the carrying amounts exceeded the recoverable EFREEREEBRBEEKESHERREE
amounts of the relevant assets less liabilities of the cash SEVHBE BEEZERRNFEEE=R
generating units, the management considered that impairment REE -WE BERZEBARE AR
loss on goodwill, property, plant and equipment and other & E R EE 18 2 Rl £202,292,0007% 7T
intangible assets of HK$202,292,000, HK$168,486,000 and 168,486,000/ 7T & 275,896,000 /% JT ° Jik
HK$275,896,000 respectively were recognised in profit or loss BEEEZTZHERGEFAEBEREEEENN
for the year. The impairment loss is mainly due to the poor PHERETERAEEESE MHEHEER
financial performance of these cash generating units during the SHE KRB &L -
year and the change of the Group’s operating, marketing and
sales strategies.
As at 31 December 2017, based on the results of the reviews of RZE—tF+_A=+—8  BEYHIR
the recoverable amount of the cash generating units containing CTELABM (BENE) JHESENES
goodwill, the recoverable amounts exceeded the carrying #R O BeELEEMNEEEEREBENA
amounts of the relevant assets less liabilities of the cash WEIeHEBAEERE EREERREA
generating units, the management considered that there was REZZ—+tH&RA—BRBE_ZT—+tF
no impairment to be recognised in profit or loss for the period +TZA=+—HILHRANEBEREAERRE -
from 1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017.
CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION 17. B ARE
RECEIVABLES
2018 2017
—E-NF —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE 7T
At 1 January/1 May wW—A—RB/HA—H 32,502 46,259
Fair value loss NEEEE (26,271) (15,876)
Exchange differences ERZERR (1,644) 2,119
At 31 December R+=—A=+—~H 4,587 32,502

As at 31 December 2018, the management expected that the
contingent consideration receivables will be realised within 12
months from the reporting date, accordingly, it is classified as
current assets. As at 31 December 2017, the management
expected that the contingent consideration receivables would
not be realised within 12 months from the reporting date,
accordingly, it was classified as non-current assets.

There are profit guarantees for the acquisitions of Weikai
Business and AK Business.

RZE—N\EF+-_A=+—H EEBERE
HEKAREE RS ABHRT @A
NER - At EoBERSEE - R =
T—+tHF+_A=+—H8 EEEREHE
WEAREERESBHBET—_@ARTE
B AR ESBEEERBEE -

WkE B o 7 R RV E BB B FIRE ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILF=

17. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION 17. BRSARE (&)

RECEIVABLES (CONT’D)

For Weikai Business, the vendor guaranteed to the Group that
cumulative total net profits for the years ended 31 December
2015 to 2018 will not be less than RMB25,000,000, or he
will transfer part of the shares of Passion Stream Limited (a
70% indirectly owned subsidiary of the Company) held by him
and classified as non-controlling interests in the consolidated
financial statements, based on the percentage of the shortfall
in total net profit over the guaranteed total net profit. The
adjustment will be settled after the end of the four-year period.

For AK Business, the vendor guaranteed to the Group that
cumulative total net profits for the years ended 31 December
2015 to 2018 will not be less than RMB8,000,000, or he will
transfer part of the shares of Frame Sharp Limited (a 70%
indirectly owned subsidiary of the Company) held by him
and classified as non-controlling interests in the consolidated
financial statement, based on the percentage of the shortfall
in total net profit over the guaranteed total net profit. The
adjustment will be settled after the end of the four-year period.

According to the agreements, the vendor requires to appoint
auditors to perform audit for Weikai Business and AK Business
for the year ended 31 December 2018. Within 10 days after
the issue of the audited accounts, the Group and the vendor
will conclude the profit target results. The audited accounts are
not yet ready as at 31 December 2018 and the reporting date.
Based on the management accounts of Weikai Business and
AK Business, management expects both profit target cannot be
met. The Group and the vendor will conclude the percentage of
shortfall and make the share transfer once the audited accounts
are ready.

ﬁﬁ’%ﬁﬂ%ﬁk EFRALEBRE BE

—hAFE-_FE—)\F+=-A=+—H
JtEFZ%qui wmAFEETLORARE
25,000,000 7T * & Al H % & 3% F7 #5 Passion
Stream Limited (7N 2 7] & £ # B 70% I /B
’AET)ZHQTﬁﬁETJ%%%Tﬁ'ﬁ%’f%ﬁiﬁy%mﬁ')ﬁ
MFEEzEZEEOL  REAVBHRE
WD HE A IEE Hxﬂxﬁfé\) ERAZBR
PUEFHRAE R 4EE o

EHBRIER EARALEERE B2

T—hFE-_FT—\F+=-—A=+—H
Jtifo%d‘ 50 AR R T DR AR
8,000,000t ' B AIE ¥ EZEHE M
Frame Sharp Limited (A2 7l E# # 8 70%
WJ%’&ET)ZHQ@@E?E%5ﬁ?’tﬁcU}%§E§5i1%L

BaH FRECERE D RERE B 75
%ﬁi‘«%lﬁ“*ﬁi%iﬁ HxHx%TZE“ ) EHAE
BRI FHEREESE -

REWZE  BHELZERBMEZEE
—E-NF+ZA=t—-BLEFENFS
EBRRIER - HHEEZKRBEI0A
N AEBRESKECRNBRRE -
REZEER-_F—-NA\F+-_A=1+—H
RBERMARER REFIAXHRR
SIEBHEERE  EEERYANE R
REEEMK ~AKB KRB BEEEZROLH -
Wk B EERR LD BE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFZ

17. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION 17. BRSARE (&)

RECEIVABLES (CONT’D)

The contingent consideration receivables represent the fair
value of the profit guarantees in accordance with the share
purchase agreements for the acquisition of Weikai Business and
AK Business and are estimated by independent professional
valuers, Roma Appraisal Limited (2017: Hong Kong Appraisal
Advisory Limited). As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the
fair value of the contingent consideration receivables were
estimated by applying probability weighted discounted cash
flow approach based on the estimated total profits expected by
management of the Group to be earned by the Weikai Business
and AK Business for the four years ended 31 December 2018
and the estimated fair values of the shares of Passion Stream
Limited and Frame Sharp Limited held by the non-controlling
interests.

The fair value of contingent consideration receivables is a level
3 recurring fair value measurement. Significant unobservable
inputs for the valuation approach is the marketability discount of
20.70% (2017: 20.89%).

Higher marketability discount on the fair value of shares of
Passion Stream Limited and Frame Sharp Limited will result in
corresponding lower fair values.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, it is estimated that with all
other variables held constant, the 5% increase in marketability
discount will decrease the fair value of the contingent
consideration receivable by 5% (2017: 5%).

FEHﬁﬂi%ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ?ﬁ”ﬂ%%ﬁﬂ%%&@%ﬂ
XB BRNEERENEINREZAF
(e Emﬁﬁiéﬁr%fﬁﬁﬁm%‘%%%ﬂﬁﬁ
5E£ﬂ(:§—t¢1i55%5”?ﬁﬁf’%ﬁ@
AR B RZBE—NFER_FT—tF
+TZA=+—H8 EBURIKAREBEZAFE
Eﬁﬁﬁ%fBDTE%IEEEimﬁ@&ﬁ?ﬁﬁ
CEERERBGEE-_ZTE—NF+=A
—t+—ALNEFEFHIELRBIER
BRER 2 {5 51 % A1) 4858 DA R JE 458 A% A% B4
Fft 43 Passion Stream Limited X Frame Sharp
Limited B& 19 2 {5 A FEMEFHSH o

%H&ﬁ%ﬁ@Z@Wﬁ%%zé&é@ﬁl&

ANFEEFE - 15@;22@7&#7%%%1#
AMEREITHE R20.70% (ZE—+H F :
20.89%) :

Passion Stream Limited }2 Frame Sharp
Limited 2 117 22 8.2 7945 7 B 47 50 % 7t
=SB AFEBRRD

R_E—NER_ZT—+tF+_A=+—
B E‘Enﬂﬁﬁ*ﬁ‘ ﬁm“%ﬂ%HT“ ik
IR KL NE5% B L BB ANREBRATEE
WA B% (ZF—+F 1 5%) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFE

18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. Hth B\ EE
Development Licensing
Trademark Patents costs agreement Total
He L4 BREAA BEhS &i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THT THL THT THL
At 1 May 2017 R-E-tERf-A
Cost KA 79,984 473,372 111,095 - 664,451
Accumulated amortisation and LB ERAEERR
impairment losses (45,344) (189,991) (3,400) - (238,739)
Net book amount REFE 34,640 283,381 107,695 - 425,716

Period from1May 2017t031 H-E-t£5f-HEZ

December 2017 “E-tETZAST-ALEH
Opening net book amount BNREFE 34,640 283,381 107,695 = 425,716
Exchange differences EHER - 14,238 8,351 = 22,589
Additions nE - - 3475 - 3475
Acquisition of a subsiclary (note 41)  EEMB AR (st 41) - - - 23,393 23,393
Amortisation B (3,559) (21922) 2,332) (2,621) (30,428)
Closing net book amount HREEFE 31,087 275,697 117,189 20,772 444,745
At 31 December 2017 RZE-tF+-A=1-H
Cost A 79,984 493,470 123,216 23,393 720,063
Accumulated amortisation and LB ERAEERR

impairment losses (48,897) (17,773) (6,027) (2,621) (275,318)
Net book amount REFE 31,087 275,697 117,189 20,772 444,745

Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ-E-\5+-A=1-H

J12:3:5

Opening net book amount HREFE 31,087 275,697 117,189 20,772 444,745
Exchange differences EREE - (12,433) (123) (1,063) (13,619)
Amortisation i (5,330) (30,618) (4,145) (3,293) (43,386)
Impaiment loss HERE (21,827) (168,013) (78,195) (7,861) (275,896)
Closing net book amount HREEFE 3,930 64,633 34,726 8,555 111,844
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+ZA=1-H
Cost A 79,984 493,470 125,222 23,393 722,069
Accumulated amortisation and ZABELRERE

impairment losses (76,054) (428,837) (90,496) (14,838) (610,225)
Net book amount REFE 3,930 64,633 34,726 8,555 111,844
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H & ==

18.

19.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONT’D)

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, all other intangible assets
are related to four cash generating units, Aierfu Business,
Reshine Business, Weikai Business and AK Business
respectively. These other intangible assets were mainly arising
from the business combinations as stated in note 16. During the
year, the directors reviewed the carrying amounts of the other
intangible assets. The details of the impairment assessment are
stated in note 16.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

—N\F+ZA=+—HLEFE

HwEFLEE (&)

R N\FE=_FT—+tF+=_A=1+—
H FEEMEFEEANEREELSE
(DR ANBEER MERER @I
BRBEIER)BH ZEEMEFEEE
TELENFI6MESEH - FAN - &
ERVHEMEFEENREE - REFE
E NG

19. JHHESRERE

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FE 7T
Non-current ERE
Unlisted equity securities — ELETRAFES—FELET
unlisted PRC company, at cost FERAT] KA - 112,928
Unlisted private fund — FETAEES B
Overseas, at cost LA - 214,691
Unlisted private fund — FETAEES B
Overseas, at fair value BRAFEE - 126,837
- 454,456
Current TE
Unlisted equity securities — ELETRAFES—FELET
unlisted PRC company, at cost FRERAT KA - 120,600

As at 31 December 2017, unlisted equity securities in private
companies and certain private funds are measured at cost less
impairment losses as the variability in the range of reasonable
fair value estimates was significant and the probabilities of
the various estimates within the range could be reasonably
assessed and used in estimating fair value. The directors of
the Company were of the opinion that the fair value could be
measured reliably.

Except for the unlisted equity securities in PRC company of
HK$120,600,000, the Group did not intend to dispose of
available-for-sale financial assets, while this investment was
classified as FVTPL as at 1 January 2018 (note 2.1A(i)(d)) and
disposed of with the consideration of HK$120,600,000 during
the year.

As set out in note 2.1, these investments were reclassified from
available-for-sale financial investments to FVOCI or FVTPL on 1
January 2018 upon the application of HKFRS 9.

F*” t&E+-_A=1+—HB ZERXaE
AFEGABEEZ2HBEARNEA
FESZBEASGHOATEIERSEF
mRER  LARBZIFLETRAESR
%Fﬂgﬁ &ﬂ$ﬂﬂ@%%ﬁz ZN
NEEER B A FEERETE -

B R B A &) 2 3E b T A% 7K 3% 25 120,600,000
BTN AEBTRHERIREESRERE -
MEBERER-_ZE—N\F—A—HSEE
ZAFEREZYEE (B a2.1A30)d) R
FRHE - R{EA120,600,0007 T °

WNMTEE2 A FREL - MBI & B 15 s £ R
FOH®’ N \F—HA-HZER:
EE—J'f/ttﬁgéFﬂETXﬁé*ﬁ/\*E%TﬁQ;{
REMEERATIRSZ A FERERSR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILF=

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 20. RAFERH 2 EBAGIEY
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE ERMEE
INCOME
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAETT
Non-current JERED
Unlisted equity securities — PRC, IEEMRAF SR
measured at FVOCI BAFEREMERBASIER
B 161,445 -
These equity investments were irrevocably designated at FVOCI HRAANEBRAEZEREBNERMES -
as the Group considered these investments to be strategic in Bz SRR ED TR RS I T AR
nature. This represented the investment in a private company ANEEREMEZEUWATGIEE 1k JhiERR
incorporated in the PRC namely F ¥7 (28)T) BB ERE PR GEMAZMFLARR R (BET) B
R AA]. BEERERABIELHAIRE -
The fair values of this investment on 1 January 2018 and 31 ZEHER_ZE—N\F-—H—Bk_F
December 2018 were HK$165,222,000 and HK$161,445,000 —NE+-_A=+—8BHN2FED A
respectively. The change of fair value of HK$3,777,000 165,222,000% 7t & 161,445,000/ 7T ° F
was recognised in other comprehensive income during the A AN FEEENS, 777,000 TR EME
year. There is no dividend from this investment received and EU AR IER o £ N - b I8 % & I 4 U BY
recognised in profit or loss during the year. B RIS -
21. INVENTORIES 21. &8
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
Raw materials R %S 12,508 8,093
Work in progress ER S 2,690 1,176
Finished goods LUK o 17,177 17,286
Goods in transit T8 M - 2,195
32,375 28,750
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFZ

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS,

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

22. EWWE
&

Z
H At & UL R IR

BRIE - BE - ANFIE

2018 2017

—E-N\EF —E—+tF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FET

Trade receivables Y E 5 R1E 143,805 279,806
Less: Impairment losses B OREEE (139,677) =
4,128 279,806

Deposits o 22,667 14,887
Prepayments TE FIE 79,829 315,977
Bank interest receivables FEULERTT FI B 7,234 17,276
Other receivables H th fE U /IR 8,488 142,533
118,218 490,673

Less: Impairment losses o R EEE (393) =
117,825 490,673

Movements in the impairment losses in respect of trade

FRE 5 EUWRIA & E 8 YR /R E

receivables and other receivables during the year are as follows: EEEENT
Trade Other
receivables receivables
BEZEW Ho{l fE UR
MIE ;I
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET THETT
At 1 January 2018 (upon initial adoption RZZE—NF—A—HEER
of HKFRS 9 (note 3.1) RNE B RS LR E 95%)
(Mt7%3.1) 4,866 2,851
Impairment losses recognised/(reversed)
during the year FRABHER,/ (BE)REEE 139,006 (2,458)
Exchange alignment TE 3 (4,195) -
At 31 December 2018 R_T-N\F+-_A=+—H 139,677 393
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B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILF=

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS, 22, EIWE ZERIE « 2 &€ ~ ANFE

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONT'D)

The impairment losses of trade receivables recognised during
the year were mainly due to the long aged outstanding
receivables without any settlement from debtors and no sales
transactions with these debtors during the year. Management
identified that these customers are in financial difficulty and
the recoverability of these receivables was remote. Revenue
recognised during the year are all settled during the year except
HK$4 million which is recognised as trade receivables as at 31
December 2018.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, prepayments mainly
represented by the prepaid promotion expenses and purchases
of medical equipment for trading. Other receivables mainly
represented payment made to an agent for identification and
negotiation of potential acquisition opportunities or purchase of
equipment, which is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

As at year end date, ageing analysis of trade receivables based
on sales invoice date and net of provisions, is as follows:

R H At B R IR (48)

FRERBNE S M HEAM RSB EER
TTHRRFABBEARBARESHREEN
EMFEAY EEZEEABTAETHER
SH - EEERANSEPHEEY A
B Mz FEMGRR A W B EER G - F
NERKBEINFREN  EFBERZ
E-NE+_A=t—HBHERAEEZEK
F}TE 4,000,000/ 7T, ©

R-E-NER-_ZF—tF+_HA=+—
B BENREIERANRHEELRER
BRENTES - HtbBRFAE ZE
Ve hEREE KRB REREN X
HFr—2RENKRE BEBARER 28
R EREE -

REGH BRREZFRARFEEZAH
KRB EER R ITAT

2018 2017

—E-N\EF —E—+tF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHTT

0-90 days 0E 90K 3,619 259,744
Over 90 days but less than 1 year FE3B 90 ARE D1 F 609 19,770
1 year or over 1 year 11 F L E - 292
4,128 279,806

The Group allows an average credit period of 60-180 days
(2017: 60-180 days) to its customers.

The Group recognised impairment loss based on the accounting
policy stated in note 3.9. Further details on the Group’s credit
policy and credit risk arising from trade receivables are set out
in note 40.

REESLTFTHERFE 2 FH{EEH A60-180
K(ZZE—+F :60FE180K) °

AR ERZBM FE 3.9 AT & 5T B HERR B E
BR - BEAKEREEHRKLE S EUK
HELEERBRNE - TFHBERMEL -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFZ

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

23. BAFERERIIRZERERE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHE 7T

Held for trading: HIEEE :
Unlisted private investment funds — Overseas 3F F T ALEREE S — /B 298,296 =
Listed equity securities — Hong Kong ETRAES S - 12,154
298,296 12,154

The fair value of unlisted private investment funds as at 31
December 2018 is determined by an independent professional
valuer, Roma Appraisal Limited with the market approach,
based on the investee’s financial performance and the multiples
of comparable companies. The key unobservable assumptions
used in the valuation included price to earnings ratio (“PE ratio”)
of 13.48 and marketability discount of 20.7%.

As at 31 December 2018, if the PE ratio and marketability
discount shifted upward by 1%, the fair value of the unlisted
private investment funds would be increased by 1% and
decreased by 0.7% respectively. The higher the PE ratio, the
higher the fair value. The higher the marketability discount, the
lower the fair value.

As at 31 December 2017, the balances of the listed equity
securities are stated at fair value which have been determined
by reference to the quoted bid prices at the reporting date.

R-_ZE—NF+-_A=+—8 FkLFH
SRERS T HBYEEGEMNESHRE
HEERARFEAMBEEE  WNUEE
HENHBHRARJELRAANEE A
EEHEFEANEETATHERBREE
HEHAR([MAXR])13.481% K HHiRer
I8 E20.7% °

RZE-N\F+ZA=+—H fWhH&EX
MM ReTHRE 1% FETLE
REESWAFESD R LT 1%k T
07% TAEXBES RFEBS -MHR
PIREXYES  AFEBE-

R-E—+F+_A=+—H  EHk#E
BHEERDZERATEYE  W2RHREH
HWFTRE ABETE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI =E

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILF=

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS/PLEDGED

24. RERREEEER CEFER

BANK DEPOSITS TEX
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAETT
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTHEH 20,062 244,373
Cash and cash equivalents ReMReFEAR 20,062 244,373
Pledged deposits (note (a)) EEBER (@) 417,568 818,062

(@) The deposits are pledged to banks to secure bank loans (as
detailed in note 29 to the financial statements). These deposits
earn interests from 1.50% to 2.10% (2017: 2.10% to 3.68%)
per annum. As at 31 December 2018, the pledged deposits
of HK$28,200,000 (2017: HK$818,062,000) is classified as
non-current assets as it is pledged to secure non-current
bank borrowings and HK$389,368,000 (2017: Nil) is classified
as current assets as it is pledged to secure current bank
borrowings.

(b) Included in cash and bank balances, short-term deposits
and pledged bank deposits of the Group is HK$434,797,000
(2017: HK$411,733,000) of bank balances denominated in
Renminbi (‘RMB”) placed with banks in the PRC. RMB is not a
freely convertible currency. Under the Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement
and Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for foreign currencies
through banks that are recognised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

@ TGREEBFERITUEREBEITER G
R HBRMFE2) ZEEFERREF
1.50%Z2.10% (Z T —+4F : 210% &
3.68%) MEFB - R=_ZF—N\F+=A
=+—8 - 2#&HF 528,200,000 7T (=
=T — 4 4F : 818,062,000 7T) 9 A A IER
PEE  BRAHDEMAERIENIRTT
& 3% 1 389,368,000/ 7T (— B —+ 4 :
B)OHABRBEE FAEBEKBIE
IRENEBERITIE 2N -

) AEBEZBRESRETESH BHERK
EERFARTERCETHRRFEZIR
TYRARE(TARE])GHEZET
52 434,797,0008 L (=& — £ F :
411,733,000 7C) - ARBIIER B A K
2 B o IR IE P B A 2 SNE B IR 1§15
LEE SERMEEERTE  ASEE
B BERBETINEEB ZRTBAR
B MR B ONEE o

China Regenerative Medicine International Limited Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BATS R It

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFZ

25. TRADE PAYABLES 25. BV E 5 R\
As at 31 December 2018, ageing analysis of trade payables RZZE—NF+_A=+—H ENES
based on invoice date is as follows: IRIBIRBEEHBZREDTAT ¢

2018 2017

—E-N\EF —E—+tF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET TET

0-30 days 0E 30X 4,229 222,131

31-60 days 31 £ 60X - 14,582

Over 60 days but less than 1 year HBiE60 KRB DM F 593 195

1 year or over 1 year 181 F U E 19,388 1,438

24,210 238,346

General credit terms granted by suppliers are 30 days to 60

days.

26. ACCRUED CHARGES AND OTHER PAYABLES  26.

HEBREZ —REEHNFI0KRE60K °

EETERAREMENIRIE

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—+tF

HK$’°000 HK$’'000

F&ET FET

Accrued charges EEtE A 43,988 33,897
Receipt in advance from customers BUREFRIE - 23,569
Other payables H b e < BRIE 71,546 44,206
Government assistances BT 4 Bh 28,425 46,197
143,959 147,869

Government assistances represent payments granted by the
local governments in the PRC in relation to the research and
development of tissue engineering and stem cell projects
carried out in the PRC. These payments will be recognised as
income upon the approval from the local government on the

output of the relevant projects.

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, amount previously presented
as “receipt in advances from customers” as at 31 December
2017 has been reclassified as “contract liabilities” on 1 January

2018.

BT 8 Bh 45 7 B B s U R0 A B 17 2
ABTRENBARBEARLRAERDZ
I ZFRARNE BT EREEAE
PR B LR FERR B -

RERMEEM B RELERE155]E - R =
T—tHE+-_A=t—HURZI /AR
EPREBEIER-_F-—N\F-A—HEHFD
BRIGHEE]-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H & ==

27.

28.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

The contract liabilities mainly relate to advance considerations
received from customers and arose from sale of goods.
The Group may take certain deposits from customers on
acceptance of the order, with the remainder of the consideration
payable at the earlier of delivery of the finished goods.

27. &

—N\F+ZA=+—HLEFE

SHEE

MAEBTRRRREFRHEEEMES
MAKKERR AREEMTERER
PWEETEZES SR TTHRERK R E
N UAREERE) -

W

Movements in contract liabilities B EEZE
2018
—EB-N\f
HK$’000
TR
Upon adoption of HKFRS 15 RMEE ﬁ?ﬁ"{#&%ﬁ 1|55 1555 23,569
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of FAERBZEHES OB ERD
recognising revenue during the year (23,569)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of billing HEEMBAWRIEERAS LA EEM
in advance of sales of goods 28,676
Balance at 31 December R+-—A=+—8%& 28,676
Note: B =% -
The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 using the cumulative effect $‘§IE1§%§J FE /i%ﬂﬂmﬁﬁﬁ e
method and adjusted the opening balance at 1 January 2018. Upon ER|E155 WA S —/\¢ H—H#&
the adoption of HKFRS 15, amounts previously included as “Receipts in G R o TR E/% B s 35 RSB 155714 » &
advance” (note 26) have been reclassified to “Contract liabilities”. ATET A TTEMRIE] (MiE26) S BEEFHH
Z[ANEHE] »
SHAREHOLDER’S LOANS 28. REREX

As at 31 December 2018, shareholder’s loans were unsecured,
interest-free and repayable within one year except for (1)
the amount of HK$100 million, which was for the potential
acquisition of Lung Hang Investments Limited (note 35)
and repayable on or before the third anniversary date of the
advancement date of the shareholder’s loans; and (2) the
amount of HK$100 million, which was repayable on 30 June
2020.

As at 31 December 2017, shareholder’s loans were unsecured,
interest-free and repayable within one year except for the
amount of HK$100 million, which was for the potential
acquisition of Lung Hang Investments Limited (note 35)
and repayable on or before the third anniversary date of the
advancement date of the shareholder’s loans.

RZE—NF+ZA=+—8 BREEX
AEEA RERAR—FRNEE  MHA)
<% % 100,000,000 7 TTBR 51 + 5% E 3 IE Ty
7 7] BE Uk g Lung Hang Investments Limited
(M3E35) @ WZARRERERET A HEE
ﬁz%@izmﬁﬁ)&( ) < %8 100,000,000 7%
TLHER_ZT_ZTFA=THEE-

R=_ZT—+tF+-_A=+—H BREX
AEERF RERANR—FREE HES
%5100 000,000 TLBR A1 » ZERIATI AR

8E U B LLung Hang Investments Limited (Fff
§I35) CWEARKRRERBNBHEER=
BEZRERE-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BATS R It

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFZ

29. BANK BORROWINGS 29.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s bank borrowings are
repayable as follows:

R

TIERK

R-E—N\F+-_A=+—H AEEZ
FEEEIRITHEZT :

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHE 7T
Current: BIER :
Bank loans, secured — repayable within one ~ $R17E % - AHE I —
year (i) —FREE() 366,400 =
Non-current: FEBNHR :
Bank loans, secured — repayable over one  fR{TE K - K —
year but less than five years (i) —F & 1B R F NEE (i) 22,900 771,840
389,300 771,840

The interest-bearing bank borrowings are carried at amortised
cost.

(i) As at 31 December 2018, the current bank borrowings
represented bank loans with principal amounts of
RMB340,000,000, which were repayable within one
year and secured by the Group’s deposits with carrying
amounts of HK$389,368,000.

(i)  As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the non-current
bank borrowings represented bank loans with principal
amounts of RMB20,000,000 and RMB340,000,000
respectively, which are repayable over one year but less
than five years and secured by the Group’s pledged bank
deposits with carrying amounts of HK$28,200,000 (2017:
HK$818,062,000)

Interest rate of the bank borrowings was carried at fixed interest
rate at 4.750% (2017: 4.750%) per annum for the year.

At BERITIE IR B SR AN G B

(i)

RZE—NE+_A=+—8 "
R ITERELASSEAARKE
340,000,0007T * AR —FRNEEH
LA 7K £ [&] BR T {8 389,368,000 JT A
GRERRRIRITER -

R_E—N\EFER_F—+F+_H
=+—H EHBHRITEREEAR
—FREARFRNEEZCEEDESD
A A A R ¥ 20,000,000 7T & A R
340,000,000 T Z RITE X * W LA K
% B8R T (B 428,200,000 T (=
—+4F : 818,062,00078 7T) 2 & K 18
RITTF RAESELR -

AEFRITERIZETEFEFNE4750% (=
T—+4F : 4.750%) 5T & °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILF=

30. DEFERRED TAXATION 30. IEILEFLIE
Deferred taxation is calculated on temporary difference under BEFEDREGBENASELEME
the liability method using the rates of taxation prevailing in the BIRIRITREIRE R ERETE -

countries in which the Group operates.

The movement on deferred tax liabilities is as follows: RIERIBABEZEEBHMNT ¢

Fair value adjustments arising
from other intangible assets

HthEE EEMEE
ZATERE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET T
At beginning of the year F4 81,076 78,411
Fair value adjustments arising from acquisition U & B A BIFFE £ 2
of a subsidiary (note 41) NP EFE (HFE41) - 4,151
Credited to profit or loss for the year (note 11) 25t AZRNEZ B (HzE11) (68,919) (5,610)
Exchange differences EHER (2,496) 4,124
At end of the year FR 9,661 81,076
As at 31 December 2018, the Group has unused tax losses RZE—-—NF+_A=+—H x&E8H
of HK$77,065,000 (31 December 2017: HK$86,494,000) RE)BHIEEE77,065,0008 L (ZF—+
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax F+= A =+—H :86,494,000/8T) ' A
asset has been recognised in respect of the tax losses due FAPAHE H0 R 2R 55 A1) o B3 78 AR 2K s ) SRR &Y
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Tax losses will ASB]FERI M - R A SR A TR B R IR T
expire after 5 years from the year in which the tax losses were MIBEE -HIEEBEBENEELEE FRES
incurred. F1B B -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BATS R It

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFZ

31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. lRA
2018 2017
“E-N\E “T—tF
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
RABHE X K% E Ex
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR AL
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each ~ SREE0.01 BTz ERER
Authorised: EERA
At beginning of the year and FNRER
at end of the year 100,000,000,000 1,000,000 100,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: REGYE I
At beginning of the year and EMRER
at end of the year 17,585,790,000 175,858 17,585,790,000 175,858
Note: B 5k -

All these ordinary shares issued by the Company during the years rank
pari passu with the then existing ordinary shares in all respects.

ARARRZFERT A EBAN &7 H A

ERNCAAEBREARSE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILF=

32. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF 32. RN B 2R R &R
FINANCIAL POSITION
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —EF—+F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Mo e FET FA&T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERRE 75 107
Deposits for acquisition of subsidiaries Y& WJ% NAEZ%E 100,000 100,000
Interests in subsidiaries NIV YNG o £y 209,888 1,064,516
309,963 1,164,623
Current assets REEE
Deposits and prepayments wa RIBNKA ) 12,803 5,996
Financial assets at fair value through BAFERERIIRZ
profit or loss SREE - 12,154
Amounts due from subsidiaries S NGIE O 447,793 1,701,644
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEFEEHE 115 1,367
460,711 1,721,161
Current liabilities nEa G
Accrued charges and other payables R ERRE ﬁﬂJE TERIR 13,364 12,092
Amounts due to subsidiaries NI NGIE 167,725 189,059
Shareholder’s loans %R E 41,584 355,792
Current tax liabilities ERNIEAR 1,326 1,326
223,999 558,269
Net current assets RBEEZE 236,712 1,162,892
Total assets less current liabilites HAEERABEE 546,675 2,327,515
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Shareholder’s loans fEERE 200,000 100,000
Net assets EEZRE 346,675 2,227,515
EQUITY s
Share capital [LEN 31 175,858 175,858
Reserves 1 33 170,817 2,051,657
Total equity R 346,675 2,227,515
On behalf of directors KREEH

Dr. Ray Yip Mr. Wang Xuejun
EEHE FEELE
Director Director
EE EE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BATS R It

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFZ

33. RESERVES 33. f#1E
The Company b/ A=
Share
Share option Translation Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
B EE BRERR ERfE ZiER &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THTL THTL AL
At 1 May 2017 RZE—+FHA—H 3,196,996 34,674 14 (968,239) 2,263,445
Exchange gain on translation of BN E KB BRE
financial statements of foreign 2 JE S s
operations - - 1 - 1
Issue of share options BERE - 25,495 - - 25,495
Lapse of share options BRNERE - (7,240) - 7,240 -
Loss for the period RHEEE - - - (237,284) (237,284)
At 31 December 2017 and RIE—+f&
1 January 2018 TZA=t-RER
—“Z-\E-H-H 3,196,996 52,929 15 (1,198,283) 2,061,657
Exchange loss on translation of &GN EREHRE 2
financial statements of foreign ~~ EXE#8
operations - - ¥] - @)
Equity-settled share-based NEREERESNER
payments - (549) - - (549
Lapse of share options B ARG - (10,224) = 10,224 =
Loss for the year rEEER = = = (1,880,289) (1,880,289
At 31 December 2018 R-B-N%
+=A=+-H 3,196,996 42,156 13 (3,068,348) 170,817

In accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium account of the Company is also available
for distribution to shareholders provided that the Company is
able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business immediately following the date on which any such

distribution is proposed to be paid.

REREHSARE  ARABZEMNEE
FRAMAI DR TR - AR B AR EREZ

K ERBE DK B R

X BT EEDHE -

2018 F3f FEBLEEEFEBEERAT

BEMERE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI =E

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILF=

34. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
As lessee

The Group leases a number of properties under operating
leases. The leases run for an initial period of one to seven years.

At the reporting date, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

4. EMERE
1ERAEBT

AEBREBELKLHEEARETYME -FH
BOMBRLS—2LF -

RBER RETAIHRELEHEEMEX
M2 RRREHRSEEMT

2018 2017

—E-N\EF —E—+tF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHBT

Within one year —F R 38,738 38,797
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EERFT(BREEEMT) 69,107 51,311
Later than five years AFLAE 10,886 =
118,731 90,108

During the year ended 30 April 2017, the Group entered into
the framework agreements with independent third parties
to establish an ophthalmic clinic and a specialist hospital
located in Shenzhen, PRC. According to the terms of the two
framework agreements, the Group may use each of the two
sites for the first eight years following the date the relevant site
becomes available for use and the Group was required to share
49% of the audited net profit (after tax) of the specialist hospital
with the independent third party during the term of that lease.
Thereafter, the Group may elect to continue to rent the sites
at a rental to be determined by reference to the then prevailing
market rate for the seven years that follow. As at 31 December
2018 and 2017, the Group has not yet used these sites and
there is no rental payment paid by the Company for these sites
during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

RBE-_Z-—+tFOA=1THLFE &K
SEEBYE=FRILIERGZE  URSP
DKﬁHﬁKAL BRI 2 A )k —E B Rt & e
BREMODERBZ Z G AEEAIREA
B35 PR (HE R 2 AR E A\ F A A%
MESZH - EAKREARNEEFHANEE
ME=TIDFER B 49% K EZFENE
(BR) -1k AEEREEBEHEEZ
F5M HeB2ELFROBITMSHN
RBF - R_Z—\FR-B—tF+=
A=Z1t—B AKEHARDBRFSHH
AERBE-ZT-N\EFER_F—+tF+-A
=T BUEFE ARFAYUERZFSHM
SANEERNK -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFZ

35. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS 35.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had capital and other
commitments as follows:

BEARR HAth A

R-E—N\F+-_A=+—H AEEZ
BEARREMAPENT

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHE 7T
Capital commitments for property, plant and ¥ % -« &= M & & AREIE ¢
equipment:
Contracted but not provided for: BERT4B R -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  BEE¥%¥ - BE M & E 1,125 4125
Total HEr 1,125 4,125

The Company signed two sponsorship agreements with the
University of Oxford for the research of stem cell therapy and
tissue engineering. The Company agreed to provide GBP9
million (equivalent to HK$93 million) to the University of Oxford
by instalments over the period covered by agreements. Up
to 31 December 2018, the Company has paid GBP5.05
million (equivalent to HK$55.90 million) (2017: GBP4.75 million
(equivalent to HK$52.65 million)) to the University of Oxford. As
the agreements are executory, no liability should be recognised
at the date of signing of the agreements.

AN E B4R KR o4 IR R & A
TEMNMETLMGBEBNHE - AARH
ERBEAEHEEFEAS S HIEMH
9,000,000 £ £ (48 & 7 93,000,000/ L) °
HE-_Z—\F+=-_A=+—8 &AAF
B\ 4 E K2 Y 15,050,000 2 85 (18 & 7B
55,900,0007% 7T) (=& —+ £ : 4,750,000
FEE (HE R 52,650,000/ 7)) « HRZE
WEEFRIT REUIHE B P EER
BE-

Deposits for acquisition of subsidiaries: WWEK B AT ZES :
2018 2017
o A e
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TAET

Lung Hang Investment Limited (note (a)) Lung Hang Investment Limited

(P 5E (@) 100,000 100,000
Other target company (note (b)) Eh B ZEAAE (M5 (o) 45,457 =
145,457 100,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILF=

35. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS
(CONT'D)

(@)

On 10 December 2017, the Company entered into the
framework agreement with an independent third party in
relation to the proposed acquisition of the entire issued
share capital of Lung Hang Investments Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with
limited liability. Lung Hang Investments Limited and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacture,
distribution, trading and sale of proprietary Chinese
medicines, chemical raw materials, biochemical products,
chemical medicine preparation and health food and
other related business in the PRC. The amount of the
consideration for the potential acquisition shall be in the
region between HK$3.6 billion to HK$3.8 billion, subject
to further bona fide negotiations. Further details are set
out in the Company’s announcement dated 10 December
2017.

According to the framework agreement, the Company
shall pay HK$100 million to the existing shareholder of
Lung Hang Investments Limited within 7 days from the
signing of the framework agreement. This payment is non-
refundable and if the proposed acquisition materialises,
this payment shall be applied as part payment of the
consideration.

For the purpose of this potential acquisition, All Favour
Holdings Limited, a substantial shareholder of the
Company, advanced HK$100 million to the Company to
pay the deposits pursuant to the framework agreement.
This shareholder’s loan is unsecured and interest-free. If
the Company proceeds with the proposed acquisition,
the Company shall repay the shareholder’s loan on or
before the third anniversary date of the advancement date
of the shareholder’s loan.

The Company has reached agreement with the
substantial shareholder that if the Company decides not
to proceed with the proposed acquisition, the Company
shall nominate the substantial shareholder as nominated
purchaser for the potential acquisition and the substantial
shareholder agreed to proceed with the proposed
acquisition. In such event, the obligation to repay the
shareholder’s loan by the Company shall be deemed
discharged when the substantial shareholder enters
into the sale and purchase agreement of the potential
acquisition. As at 31 December 2018, the Company
decided to continue the proposed acquisition.

The deposit is unsecured, interest-free and refundable if
the proposed acquisition is not proceed.

35. ERKREMAE (8)

(@)

RZE—+tFE+=A+H AQF
HBVE=FFTVIERGE AD
A B8 72 5% W B Lung Hang Investments
Limited (7 28 &8 Bz X #¥ & sX T A 32 2
BRAR) 2E2EE FEITHEA ° Lung
Hang Investments Limited X H Ff & 2
AIEERFPREEERAE  LERE
B A(LER tBEAB RRER
MAEE D B REEEBKIU
REMEEES - BEEKBEEBEZR
BLHEEN T 36 BB TEI8EET
EEFE—FPERERET - #E—F
FBEHENARFTEHAEA-_ZT—+tF
+=—At+BHZA% -

REBEEREHGZ  ARREREL
MEZ2#HZE%7HMRNMLung Hang
Investments Limited 23 {E IR X -1 1 18
BILcZERBATARE - HEZ=HE
WHEEEZE  ZERBEHBERE
B EB D 5K o

RTEHEBERESE ARflzE
ZRRPEERBER A A AARF
1 EBETHRBENRBERGZ
NiZEe ZERRERSEET LR
B MARBETEBRBEER X
RAEIRRBRE RN BHER =8
FEARZAEERRER

ARTFE 8T BRREX ) FREE
WARBORE N ETRZRESH
ARAHEEEERRESEZZN
BEENEEED MIERRFAE
ETRBRBSE - RZBRT A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFZ

36. SHARE OPTIONS 36. HEARHE

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company pursuant
to a resolution passed on 14 September 2011 (the “Scheme”).
Under the Scheme, the directors may grant options to (i) any
eligible employee (means any employee, whether full time or
part time employee, including any executive directors and non-
executive directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries and
any invested entity; (i) any supplier of goods or services to any
member of the Group or any invested entity; (i) any customer
of the Group or any invested entity; (iv) any person or entity
that provides research, development or technological support
or other services to the Group or any invested entity; and (v)
any shareholder or any member of the Group or any invested
entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member
of the Group to any invested entity (collectively known as the
“Participants”), to subscribe for shares in the Company. The
purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards to
the Participants thereunder for their contributions to the Group
and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-caliber
employees and attract human resources that are valuable to the
Group and any invested entity. The period of the Scheme shall
not be more than ten years from the date of adoption of the
Scheme.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the date of the
approval of the Scheme, unless approved by the Company’s
shareholders. In addition, the maximum number of shares
of the Company which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted under the Scheme is not permitted
to exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue from
time to time. The number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted to any individual in any 12-month period is not
permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any point in time. Options granted to substantial shareholders
or independent non-executive directors of the Company, or
any of their respective associates in excess of 0.1% of the
Company’s share capital and with a value in excess of HK$5
million must be approved by the Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within a period of 28 days
from the date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per grant. An
option period to be determined by the directors is at their
absolute discretion shall not be more than ten years after the
date of the grant of the share option (“Option Period”). Options
may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme
at any time during the Option Period after the option has been
granted. The exercise price should not be less than the highest
of (i) the nominal value of the Company’s shares; (i) the closing
price of the Company’s share on the date of grants, which
must be a trading day; or (i) the average of the closing prices
of the Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant.
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36. SHARE OPTIONS (CONT'D) 36. BRE (E)
All share-based employee compensation will be settled in FiBEABRD S 2 BEMES AR -
equity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to REBRBEITROIN  BEEZEIEER
repurchase or settle the options other than by issuing its shares. TSRO ok 2 (SRR AR #E o
The following tables set out the movement in share options: TRETERE 2 Z8) :
Outstanding at Granted Transfer Lapsed Outstanding at
Name or category Share 31 December during during during 31 December
of participant option type 2017 the period the period* the period 2018
R-B-tE RZE-NE
+t=A=+-8 +=A=t-H
SENL 2 BT EH BhRERD R AT{E B HrEa BREN R AT{E
Directors EZ
Executive dlrectors HIEE
Chen Chunguo RAE 122017 500,000,000 - - (500,000,000) -
(resigned on 6 July 2018) (R=F-\FLANEEE)
Non-executive dlrectors FATEE
Professor Cui Zhanfeng ELBHE 04/2016 9,630,000 = (9,630,000) = -
(resigned on 1 June 2018) (RZB-NEAR—HEE) 042017 4,000,000 - (4,000,000) - -
Mr. Wang Hui IERE 04/2016 350,000 - - (350,000) -

(resigned on 8 September 2017) (R=B—tENANREHE)

Independent non-executive diectors  BUAHTEE

Mr. Pang Chung Fai Benny FHBLE 04/2016 2,010,000 - - (1,208,000 804,000
(resigned on 1 June 2018) (RZB-NEARA—HEE) 042017 2,400,000 - - (1,920,000) 480,000
Mr. Chan Bing Woon RRkaLE 04/2016 1,930,000 - - - 1,930,000
04/2017 2,300,000 - - - 2,300,000
Sub-total i) 522,620,000 - (13,630,000  (508476,000) 5,514,000
Employees k&
In aggregate A% 04/2016 74,864,000 - - (229580000 51,906,000
04/2017 102,400,000 - - (21120000 80,288,000
Consultants Ef
In aggregate i 04/2016 25,362,000 - 9,630,000 (2052,000) 32,940,000
04/2017 45,584,000 - 4,000,000 (15840000 48,000,000
Total st 770,830,000 - - (552,1820000 218,648,000
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306.

SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)

During the year, share options granted to directors, employees
and consultants have been transferred in view of Professor Cui
Zhanfeng was resigned as director of the Company and acted
as consultant of the Company.

There are 552,182,000 share options lapsed during the year
as the related directors, employees and consultants who
resigned/retired/ceased to provide services to the Group. As
a result of the lapse of share options during the period, an
amount of HK$10,224,000 (for the period from 1 May 2017 to
31 December 2017: HK$7,240,000) were debited to the share
option reserve and credited to accumulated losses.

The fair value of equity-settled share-based payment
transactions with consultants is by reference to the fair value
of the share options granted, as the directors consider that the
share options granted is an extra incentive to the consultants
and no specified identifiable goods or services to be provided
to the Group.

The terms and conditions of the share options that existed at
31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 are as follows:

6. IBRAE (&)

TR ERELSBHRCOHEIARAES
YHEREARBER RTES EENE
Bl IBAED T ARE -

HRFARBEE EENMEBEME BT
JSERE/TBRAEBRERS WA
552,182,000 BREE KK - FA » ME
BT BRI/ TEAAEBRERENE
Z BEEREMBRTERE ARHAARNE
% HE B 530 - 10,224,000/ 7T (B —FE—+
FRA-—HZ2-_Z—+H+-_A=+—H
HAf © 7,240,000 JT) 1A B A% 4 {7 & /0 40
Bril st A RETEIE o

HREZRAME N 2BRET SRR
TR Z BRSNAL R - I 3 5 () A 5% B £ it
ZHEAI A E Mk R BEARET
NGB REXNERARS ZAFE
DESEMBLBEREZ ATEETE -

R=E—N\F+=A=+—-AR-T—+
F+=A=+— A ZBREHH R

Number of options
EREHR
Contractual ~ Contractual
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period exercise price life of options 2018 2017
REAH L B g ANTRE  BREGHER ZE-N\f Z5-tf
Directors and chief executive
officer
ESROHEAR
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2016 to HK$045  10years 546,800 3,064,000
15 September 2016 15 September 2025
ZE-RENATA “2-REAATRER B ENRTRER 0458 10§
“E2-ENATRA ZECRENATRR
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2017 to HK$0.45  10years 546,800 2,714,000
15 September 2017 15 September 2025
ZE-RENATA ZZ-RENATARE ZE-tENAT/ARE 045%T 10F
“E-tENATRR ZECRENATRR
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2018 to HK$0.45  10years 546,800 2,714,000
15 September 2018 15 September 2025
“E-TENATRH “2-REAATRER ZE-\ENRTRER 0458 10%
ZZ-\fhAThA ZZCRENATRA
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2019 to HK$045  10years 546,800 2,714,000
15 September 2019 15 September 2025
ZE-RENATR ZE-RFNATARE ZE-NENATARE 04581 10F
ZE-NENATRA ZECRENATRR

2018 F3f FEBLEEEFEBEERAT



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI =E

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFE

306.

SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)

The terms and conditions of the share options that existed at
31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 are as follows:

36. BB MxiE (&)

R=E—N\F+=A=+-AR-T—+
=B =+— B 2 BB R R

(Cont’d) T: (&)
Number of options
EREHR
Contractual ~ Contractual

Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period exercise price  life of options 2018 2017

REAH BRE (i) ANTRE BREGKER ZE-N\f ZE-tf

Directors and chief executive

officer (Cont'd)

ESRANLAH (8)

16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2020 to HK$0.45  10years 546,800 2,714,000
15 September 2020 15 September 2025

ZE-RENAT/E “2-REAATAER “EEEAATAEER 0458 10F
“EZRENATRR ZECRENATRR

9 September 2016 9 September 2016 to 9 September 2017 to HKS0.29  9years 556,000 1,740,000
8 September 2017 8 September 2025

ZZ-ENANA “E-ENANBE “ZtENANRE 00T 9%
ZE-tENAN\A ZEZRENANA

9 September 2016 9 September 2016 to 9 September 2018 to HK$0.29  9years 556,000 1,740,000
8 September 2018 8 September 2025

ZE-~ENANA “E-ENANRE ZE-N\FNANRE 02941 9%
“2-\ENANA “EZREARNA

9 September 2016 9 September 2016 1o 9 September 2019 to HK$0.29  9years 556,000 1,740,000
8 September 2019 8 September 2025

ZE-ENANA 5 ENANAE ZE-NENANRE 029%T 9%
“E-hENANA “ECRENANR

9 September 2016 9 September 2016 to 9 September 2020 to HKS0.29  9years 556,000 1,740,000
8 September 2020 8 September 2025

ZE-EMANA ZZ-"ENANRE ZE2-ZENANRE 029%T 9%
ZE-FENANA ZEZRENANA

9 September 2016 9 September 2016 to 9 September 2021 to HK$0.29  9years 556,000 1,740,000
8 September 2021 8 September 2025

ZE-~ENANA “E-ENANRE ZEC-FNANRE 02941 9%
“2--£7A/\A ZZCRENANR

18 July 2017 18 July 2017 1o 1 August 2019 HK$0.3025 9.5 years - 150,000,000
31 July 2019 31 July 2020

ZE-tELAT\A “2-tELAT/\BE “2-0EN\R-BZ 03068 95%
ZE-NELACT-A ZEoRELACT-A

18 July 2017 18 July 2017 1o 1 August 2020 HK$0.3025 95 years - 150,000,000
31 July 2020 31 July 2021

T ELATIR “EtECATN\RE “ZZEN\A-BE 03026%T  95%
ZE-TEtA=T-H ZEZ-5tA=1-H

18 July 2017 18 July 2017 to 1 August 2021 to HK$0.3025 9.5 years - 200,000,000
31 July 2021 24 January 2027

ZE-tErAT\A “2-tELAT\BE “E--%\A-RZ 030258 95%
ZEC-E+A=T-A ZEotE-A-TRA
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306.

SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)

The terms and conditions of the share options that existed at

36. BB MxiE (&)

N \F+-A=+-AR"%
F+=A=+—B 2 WK

31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 are as follows: (B3
(Cont’d) T (#&)
Number of options
B8R
Contractual ~ Contractual
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period exercise price  life of options 2018 2017
R AH BRE g BHORE  BREGHED ZE-N\F ZE-tf
Employees
L]
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2016 to HK$0.45  10years 10,381,200 14,972,800
15 September 2016 15 September 2025 .
ZE-RENATAR “E-RENATARE ZEENATARR 0458 10%
ZE-EhAThA ZECRENATRE
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2017 to HK$0.45  10years 10,381,200 14,972,800
16 September 2017 15 September 2025 o
ZE-RENATIA ZE-RENATARE ZE-tENATARE 045%T 10F
“E-tENATRR ZECRENATRRA
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2018 to HK$045  10years 10,381,200 14,972,800
15 September 2018 15 September 2025 o
ZE-RENATHA “2-RENATAER ZE-\NA1/BE 0458 10§
“2-\ENATHA ZZCRENATRR
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2019 to HK$0.45  10years 10,381,200 14,972,800
15 September 2019 15 September 2025 .
ZE-RERATA ZZ-RENATARE ZE-NVERATARE 0458 105
ZE-NENATRA ZECRENATRR
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2020 to HK$0.45  10years 10,381,200 14,972,800
16 September 2020 15 September 2025 o
ZE-RENATIA ZE-RENATARE ZEISENATARE 045%T 10F
ZEZZENATRR ZECRENATRRA
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 1o 9 September 2017 to HK$0.29  9years 16,057,600 20,480,000
8 September 2017 8 September 2025 .
ZZ-~ENANR ZE-NENANRE ZE-tENANRE 020%T 9%
ZE-tENANR ZZoRENANR
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 to 9 September 2018 to HK$0.29  9years 16,057,600 20,480,000
8 September 2018 8 September 2025 .
“E2-ENANA ZE-"ENANRE ZE-\ENANRE 02941 9%
“E2-\ENANR “EZRENARNA
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 to 9 September 2019 to HKS0.29  9years 16,057,600 20,480,000
8 September 2019 8 September 2025 .
- ENANA ZE-AENANRE ZE-NENANRE 029%T 9%
“E-NENANA “EZRENANR
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 1o 9 September 2020 to HK$0.29  9years 16,057,600 20,480,000
8 September 2020 8 September 2025 .
ZE-~ENANR ZE-ENANRE ZEIRENANRE 020%T 9%
“2-ZEAANA “2-RFAANA
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 to 9 September 2021 to HK$0.29  9years 16,057,600 20,480,000
8 September 2021 8 September 2025 .
ZE-ENANA “E-ENANRE “EC-FAANRE 02987 9%
ZZ--£7A/\B “EZRENARNA
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306.

SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)

The terms and conditions of the share options that existed at

36. BB MxiE (&)

RZE—N\F+—_A=+—"BER=ZZE—+

31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 are as follows: FTZA=+—B 2BREGERREEN
(Cont’d) ™: (&)
Number of options
CEE]
Contractual ~ Contractual
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period exercise price  life of options 2018 2017
REBS g L) (L) ANTRE  BREGHED ZE-N\E 3
Consultants
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2016 to HK$0.45  10years 6,588,000 5,072,400
15 September 2016 15 September 2025 .
ZZ-RENATE “E-NEAATARE ZEENATARR 0458 10%
- ENATRR “ECRENATRA
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2017 to HK$0.45  10years 6,588,000 5,072,400
\ 15 September 2017 15 September 2025 L
ZE-RENATAE ZE-RFNATARE ZE-tENATARE 04581 10F
“E-tENATRA “ECREARTHR
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2018 to HK$045  10years 6,588,000 5,072,400
15 September 2018 15 September 2025 .
ZZ-RENATR “E-NEAATARE ZE-\FAAT/RE 0458 10%
“E-\EhA+HA “ECRENATRRA
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2019 to HK$0.45  10years 6,588,000 5,072,400
\ 15 September 2019 15 Seﬁtember 2025 L
ZZ-RENATAE ZE-hFNATARE ZE-VENATARE 04581  10F
ZE-NERATRA ZZCRENATRR
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2020 to HK$045  10years 6,588,000 5,072,400
15 September 2020 15 September 2025 .
ZE-RENATA ZZ-RENATAEE ZEZSENATAAE 0458 10f
ZEZZENATRR ZECRENATRR
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 to 9 September 2017 to HK$0.29  9years 9,600,000 9,116,800
\ 8 September 2017 8 September 2025 o
3 ENANA “E-NENANRE ZE-tENANRE 09%T 9%
ZE-tENANR ZZCRENANR
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 1o 9 September 2018 to HK$0.29  9years 9,600,000 9,116,800
8 September 2018 8 September 2025 .
5 ENANA ZE-"ENANRE ZE-\ENANRE 029%T 9%
“E-\ENAN\A “EZRENANR
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 to 9 September 2019 to HK$0.29  9years 9,600,000 9,116,800
\ 8 September 2019 8 September 2025 o
3 ENANA 5 ENANAE ZE-NENANRE 029%T 9%
ZE-NERANR ZZCRENANR
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 1o 9 September 2020 to HK$0.29  9years 9,600,000 9,116,800
8 September 2020 8 September 2025 .
“E-ENANA ZE-"ENANRE ZEZEENANRE 029%T 9%
“E-ZENAN\A “E-RFNANA
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 to 9 September 2021 to HK$0.29  9years 9,600,000 9,116,800
\ 8 September 2021 8 September 2025 o
3 ENANA “E-AENANRE ZE-ENANAE 029%T 9%
“E2--E7AN\A ZZCRENANR
218,648,000 770,830,000
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36. SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)

The Company had 104,975,200 and 77,205,200 share options
exercisable at 31 December 2018 and 2017.

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had 218,648,000
(2017: 770,830,000) share options outstanding under the
Scheme, which represented approximately 1% (2017: 4%) of
the Company’s shares in issue as at that date. The exercise
in full of the remaining share options would, under the present
capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of
218,648,000 (2017:770,830,000) additional ordinary shares
of the Company and additional share capital of HK$2,186,480
(2017: HK$7,708,300) and share premium of HK$75,234,240
(2017: HK$240,345,760) (before issue expenses).

The number and weighted average exercise prices of share
options are as follows:

BE (F)

RZBE—N\ER_EF—tF+_A=+—
H ' K2 7 A 104,975,200 15 & 77,205,200
HEERRER TIT1E o

R-E—N\F+-_A=+—H XQFAF
218,648,000 (=& —+ 4 : 770,830,000
D)FEIETZHMARITERBRRE HAAQ
ARZAZEBETRAGHN1% (=T —+
Fi4%) RARBBBEEARNEET -
BHTEHTEREBERARAET
218,648,000 % (=& — 4 : 770,830,000
B%) BE AN E B A% B A4 BE YNAR 2K 2,186,480
BT (ZZE—+4F 7,708,300 7Tt) &K
DB 75,234,2408 L (ZE— L F:
240,345,760 7T) (RIBREFHITHRZ) ©

FERES B RN ITEENT

2018 2017
—E-N\F “E—+F
Weighted Weighted

average Number of average Number of
exercise price options exercise price options
MELTEE BRESE METETRE BkEA
HK$ '000 HK$ '000
BT T4 BT TH
QOutstanding at beginning of year FNRARITE 0.31 770,830 0.36 335,300
Issued during the period/year 8,/ ERNET - - 0.30 500,000
Lapsed during the period/year 8,/ R RN 0.31 (552,182) 0.35 (64,970)
Outstanding at end of year ERMKITHE 0.31 218,648 0.31 770,830
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36. SHARE OPTIONS (CONT'D) 36. BBRKE ()

As at 31 December 2018, the weighted average remaining
contractual life for the outstanding share options is 6.70 years
(2017: 8.36 years).

The weighted average fair value of each option issued during
the period ended 31 December 2017 was HK$0.127. The
fair value of the share options has been determined based on
the Binomial model estimated by an independent professional
valuer, Roma Appraisal Limited. As at the date of grant, the fair
value of the options issued by the Company during the period
from 1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 was HK$63,365,000.
The following significant assumptions were used to derive the
fair values:

N-ZE—-NEFE+-_A=+—8 "  HKR17E
BRRENNET S HGANERE6.70F
(ZF—+%F :836%F) °

BHE_T—+F+-_A=+—HILHRNE
TRENBREZ NEFERAFER0127
BT -BREZATFERBLEXMEEAM
ZEBEBRFEARARRE —BAERG
AEE-RELEBRH AR -T—+
FEA-BE-_ZT—tF+-A=+—H
HA N 8% 17 BB A 4 2 X F (B 7% 63,365,000 78
TT o RFEDRATERBREL :

2017

—EF—+tF

Underlying stock price (HK$) EERE (BT 0.22
Exercise price (HK$) TEE (BT) 0.30
Risk-free rate (%) 42 3 2 1) 2 (%) 1.451
Annualised dividend yield (%) F[Z IR B B ] K (%) -
Expected volatility of underlying share (%) TERE IR 5 2 TR HR R 1R (%) 72.39
Weighted average remaining contractual life  AN#E 15 & &2 & 4 F A 9.998

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical
volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not
necessarily be the actual outcome. No special features pertinent
to the options granted were incorporated into the measurement
of fair value.

During the year, share-based payments expense of
HK$549,000 have been credited in profit or loss for the year
(2017: share-based payments expense of HK$25,495,000
debited in profit or loss).

8 B R 0E R R B BA R AR - BV DA SRR R /%
ARBBOER  BZRAREZ T —F
REBER -HEFEQATFERALBEMAAR
FAC X B RS IR A

FA - LA & B A549,0008 T E
FAFR(ZZE—+F: URESINERA
25,495,000/ T B Bm P HIBR) 1B ©
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. BERS
Compensation of key management personnel FEETEANSMHE
The key management personnel of the Group are the directors, REB s EZEBABNARRRESEH
and chief financial officer of the Company. The remuneration EMBE ETEEEAB 2T H
of the key management personnel is determined by the ZEgRBENALTZRBARMSBEE
remuneration committee having regard to the performance of EoFEERAB (TEREEERITHAR)
individuals and market trends. The remuneration of the key ZWMesmENT :
management (excluding directors and chief executive officer)
was as follows:
Period from
Yearended 1 May 2017 to
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
B —tF
BZE ﬂﬂ H i
=E2-N\F ZF_T—+F
+=A=+—8 +=ZA=+—H
IEFE 1+ HA
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHEx FET
Salaries and other benefits Fre MHAEF 2,310 1,890
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RURE A ET B 18 12
Equity-settled share-based payments NEREE o REZTEA - 292
2,328 2,194
The emoluments of the key management (excluding directors EEBRAB (TERBRESRITHRER) B
and chief executive officer) fell within the following band: e N FATEE :
Number of individual
AE
Period from
Yearended 1 May 2017 to
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
B —tF
BZE ﬂﬂ =)
—E-N\FE ZE-FT—+tF
+t=ZA=+—HB t-A=+—8H
LFE 1FHAR
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHExT T T
Nil to HK$1,000,000 T % 1,000,000 7T - -
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 & 7T & 2,000,000 7 7T - =
HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7 7t = 2,500,000 75 7T 2 1

Details of the remuneration paid to the directors and chief
executive officer are set out in note 9 to the financial statements.

Save as elsewhere in the financial statements and above, there
was no other related party transaction during the year ended 31
December 2018 and period from 1 May 2017 to 31 December
2017.

SN TFEERTREH ZHEFITENAM
BRI

BB T R N 2 B BB 1D R
S RBE_E—N\F+-A=
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38. SUBSIDIARIES 38. KB A T

RZBE—N\ER_EF—tF+_A=+—
H AXRAZEFEHBARFBOAT :

Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 31
December 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

Place of Issued ordinary Percentage of
incorporation/ capital/paid up ownership interests Principal activities
Name of company registration capital held by the Company and place of operations
BRTEER RARKERE
NRER EMAR L RE/BRER BRELA TEXBREXLY
Directly Indirectly
Ef E
China Bio-Med Regeneration Technology Limited ~ British Virgin Islands 1S$20,000 100% - Investment holding,
(2017: 100%) Hong Kong
PEANBEBANRERAA EBRAES 20,0005 REEMR &%
China Regenerative Medicine Tissue Engineering British Virgin Islands US$1 = 100%  Investment holding,
Limited (2017:100%)  Hong Kong
TEBAREAATIRERAR RERRHE E REER &%
FD(H) Investments Limited British Virgin Islands US$100 - 100%  Investment holding,
(2017:100%)  Hong Kong
FD(H) Investments Limited HBEIES 100%7T REER BA
Shaanxi Aierfu Activtissue Engineering Company ~ The PRC RMB250,000,000 = 100%  Production and sales of
Limited (“Shaanxi Alerfu’) (2017:100%) tissue engineering skin
related products, the PRC
RENBAEERTIRARAR e AR 250,000,007 EEREEABTIEREE
(MREXARE]) BEm TH
Shaanxi AiBosin Bio-Engineering Company Limited ~ The PRC RMB2,000,000 - 100%  Research and development,
(“Shaanxi AiBosin’) (2017:100%)  the PRC
RELBEENTIRARAR (RELEE)  HH AR 200,000,00070 e e
Shaanxi AiNear Comea Engineering Company The PRC RMB3,800,000 = 100%  Research and development,
Limited (“Shaanxi AiNear”) (2017:100%)  the PRC
REXEEARIRERLARA(KALREE])  HE AR #3,800,0007C - hE
Shenzhen AiNear Cornea Engineering Company The PRC RMB3,800,000 - 100%  Production and sales of
Limited (“Shaanxi AiNear’) (2017:100%)  bio-engineered comea,
the PRC
AILBEARIRERAR (TRILEE])  +E AR%3,800,0007C FERBELNIRAR
i
Zhongsheng Medical Equipment Trading Company ~ The PRC RMB60,000,000 = 100%  Sales and distribution,
Limited (2017:100%)  the PRC
PERBEMHERRAA i AR%60,000,0007C HERDH  TE
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38. SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

38. (BT (1)

Place of Issued ordinary Percentage of
incorporation/ capital/paid up ownership interests Principal activities
Name of company registration capital held by the Company and place of operations
BRTEER FARNEEE
NRER EMARL % RE/BRER BRELA TEXBREXLY
Directly Indirectly
E# 583
Shaanxi Reshine Biotech Co. Ltd. (‘Reshine”) The PRC RMB117,000,000 - 100%  Research and development,
(2017:100%)  the PRC
REREENHZERAR (e P AR 117,000,00070 e
Shanghai Hesidi Cosmetics Company Limited The PRC RMB50,000,000 - 51%  Sales and distribution,
(“Shanghai Hesid") (2017:51%)  the PRC
LA F amERAR ([ LEHET]) i AR%50,000,0007C HERNE TE
Shenzhen Hesidi Bio-Technology Company Limited  The PRC RMB5,000,000 - 51%  Sales and distribution,
(“Shenzhen Hesid") (2017:51%)  the PRC
AMIFEFEDRBEARRA (RIHAE]) 8 AR #5,000,0007C HERNH T
China Bio-Med Technology Limited The PRC RMB50,000,000 = 100%  Research and development,
(2017:100%)  thePRC
HEZEHMRARRA i AR #50,000,0007C - hE
HK International Regenerative Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$100 = 80%  Healthcare business
(2017:80%)  Hong Kong
ERERALEERLERAT B 1007 BRERREY BA
China Regenerative Medicine Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 100%  Investment holding,
(2017:100%)  Hong Kong
HEEEREERAA &b 18T REER  &H
China Stem Cell Clinical Applications Centre Limited - Hong Kong HK$1 = 100%  Stem cell operation,
(2017:100%)  Hong Kong
PERARERERTOERAR BB 1AL #ililE% BF
Tianjin Weikai Bioeng Ltd The PRC RMB10,400,000 - 70%*  Sales and distribution,
(2017:70%)  the PRC
REGIENIRBERAR i AK#10,400,00070 HERDH  HE
AK (Suzhou) Biomedical Ltd The PRC RMB1,470,600 = 70%"  Sales and distribution,
(2017:70%)  the PRC
B (BM) £ BRA R LG AR 1,470,600 HERNH T
Shenzhen Kechuang Guangtai Technology The PRC RMB20,420,000 = 51%  Information technology,
Co., Ld (2017:51%)  the PRC
AR EREMAR AT (TRYMEN]) i AR%20,420,0007 BERMR - P E
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFE

38. SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

Note:

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affected the results of the Group for the
period or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group at
the end of the period. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

All subsidiaries are limited liability companies.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at the end
of the period or at any time during the period. Amounts due from/(to)
subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Amount due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

*

The Group does not have any equity interest in Tianjin Weikai
Bioeng Limited (“Tianjin Weikai”) and AK (Suzhou) Biomedical
Ltd (“AK Suzhou”). However, the Group has entered into the
contractual arrangements with Tianjin Weikai and AK Suzhou
and its equity holders, which enable the Group to (1) exercise
effective financial and operational control over Tianjin Weikai
and AK Suzhou; (2) exercise equity holders’ voting rights of
Tianjin Weikai and AK Suzhou; (3) receive substantially all of the
economic interest returns generated by Tianjin Weikai and AK
Suzhou in consideration for the management services provided
by the Group; (4) obtain an irrevocable and exclusive right with an
initial period of 10 years to purchase the entire equity interest in
Tianjin Weikai and AK Suzhou from the respective equity holders.
The right automatically renews upon expiry for indefinite period
of time until the Group specifies a renewal term; an (5) obtain a
pledge over the entire equity interest of Tianjin Weikai and AK
Suzhou from its respective equity holders as collateral security
for all the payments due to the Group and to secure performance
of Tianjin Weikai’s and AK Suzhou’s obligations under the above
contractual arrangements. Accordingly, the Group has rights to
variable returns from its involvement with Tianjin Weikai and AK
Suzhou and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over Tianjin Weikai and AK Suzhou and is considered to
control Tianjin Weikai and AK Suzhou. Consequently, the Group
regards Tianjin Weikai and AK Suzhou as the indirect subsidiaries
under HKFRSs.

38. (BT (1)

GEX

PRI EFRAREIEXEAEEAANEENE
RAEERREEFEEIERNHZMBEAR - &
ERR JHEMMBARZFEETREAR
TR °

PIEMERRBREREMERT o

RER RSN R AT - BB R BB A
R E S o UL () KB A R FUE AR
- RERBREREE -

FEYL, (FEAF) it B R RIGRIE T R - 6 8 /A

BERIEE -

N AEBTEFSEREFNEDTRAERR
A (TRRFE ) BB (FIMN) M RIMAE
PRARE (MBS (FRIM) 1) B EAAI A - AT -
REEEX 2 MR (M) N AR
FB AR A - EAKEEN(1)1T
838 KRS R B (BN BRI R
EERGIRE (2 TTERRES R ES (FIN)
BEFEANRERE  QUEKZAEI R
B (FRIM) EERABODLEN B -
ERASERENEERRBORE @)%
SREEERFEABERZFHI LR G
JN) 2 B A A B S R RISE R B KA 0
REATF o AR E WA ER
HEEHEY HEAKBERTEEITFR
FRIRRSN R G)ERBRERE AH R
BEl R BE) (FM) 2 RENER - (FR
JE AT 7R 5= B 9 B B BOR AR AR M I B AR R
REYREY (FMN) BT e %R
THEML- Bt AEEHEBBSER
REYREY N MEBMEX A EZME
WAL IEBESRPREE R R (FIN)
PR B L O W - WRAR AR
REI RS EIM) - Bt - REFEH
BRELR - REBRKZEI R R (B
M) BEEREAT -
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39. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 3. eREERSREESBEHME
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair value THRIBINASENeMEERABGBEZERET

of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities: BMAFE :
2018 2017
—E-N\F —t+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT FET
Financial assets TREE
Non-current assets FERBEE
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESREE - 454,456
Financial assets at fair value through other ?% N EFTE E/\\ﬁ 2 E AT R
comprehensive income e REE 161,445 -
Financial assets at fair value through profit or 2 AFERIERFIFE 2 S REE :
loss: Contingent consideration receivables JE U S AR A(B - 32,502
Amortised cost (2017: Loans and BHERA(ZE—tF  BEXREK
receivables): FEWERIR) :
Pledged bank deposits BRI 28,200 818,062
Current assets REBEE
Financial assets at fair value through EAFERERYIRZ
profit or loss TREE 208,296 12,154
Contingent consideration receivable A RE 4,587 =
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESREE - 120,600
Amortised cost (2017: Loans and BHENA(ZZ—tF : B K
receivables): FEURARIR) :
Trade receivables JEUNE 5 ER1A 4,128 279,806
Deposits and other receivables TQ%&EMF@Q FIE 38,389 174,696
Pledged bank deposits BEHEFRITIFR 389,368 -
Cash and cash equivalents f/ﬁ(ﬁ&fﬁ@%@ﬁ B 20,062 244,373
944,475 2,136,649
Financial liabilities TREE
Financial liabilities measured at amortised N AGTEZ S REE
costs:
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables N E 5 IREA 24,210 238,346
Accrued charges and other payables FEET & ﬁH N A A P BRIE 115,534 78,103
Bank borrowings RITIE TA 366,400 -~
Shareholder’s loans IR R E 58,334 372,542
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Bank borrowings RITHE R 22,900 771,840
Shareholder’s loans IRERE R 200,000 100,000
787,378 1,560,831
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39. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 39. %ﬁ%’ﬁ?&@mﬁ B EHE

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY (%8

(CONT'D)

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments TREHUAFEIENEMITAEZ AT
carried at fair value by level of fair value hierarchy: BEERED

e Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for . —&ERAMEERBBERERT

BEVRE CRERAE)

identical assets and liabilities;

e Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within e ZFER: BHEEXBERE R
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either BLASN - E¥ (BMER) kM (B A
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from BRED) ITSRE ASE &
prices); and

e Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based e ZE=H:BHEELBBEWEKEN

BEEmSRENRARE GEER
BARIR)

on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

CREEXRBERATFERBAZO RS
AR AFEFEBEENRBAREL
RAEARR -

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the financial
asset or liability is categorised in its entirety is based on
the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value
measurement.

The financial assets measured at fair value in the consolidated RIFE M BERARARTEFE2EHE
statement of financial position are grouped into the fair value E EBACAFEERBET :
hierarchy as follows:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—-% F=& E=H &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHET
At 31 December 2018 R-E-N\F
+t=ZA=t+—H
Contingent consideration FEN AR AE
receivables - - 4,587 4,587
FVOCI BATEREMZERA
5l BE - - 161,445 161,445
FVTPL R ERERTER - - 298,296 298,296
- - 464,328 464,328
At 31 December 2017 e 3
+tZHA=+-
Contingent consideration JEW S AR AE
receivables - - 32,502 32,502
Available-for-sale financial AHHESREE
assets 126,837 - - 126,837
Listed equity securities held for #{EE & R AE S
trading 12,154 - - 12,154
138,991 - 32,502 171,493
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39. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 3. eREERSREESEHME
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY (#8)
(CONT’D)
The listed equity securities are denominated in Hong Kong sl %ZJK FLAABTE A FEEDNZE

s
4 =
5 =
H

\REBATHRMEABEE -

dollars. Fair values have been determined by reference to their 1
quoted bid prices at the reporting date.

RS AREBRFERZAFEBRIIRE
Z B E"E‘J&%EAWEW&W RE23 °
RBERE RBERLBESEEE -

The details of the valuation of the fair value of contingent
consideration receivable and FVTPL are disclosed in notes 17
and 23 respectively. There have been no significant transfers
between levels in the reporting period.

The fair value of the unlisted equity investment, classified
as FVOCI, is estimated using market approach, based on
the investee’s financial performance and the multiples of
comparable companies. The key inputs included price to
earnings ratio (“PE ratio”) of 12.76 and discount for lack of
marketability of 15.8%.

As at 31 December 2018, if the PE ratio and marketability
discount shifted upward by 1%, the fair value of the unlisted
equity investment would be increased by 1.4% and decreased
by 0.7% respectively. The higher the PE ratio, the higher the fair
value. The higher the marketability discount, the lower the fair

BEAFEREMEAKASE ZIELETR
BEENAFERAMSAGHE  ERHE
&éﬁﬁﬂ’]ﬁﬂkﬁﬁxﬂéthﬁ ﬂev%%zo
AR ABRERREMREXE(mARX])12.76
K=z 5 Iiméﬂﬁfﬁ? 15.8% °

=% N\E=F=t_a Hnas

MERBITIR EA1% - 3EiFﬂ_HX¢g?X§
Eﬁ NEEED B EF1.4% R TBE0.7% °
BEEs AFEHES - l'ﬂ%’mu@?ﬁfﬁy
e AFERE -

value.
The methods and valuation techniques used for the purpose of BAREr= ’“EPTEE’] T ARG ERTE B

measuring fair value are unchanged compared to the previous WMERIWEES -
reporting periods.

2018 F3f FEBLEEEFEBEERAT



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILF=

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40. B fe E 3R

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations and in
its investment activities. The financial risks include market risk
(including currency risk, interest risk and other price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk.

The Group has a written risk management policy in place in
relation to credit risk associated with loan receivables. The
board of directors meets periodically to analyse and formulate
strategies to manage and monitor the Group’s exposure to a
variety of risks associated with financial instruments which arise
from the Group’s operating and investing activities. Generally,
the Group employs conservative strategies regarding its risk
management to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how these risks
are mitigated are described as follows:

(@) Foreign currency risk

The Group’s exposure to currency exchange rates is
minimal as the group companies usually hold most of their
financial assets/liabilities in their own functional currencies.
Currently the Group does not have foreign currency
hedging policy but the management continuously
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

(b) Interest rate risk

Financial assets and liabilities at variable interest rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and those
at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate
risk. The Group monitors the interest rate risk exposure
on a continuous basis and adjusts the portfolio of financial
assets and liabilities when necessary. A reasonable
change in interest rate in the next twelve months is
assessed to result in immaterial change in the Group’s
loss for the year and accumulated losses. Changes
in interest rates have no impact on the Group’s other
components of equity.

AEERARAFEERBBETRERELD
B A Al AL A PR B RS LB o B RS R
REEmERER (BEEERR  FIXER
REAMERERR) EERBRERESESRE o

AEEGTRENERBEENEERR 2
EnRREERR EXQEHMEFAGE
EITOMALHIERE  UEBREEAE
BAAXBEREASERERREXBES
ZEBMTAZARRER - —RME A&
By R EERAEERR  ARERE
RAEMFKDEERGE EZESmT AN
B4 2 B N a0 o]k A bk S R B 2 DR BR
LI

(@) SNEEE

HRAEBBEARNEEEFEXR
HMneRmEE AE WASEHER
EXEEBREMN - ALEBFYEINE
BHBE BEEEE-EEEHINE
REgE RN AT EEEEAPERINE
[V o

b) FUFEmE L

AFPNE s oMEENBBEREAS
EFEERSREMNEAR  MABE
MEzoREERBBEAEE MR
NFENERR - AEBERFEEZER
KRR WROUERFAERSRMEER
BEZHEE -RAERT-_BEAFNEZ
PRI ETHARERFENE
BRIFEELESKER - F g
B AN SR R AR 2 H b AE AR BB 1D I 4

=787
2=
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

©)

Crediit risk

The carrying amounts of these financial assets presented
in the Group’s statement of financial position are net of
impairment losses, if any. The Group’s exposure to credit
risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics
of each customer. The default risk of the industry and
country in which customers operate also has an influence
on credit risk but to a lesser extent. As at 31 December
2018, 50% (2017: 22%) of the total trade receivables
were concentrated in the Group’s largest debtor and
90% (2017: 62%) of the total trade receivables were
concentrated in the Group’s top five debtors.

The Group has deposited its cash with various banks. The
credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited because
most of the Group’s bank deposits are deposited with
major banks in Hong Kong and the PRC.

The Group measures the loss allowance for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. The
ECLs on trade receivables is estimated using a provision
matrix with reference to past default experience of
the debtor, current market condition in relation to
each debtor’s exposure. The ECLs also incorporated
forward looking information with reference to general
macroeconomic conditions that may affect the ability of
the debtors to settle receivables.

—N\F+ZA=+—HLEFE

BB ERE

)

IE (,-E
EERE

AEBZHBERARAZIERMEE
MEREESINRBERE (F) - &
EEZEERRIEREEF 2R
ERTE - REKEMEZITHERE
RZEHNRBRTEEERBEETE
HEEERE R_ZT—NE+=A
£+—E R E ZERIEABEE 2 50%
—EF22%) ERKREAEE
E’JE—N A EREZERERRE Y
90% (=T —+4F :62%) &P kB AR
E/MOAKREBLA °

AEEREZRBITERRE - HRA
SEZBITERRBOEFRREE R
Bz X RRIT BERE RIRITHER
ZEERRBRAR -

AEERBENBREHEEESE
ME R EE PR AENE R -
BHRYGGENBEREEBEERE
WERMGF  A2EEBEANBEE
HMRsk - ARSEBARBRKNIRITH
W e iﬁ\ﬁﬂﬁfﬂgﬁéJT%“%%T’@E%g
B ABERYHRIBE NN ER LT
BRI j]ﬂ)\FlIJﬂf}’\“fiéf?H
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D) 40. BTG B R (1)
(c) Credit risk (Cont’d) ) 1EEEE (&)
As at 31 December 2018, the Group recognised lifetime RZZFE-—NF+ZA=+—H &%
ECLs for its trade receivables based on individually EEREEANEERFER ATE
significant customer or the ageing of customers ARERBEFRKREREE 5 BN
collectively that are not individually significant as follows: HE2HEREEEE - BT
Weighted
average Gross
lifetime ECL carrying Loss
(%) amount allowance
hnfEF 5
2 HTEH
EEEE (%) IREAE EiEEE
HK$'000 HK$’'000
FH& 7T FAT
1-90 days 1-90 1 3,555 (36)
91 - 365 days 91-365 A 10 677 68)
More than 365 days B8 365 B 100 189,573 (139,573)
143,805 (139,677)
Prior to 1 January 2018, an impairment loss was E#ZE—NF—H—HzZm ' EEHE
recognised only when there was objective evidence XEBBERATTCREDTREABR
of impairment (see note 3.9B). At 31 December 2017, BEEBE (RKE39B) c-R_E—+t
ageing analysis of trade receivables past due but not FTZH=1T—H @ EBERHNEDN
impaired was as follows: B RWEIARR AT ¢
2017
—T—+F
HK$’000
T
Neither past due nor impaired R BRI AROR (B 266,280
1 — 90 days past due #H11-90 H 13,149
91 - 365 days past due # H391-365 H 328
More than 365 days #3865 H 49
279,806
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

©)

(@)

Credlit risk (Cont’d)

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired
related to customers that had a good track record of
credit with the Group. Based on past credit history,
management believes that no impairment allowance
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered to be fully recoverable.
The Group did not hold any collateral in respect of trade
receivables that were past due but not impaired.

For other receivables, the management makes periodic
collective assessments as well as individual assessment
on the recoverability of other receivables based on
historical settlement records and past experience save as
those disclosed in the financial statements, the directors
believe that there is no other material credit risk inherent
in the Group’s outstanding balance of other receivables
and deposits.

Fair value

The directors of the Company consider the fair values of
the Group’s current financial assets and liabilities are not
materially different from their carrying amounts because
of the immediate or short-term maturity of these financial
instruments. The fair value of non-current financial assets
was not disclosed because the carrying amount is not
materially different from its fair value.

40. M5 FEE ()

)

(@

EEE (&)

BHEEREEBKESZREY R
SEERIFEERHENTF - RIEB
EMEERE  EEEMRE ARE
EERUERLEAEE  BZFHE
BIDIR /A 28U E - RBAZ
FRBATRBERE - ARELEFL
BHEERECEKREZRAFA T
3 a o

PREMBERENS  BEEESEN
BEAELCENMBELRY AR
ARSI B WE BE L BB R
185 FFfh - BRI MR PR EEE S
EEZRA AEENEMEWHIEAR
REMRKROERT EEMERNE
REERR

AFME

ARBEEFRRARAREZZES
MITABAKHNERRNIE - HOR
HERMEENABZAFERARE
BZZRIFEKR - ARIFERD TR
BENATEEEFRAEZEYTE
R BAAREHBE -
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(€

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term. The Group has net current assets
of HK$243,542,000 (2017: HK$414,623,000) and net
assets of HK$567,263,000 (2017: HK$1,813,324,000) as
at 31 December 2018. In the opinion of the directors, the
Group’s exposure to liquidity risk is limited.

—N\F+ZA=+—HLEFE

SRR EE ()
e REEZERE

AEBZBEDEHELRERDE S
TE BREFSAHESHEG  EHN
BHEERBZRHESE R -R_F
—\F+=_A=+—H A&EERH
B EFEA243,542,0008 L (=&
— 4 : 414,623,000/ L) * B EF
B /4567,263,0008 T (ZE—+t 4 :
1,813,324,000/8 L) s EER A A
SENRBECEREERD -

TRANAKETESRABNE

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at each of the reporting dates of the Group’s
non- derivative financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payment computed using contractual rates or, if floating,

HEBHZRBRE O

MARBBARESRE
(B RTE)RERE A 28X
FAEZHMBXH) RAKEA AN

R R
B FE IR ET 47

based on current rates at the reporting date) and the RZEF AR :
earliest date the Group may be required to pay:
Total More than
contractual Within 1 year but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than
amount cash flow on demand 5years
HEEY: 3] R1ER HBiB1EHE
FHE HERENE HEEX DIHGE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THIT THT THT THT
As at 31 December 2018 R=-Z—\F
+=ZA=t-H
Trade payables ERNESEE 24,210 24,210 24,210 -
Accrued charges and other fEFTE R Rt
payables FE1TBRIE 115,534 115,534 115,534 -
Shareholder’s loan BRER 258,334 258,334 58,334 200,000
Bank borrowings RITEK 389,300 391,247 366,400 24,847
787,378 789,325 564,478 224,847
As at 31 December 2017 R=-Z—+%
+=ZA=t-H
Trade payables ERNESEE 238,346 238,346 238,346 -
Accrued charges and other  EFTE B &
payables H At e BRI 78,103 78,103 78,103 =
Shareholder’s loan BRER 472,542 472,542 372,542 100,000
Bank borrowings RITEK 771,840 837,302 - 837,302
1,560,831 1,626,293 688,991 937,302
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BATS R It

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFE

41. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

In May 2017, the Group subscribed new shares of Kechuang
with the subscription price of RMB30,000,000. After the
subscription, the Group held 51.08% equity interests of
Kechuang. Kechuang was principally engaged in development
and sales of computer software and information system
software related to lamellar keratoplasty recording. The Group
considered Kechuang can assist the training of doctors to be

A1, EREH

R-FB—tFRA AEERRBEAR
# 30,000,000 7T R B R Y1 B Bl 2 # AL D
RABER  AEEFHRYITAI51.03% K
BoRYMB TR EREREEERE
AERBELEBBZERARERRRE
o RE BB R ARYIR A7 15 B) 15 5 88

ABAEERNBEXEHE N CHEBTE

familiar with the Group’s tissue engineering products within

Aierfu Business in order to facilitate its sales.

Details of fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities acquired

were as follows:

i MR EZE -

BAZABRIEERBENAFEFBNT

HK$’000

FAET
Property, plant and equipment (note 14) Yz R Rk (FisE14) 1,438
Other intangible assets (note 18) Hunmp & (MsE18) 23,393
Inventories FE 1,658
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables e - AR FIE K& E b fE W sk IE 13,710
Cash and cash equivalents RekRESFHEEH 20,505
Deferred tax liabilities recognised upon fair value AN EFARERRNELCRIEAR

adjustments (note 30) (MF5E30) (4,151)

Net identifiable assets acquired BAZAZANEEFE 56,553
Non-controlling interests JE 2 A5 A% R A 2 (27,695)

28,858
Goodwill arising on acquisition (note16) Wi A (fFEE16) 5,309
Total consideration BRE 34,167
Satisfied by: BT SEX A
Cash B 20,500
Other payables H b fE < BR I8 13,667
Total purchase consideration RIFEENRE 34,167
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILF=

1. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONT’D)

An analysis of the net cash outflow of cash and cash
equivalents in respect of the acquisition of the subsidiaries was
as follows:

. RS (&)

FRURBEHNBARCRERASFEHER
mHEFRZ AT

HK$’000

FHTT

Cash and cash equivalents acquired BAZRERERESEHEIER 20,505
Cash and cash equivalents paid ENEeRIBEEEEE (20,500)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents ReMReSEBEERAFRE 5

Since the acquisition date to 31 December 2017, Kechuang
had contributed HK$730,000 and HK$2,539,000 to Group’s
revenue and loss. If the acquisition had occurred on 1 May
2017, Group revenue and loss for the period ended 31
December 2017 would have been HK$503,680,000 and
HK$161,537,000 respectively. This pro forma information
was for illustrative purpose only and was not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operations of the group
that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on 1 May 2017, nor was it intended to be a
projection of future performance.

The goodwill arose from the acquisition of Kechuang mainly
represented (1) significant future prospect and the business
value of Kechuang and (2) synergy effect of the newly acquired
business with the existing tissue engineering business.

Quﬂzﬁ%ati_7 +tF+=—_A=+—
FINEAIE BAER 2 Wz &Fﬁaa
r;:x7so,ooo,%7z&2,539,ooo,%7z E=
BN —ZE—+FHA —HBHELE  AEBEH
E_E—+F+-_A=+—HILHBEZ
I =% K &5 18 & 5 5l & 503,680,000 7% 7T &
161,537,000 7T © WEEZERHEMHFH AR
BOUWARTIMABRBER-_ZT—tFA
A—HERALEEERZERNH RS L
B MIWIEERREERTER -

WERNMBIEE 2 mEE2R0)FIIF
BIMEAXKRRAIR RAFREER QK
S5 BRIR G AR A T AR S5 0 195 [P AR FE o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFE

42. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 42. LEMWE QT
R-E—+ &+ A AEEABYE=)
HEAATNEREHBATRALER
EYMREARART (REYER]) M2 E
BT - I8 &R (B & 20,834,00078 7T ©
BRP S LT BN BB A

In October 2017, the Group disposed of the entire issued share
capital of Shaanxi Aimiya Bio-Technology Company Limited
(“Shaanxi Aimiya”), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, to an independent third party, at a cash
consideration of HK$20,834,000. Shaanxi Aimiya engaged in
production of cosmetic products.

The net liabilities of Shaanxi Aimiya at the date of disposal were PRV ERNTEERHzaEFENT :

as follows:
HK$’'000

FET
Property, plant and equipment Y - E KR 1,495
Inventories FE 2,918
Trade receivables FEUWE 5 BRI 94
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables e - AR FIE K& E b fE W sk IE 2,449
Cash and cash equivalents RekRESFEEH 13,078
Trade payables N E S ERIA (274)
Accrued charges and other payables FEETE R & H At eI BRI (6,726)
Amounts due to the Group FER A& B3R IE (27,406)
Net liabilities disposed of HEZEREFSE (14,372
Amounts due to the Group assigned BB ENASEEFIE 27,406
Gain on disposal of the subsidiary HERB AR 2 W 35,206
Total consideration HRAE 48,240
Satisfied by: BT SEL
Cash Re 37,989
Other receivables H A E W IR 10,251
Total consideration BR(E 48,240
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEACHESRAFRE :
Cash consideration received EUIR e RE 37,989
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of W HEZHEERBEESEEIER (13,078)

24,911
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI =E

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILF=

43. NOTES SUPPORTING STATEMENT OF CASH  43. &R

FLOWS

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financial activities:

BRXFME

RERDEENREZHIE :

Bank Shareholder’s

borrowings loans
RITHER BREEX
(note 29) (note 28)
(MFE29) (Fff3E28)
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FET
At 1 January 2018 R—ZE—N\F—H—H 771,840 472,542
Changes from cash flows: RemELE
Repayment of borrowings EEER (343,500) (214,208)
Interest paid ERFE (21,654) =
Total changes from financing cash flows RERCRESL DR (365,154) (214,208)
Other changes: o B -
Exchange difference recognised in other REMEERAEREL =5
comprehensive income (89,040) -
Interest expenses FMERX 21,654 =
At 31 December 2018 R=ZFB-NF+=A=+—H 389,300 258,334
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFZ

44. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND 44, EREBBRRER

PROCEDURES

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are: AEEEEEARAZBER:

e To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going . 1%%725& BEFEEE 2 BER
concern, so that it continues to provide returns for 1% B 75 2R (B 3R K = HL A 355 19 o8 75 2R R
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; P

e To support the Group’s stability and growth; and o HRHAEECBERER K

e To provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the o REBASUNBAEEZREBREER
Group’s risk management capability. A e

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its REBBERTE AR RERELERNERH -

capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and REBREERE T%&?ET tEx (ERR R [T

shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future capital WOWERANEBRRESHEERERKE -

requirements of the Group and capital efficiency, prevailing and B RFBRAFEE S BRAKLERERE
projected profitability, projected operating cash flows, projected TERAE AR RTBRIRE ER E e -
capital expenditures and projected strategic investment

opportunities.

Management regards total equity as capital, for capital ERERAERRERNER CER R

management purpose. The amount of capital as at 31 T—+tFER_FT-—NF+ZA=1+—8H"

December 2017 and 2018 amounted to HK$1,813,324,000 E AR &R D R4 A1,813,324,000/%8 7T &

and HK$567,263,000 respectively, which the management 567,263,000/ L - HFEBEEE = EHE

considers as optimal having considered the projected Bz EARI RBAREERERKS I

capital expenditures and the projected strategic investment RAEBERREERMR

opportunities.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

YA 1~z oh
ismE
RESULTS E5
Financal
period form Financial
1 May 2017 year ended
to 31 December 31 December
Financial year ended 30 April 2017 2018
Bt
RA-A# gz
BEMA=THLEEEE EIT—tF —E-)N\f
2015 2016 017 +ZA=t—H +ZA=t-A
“Z-1% 2 2 13l LFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
THAL THL T T Thn
restated) restated) restated)
HEY]) gg5)) as3))
Revenue Yt \ o 2817 21,751 356,987 503,680 72,952
Cost of senvices provided/Cost of sales BRERE A/ HEREK (1431) (0,410) (219,462) (356,384 (45,946)
Gross profit £ 1,386 18,341 137,525 147,206 27,006
Other incorme HARA 2,101 110,981 45,144 49,909 23,857
Seling and distribution expenses BERAHEL (8,226) (33,078) (66,796) (89,270) (134,605)
Administrative and other expenses TRREMFX (162,899) (270,171) (322,464) (238,984) (324,017)
Fair value gain/{loss) on contingent EUIARREZ
consideration receivables D¥ERE/ (BR) = 8,556 20,097 (16,876) (26,274)
Expected credit loss on trade receivables ~ ZFENFERHEEER - - - - (139,006)
Reversal of expected credit lossonother - EtEUGIER B iE
feceivables EEERO - - - - 2458
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair BATERBRIIK 2
value through proft or loss SHEEZATERR - - - - (113,803)
Impairment of goodwil AERE ‘ (60,400) - - - (202,292)
Impairment of property, plant and n% BEREERE
equipment - - - - - (168,486)
Impairment of other intangiole assets AEREERE (41,432) = = = (275,896)
Finance costs HHBER (3,058) (25,827) (24,426) (24,901) (21,654)
Loss hefore income tax REEHAER (272,528) (191,198) (210,920 (171,826) (1,352,799)
Income tax (expense)/credit FiGH (%) /88 17,136 (3,326) 11,728 5610 68,884
Loss for the year/period REE/HEER (255,392) (194,524) (199,192) (166,216) (1,283,915)
Attributable to: oI
QOwners of the Company ARAEAA (250,098 (190,902) (184,502) (158,492) (1,193,501)
Non-controling interests FERBRES (5,294) (3,622) (14,690) (7,724) (90,414)
Loss for the year/period AEE/HRER (255,392) (194,524) (199,192) (166,216) (1,283,915)
As at 30 April As at 31 December
REA=TH Rt=B=1+-H
2015 2016 2017 2017 2018
“Z-1f ZERE ZT—tF 5 —E-N\E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TET TET TAT TEn
Total assets BEE 2,054,815 2,901,277 2,888,229 3,527,973 1,422,923
Total liabilties Baf (210,600) (783,077) (980,337) (1,714,649) (855,660)
Shareholders’ funds BEAs 1,844,215 2,118,200 1,907,892 1,813,324 567,263
Note: B aE -

The financial summary does not form part of the financial statements.

IR EIL AR IRz — &
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